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August 8, 2001

Ol- 00705

RE: Application of KMC DATA, LLC for a Certificate of Public Convenience and
Necessity to Provide Facilities-Based and Resold Local Exchange and Resold
Interexchange Telecommunications Services Throughout the State of Tennessee

Dear David:

KMC Data, LLC, by its undersigned counsel, hereby files an original and thirteen (13)
copies of its Application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide
competitive resold and facilities-based local exchange and resold interexchange telecommunica-
tions services throughout the State of Tennessee. Please note that Exhibit H and Exhibit I are
confidential and are being filed under seal in an envelope marked “Confidential.” Also enclosed is
a check in the amount of $25.00. Copies are being served on counsel for parties of record.

Should you have any questions concerning this filing, please do not hesitate to contact me.

LDB/dcg
Enclosures

Sincerely,

H. LaDon Baltimore
Counsel for KMC DATA, LLC



BEFORE THE
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY

In the Matter of the Application of

KMC DATA,LLC
Docket No. _ij
for a Certificate of Public Convenience
and Necessity as a Competing
Telecommunications Service Provider
to Provide Competitive Resold and
Facilities-Based Local Exchange and
Resold Interexchange Telecommunications )
Services Throughout the State of Tennessee )

N’ N’ N’ s’ N N’ N’ e S

APPLICATION OF KMC DATA, LLC FOR A CERTIFICATE OF PUBLIC
CONVENIENCE AND NECESSITY

Pursuant to TENN. CODE ANN. § 65-4-201, Chapter 1220-4-8-.02 of the Tennessee
Regulatory Authority’s (“T.R.A.’s”) regulations for local telecommunications service providers,
and the Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996 (“Federal Act” or “Act”), 47 U.S.C. § 251 et
seq., KMC DATA, LLC (“KMC DATA” or “Applicant” or the “Company”), by its attorneys,
hereby respectfully requests that the TRA grant it the authority to provide competitive resold and
facilities-based local exchange and resold interexchange telecommunications services,
throughout the State of Tennessee.

Consistent with the objectives of the Federal Act, the Tennessee Regulatory Authority
(“TRA”) has adopted a policy favoring competition in all telecommunications markets. The
TRA has recognized that it is in the public interest to develop effective competition to ensure that
all consumers, residential and business, have access to high quality, low-cost, and innovative
telecommunications services, regardless of the chosen service provider. In support of its

application, KMC DATA provides the following information:
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DESCRIPTION OF THE APPLICANT AND ITS CORPORATE AUTHORITY

A. CORPORATE INFORMATION

1. Applicant’s legal name is KMC DATA, LLC. Applicant maintains its principal place

of business at:

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

New Jersey 07921-2567
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-2567
(908) 470-2100 (Tel.)

(908) 719-8775 (Fax)

2. The Applicant is a privately held Delaware Limited Liability Company and a direct,
wholly-owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. (“KMC Holdings”), a Delaware
corporation. A copy of KMC DATA’s Certificate of Formation is attached hereto as Exhibit A.
An exhibit showing KMC DATA's corporate structure is appended hereto as Exhibit B.! KMC
DATA’s Limited Liability Company Certificate of Authority to do Business is appended hereto
as Exhibit C. The name and address of KMC DATA’s registered agent in Tennessee for service

of process will be:

C T Corporation System
530 Gay Street
Knoxville, Tennessee 37902

KMC Holdings, the parent company of KMC DATA and its affiliates, is currently seeking approval from
the various state commissions in the affected jurisdictions for a series of intra-corporate transactions
whereby the operations of four of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, KMC Telecom Inc. (“KMC I'’), KMC
Telecom II, Inc. (“KMC II”’), KMC Telecom III, Inc. (“KMC III”’} and KMC Telecom IV, Inc. (“KMC
IV™), will be consolidated into KMC III in most states. In Tennessee, no such approval has been sought,
because, of the affected affiliates, only the surviving entity, KMC III, has a presence in the State. Exhibit
B reflects the company’s current corporate structure.
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B. OFFICERS

3. The following is a list of KMC DATA'’s officers:

William F. Lenahan Chief Executive Officer

Roscoe C. Young I1 President and Chief Operating Officer

William H. Stewart Chief Financial Officer

Alan Epstein Secretary

Robert Hagan Senior Vice President of Finance

Constance Loosemore Vice President, Assistant Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary

Julie DeSantis Assistant Secretary

4. The full business experience of these officers is set forth in detail in Exhibit D. All

of the above-referenced officers may be reached at the following address:

1545 Route 206
Suite 300
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
Telephone (908) 470-2100
5. While KMC DATA does not maintain corporate offices in Tennessee at this time,

KMC DATA may open offices in Tennessee in the future.
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C. REGULATORY CONTACT INFORMATION

6. All correspondence, notices, orders and inquiries regarding the processing of this

Application should be addressed to:

H. LaDon Baltimore Nicholaus G. Leverett

Farrar & Bates, L.L.P. Kelley Drye & Warren, LLP
211 7™ Avenue, North, Suite 420 1200 19" Street, NW, Suite 500
Nashville, TN 37219 Washington, DC 20036
Telephone: (615) 254-3060 Telephone: (202) 955-9600
Facsimile: (615) 254-9835 Facsimile: (202) 955-9792

7. Copies of all correspondence, notices, orders and inquiries also should be sent to:

Tricia Breckenridge

Executive Vice-President, Business Development
KMC DATA, LLC

1755 N. Brown Road

Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043

Telephone: (678) 985-7900

Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

8. All correspondence, notices and inquiries regarding all (1) consumer, (2) technical

and service quality, and (3) tariff and pricing issues should be sent to:

Michael Duke

Director — Government Affairs
KMC DATA, LLC

1755 N. Brown Road
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone: (678) 985-7900
Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

D. KMC AFFILIATES

9. As a wholly-owned subsidiary of KMC Holdings, KMC DATA is affiliated with the
following existing telecommunications operating subsidiaries of KMC Holdings -- KMC
Telecom Inc. (“KMC”), KMC Telecom II, Inc. (“KMC II”"), KMC Telecom III, Inc. (“KMC

II1’), KMC Telecom IV, Inc. (“KMC IV”), KMC Telecom V, Inc. (“KMC V™), KMC Telecom
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VI, Inc. (“KMC VI”"), KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc. (“KMC VA”), KMC Telecom IV of
Virginia, Inc. (“KMC IV VA”), and KMC Telecom V of Virginia, Inc. “KMC V VA”) (the
“Affiliates”). As of the date of the filing of this Application, KMC Holdings’ affiliates are
authorized by virtue of certification, registration, or (where appropriate) on an unregulated basis
to provide local exchange and/or interexchange telecommunications services as reflected in the

chart appended hereto as Exhibit E.?

II. MANAGERIAL, TECHNICAL AND FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

10. KMC DATA is well-qualified managerially, technically and financially to provide the
resold and facilities-based competitive local exchange and resold interexchange
telecommunications services for which authority is requested in this Application. The
Company’s management team includes individuals with substantive experience in successfully
developing and operating telecommunications businesses. KMC DATA has access to significant

capital and substantial technical and managerial expertise.

11. In support of this Application, KMC DATA submits the following information to
demonstrate that it has sufficient managerial and technological telecommunications experience
and expertise, as well as the financial stability adequate to ensure its continued provision of

quality local exchange and interexchange telecommunications services within Tennessee.

A. MANAGERIAL ABILITY

12. KMC DATA has adequate internal managerial resources to support its Tennessee
operations. This expertise in the telecommunications industry makes KMC DATA’s

management team well-qualified to construct, operate and manage KMC DATA’s local

Please note that Exhibit E reflects the authorizations of the entities before the intra-corporate
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exchange and interexchange networks in Tennessee. Specific details of the business and
technical experience of KMC DATA’s officers and management personnel are appended hereto

as Exhibit D.

B. TECHNICAL QUALIFICATIONS

13. KMC DATA is technically qualified to provide its proposed services in Tennessee.
As is evident from the information contained in Exhibit D, KMC DATA is managed by persons
with substantial technical expertise in designing, constructing and operating telecommunications
networks. This wealth of experience will enable KMC DATA to provide its local exchange
customers with advanced, state-of-the-art technology, for its telecommunications services as

described in Section III of this Application.

C. FINANCIAL QUALIFICATIONS

14. KMC DATA, through the strength of its parent corporation, KMC Holdings, has
access to ample capital to compete effectively in the market and provide telecommunication
services in Tennessee. KMC Holdings’ most recent SEC Form 10-K is attached hereto as
Exhibit F. In addition, KMC DATA has attached hereto as Exhibit G a Guaranty issued by
KMC Holdings guaranteeing KMC DATA'’s financial obligations attendant to KMC DATA’s
operations as a telecommunications carrier in Tennessee. As KMC DATA was formed as a
Delaware Limited Liability Company on January 10, 2001, it does not yet have audited financial
statements of its own. KMC DATA is a privately-held company and, thus, does not issue annual

reports or submit any financial filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

reorganization mentioned above.
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15. Also appended to this Application and filed under seal as Exhibit H are the
Applicant’s projected financial statements (including Balance Sheet, Statement of Operations,
and Cash Flow Statement) for the next three (3) years. None of these financial statements reflect
any amounts related to reciprocal compensation for the termination of internet service provider
(“ISP”) traffic. This capital will enable KMC DATA to meet the projected operating
expenditures for its Tennessee operations. The estimated cost of facilities to be deployed in
Tennessee is appended hereto as Exhibit I. Please note that the information provided in Exhibit
H and Exhibit I is privileged and confidential and is being submitted under seal solely for the

purpose of the T.R.A.’s in camera review.

OI. PROPOSED SERVICES AND SERVICE AREAS TO BE OFFERED BY APPLICANT
IN TENNESSEE

16. By this Application, KMC DATA seeks the authority from the Tennessee Regulatory
Authority to provide full scale telecommunications and data services. KMC DATA intends to
operate as competitive local exchange service provider on a facilities-based and resale basis, as
well as an interexchange service provider on a resale basis within the state of Tennessee.
Specifically, KMC DATA seeks authority to provide all forms of switched and dedicated

telecommunications services, including but not limited to the following local services:

e  “Plain Old Telephone Service” -- originating and terminating local calls;

e Access Service -- originating and terminating traffic between a customer premise and

an IXC POP;
e Private Line;
o Data transmission service; and

e Internet services.
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17. KMC DATA further seeks authority to provide the following Interexchange

telecommunications services:

e Basic “I+” long distance service -- also known as Message Telecommunications
Services (“MTS”);

o  Wide Area Telecommunications Service (“WATS”); and

o Toll-free telecommunications service.

18. With respect to the geographic coverage area for its intended services, KMC DATA
requests authority to operate as a competitive local exchange carrier in all areas defined by the
existing exchange areas in which BellSouth and Sprint are authorized to operate and as an
Interexchange Carrier for the entire State of Tennessee. KMC DATA anticipates serving only
business customers at this time. Due to the time-sensitive nature of KMC DATA’s business

plan, KMC DATA respectfully requests expedited grant of the authority.

19. Initially, KMC DATA'’s plans to deploy NEBS (Network Equipment Building
Standards)’ compliant Media Gateway Controller (MGC) and Media Gateway (MG) equipment
in non-ILEC collocation space such as carrier hotels for interconnection to ILECs and IXC
providers. MGC and MG equipment will interconnect with ILEC networks using Inter Machine
Trunks (IMT’s) at a Point of Presence (POP). At present, the Applicant has no switches or other
facilities installed in the State of Tennessee. A diagram of the technology deployed in KMC
DATA’s network can be found attached hereto as Exhibit J. KMC DATA notes, however, that

its network configuration may changes as it continues to install and maintain a technically

3 NEBS defines a rigid and extensive set of performance, quality, environmental and

safety requirements developed by Bellcore (now called Telcordia Technologies).
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advanced network, which will allow it to provide the highest levels of reliability, security and

capacity that its target customers typically demand.

IV. LOCAL EXCHANGE SERVICE AND INTEREXCHANGE SERVICE TARIFFS

20. Applicant will file tariffs subsequent to approval and prior to commencement of

operations in the State of Tennessee.

V. REPAIR AND MAINTENANCE/CUSTOMER SERVICE INFORMATION

21. KMC DATA will bill its customers directly, using industry-accepted methods of

billing and collection. Attached hereto as Exhibit K is a copy of a sample customer bill.

22. KMC DATA will maintain the following toll-free customer service telephone

number: 1-888-KMC-THEIL.

23. Applicant will not publish a separate white pages directory but will contract with the

underlying ILEC to provide listings for its customers.

24. KMC DATA currently has no plans for the construction of any facilities.

25. KMC DATA'’s customer service representatives are available to assist its business
customers with service, maintenance and billing issues. Specifically, KMC DATA’s customer
services representatives are prepared to respond to a broad range of service matters, including
inquiries regarding: (1) the types of services offered by KMC DATA and the rates associated
with such services; (2) monthly billing statements; (3) problems or concerns pertaining to a
customer’s current service; and (4) general telecommunications matters. For service issues,
customers may contact KMC DATA’s customer services department between the hours of 8 a.m.

and 8 p.m., Monday through Friday, by calling t hem toll-free at (888) KMC-THEL. Customers
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wishing to communicate with a KMC DATA customer service representative in writing can

write to KMC DATA at:

1545 Route 206, Suite 300
New Jersey 07921-2567
Bedminster, New Jersey 07921-2567

26. Those persons specifically in charge of KMC DATA’s Tennessee operations are still
to be determined; however, in the interim, all questions regarding the Company’s Tennessee

operations may be addressed to:

Michael Duke

Director — Government Affairs
KMC DATA, LLC

1755 N. Brown Road
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone: (678) 985-7900
Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

VI. SMALL AND MINORITY OWNED BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PLAN

27. Applicant has attached hereto a copy of its Small and Minority Owned

Telecommunications Business Participation Plan as Exhibit L.

VII. TOLL DIALING PARITY PLAN

28. Applicant’s Toll Dialing Parity Plan, consistent with FCC Docket 96-98 is attached

hereto as Exhibit M.

VIII. .NUMBERING ISSUES

29. KMC DATA estimates it will require approximately 5 NXXs per NPA within a year

of approval of this application.
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30. KMC DATA estimates it will request approximately 30 NXXs from NANPA when it

establishes its service footprint.

31. KMC DATA expects to establish its service footprint as soon as it is certificated to do
so. KMC DATA initially plans to provide services in the NPAs of 423, 615, 731, 865, 901 and

931.

32. The company will sequentially assign telephone numbers within NXXs, but will

attempt to honor requests from its customers for specific assignments.

33. In order to conserve Tennessee numbering resources KMC DATA will participate in

pooling when feasible.

34. KMC DATA will have 80% utilization of an NXX before ordering new NXXs for

growth.

IX. TENNESSEE SPECIFIC OPERATIONAL ISSUES

35. KMC DATA'’s current billing system allows KMC to bill the calling plan in

accordance with TCA § 65-21-114.

36. KMC DATA is aware of of Tennessee County Wide Calling database maintained by

BellSouth, however at this time KMC has not decided whether to utilize this service.

37. KMC DATA is aware of the local calling areas provided by the Incumbent Local

Exchange Carriers in our proposed service areas.

38. KMC DATA is aware of the metro area calling database maintained by BellSouth,

however KMC DATA has not yet decided whether to utilize this service.
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39. The person responsible for working with the Tennessee Regulatory Authority for

resolving customer complaints will be:

Michael Duke

Director — Government Affairs
KMC DATA, LLC

1755 N. Brown Road
Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone: (678) 985-7900
Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

40. The Company does not intend to telemarket its services.

X. MISCELLANEOUS

4]1. In accordance with Section VIII of the T.R.A.’s Check List for Competing
Telecommunications Service Provider Applicants, KMC DATA provides the following

information:

(a) Notarized, pre-filed testimony of John McLaughlin-Director, State Government
Affairs, is attached as Exhibit N.

(b) As discussed above, Applicant will file tariffs subsequent to approval of this
application and prior to commencement of operations in the State of Tennessee.

(c) The Applicant has attached hereto a chart containing information regarding the
status of its applications in all other states as Exhibit E.

(d) The Applicant has not been involved in any pertinent mergers or acquisitions.
The Applicant has no operating subsidiaries. The Applicant’s affiliates are
illustrated in Exhibit B, its corporate structure chart.

(e) The Applicant will not require customer deposits.
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() To the best of KMC DATA’s knowledge, there are no complaints or
investigations of unauthorized switching or any other illegal activity made against
KMC DATA or any of its affiliates in any jurisdiction.

(g) KMC DATA will not offer telecommunications services in areas served by any
incumbent local exchange telephone company with fewer than 100,000 total
access lines, except for those that have voluntarily entered into an agreement with
a competing telecommunications service provider or that have applied to provide
telecommunications services in an area outside its service area existing as of June
6, 1995, or unless otherwise permitted by applicable state or federal law. KMC
DATA also will not provide service in any area served by a telephone cooperative
unless otherwise permitted by applicable state or federal law. KMC DATA
reserves the right to expand its service into these areas should subsequent rulings
of the TRA or any court or administrative agency allow the provision of service
into such areas.

XI. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

42. KMC DATA has (1) received, read, and understands the TRA’s Interexchange
Reseller Rules and Regulations; (2) understands the penalties for non-compliance, and all
associated fees to provide such service; and (3) will comply with and abide by all applicable
statutes and orders, rules and regulations entered and adopted by the T.R.A., including those
specified in Chapter 1220-4-8-.02 of the T.R.A.’s regulations for local telecommunications
service providers and TCA §65-4-2011, as well as any that the T.R.A. may promuigate in the
future. KMC DATA agrees to comply with the T.R.A.’s rules regarding universal service,

interconnection, equal access and basic service standards.

DCO1/LEVEN/138144.1



43. The applicant has attached hereto as Exhibit O a surety bond in the amount of twenty

thousand dollars ($20,000) as required by TCA § 65-4-125.

44. To prevent unauthorized “slamming” of customers, Applicant follows all relevant
rules of the Federal Communications Commission, the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, and
section 228 of the Communications Act of 1934 as amended by the Telecommunications Act of

1996.

XII. CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

45. Applicant has served notice of the Application upon ILECs certificated in Tennessee,

and a copy of the Certificate of Service is attached hereto as Exhibit P.

XII1I. CONCLUSION

46. The telecommunications industry is growing and changing at an impressive pace.
The entry of KMC DATA into the local exchange and interexchange markets will enhance
competition in the provision of telecommunications services within the State of Tennessee as
prescribed by the Tennessee legislature in Chapter 408 of the Public Acts of 1995 and by the
Federal Telecommunications Act of 1996. KMC DATA will bring significant benefits to
telecommunications users in the State of Tennessee. Applicant’s expertise in the
telecommunications sector will permit it to select the most economic and efficient services,
thereby providing subscribers with a better combination of price, quality, and subscriber service
than other carriers. Accordingly, Applicant anticipates its proposed service will provide
subscribers with better quality services and will increase consumer choice of innovative,

diversified, and reliable service offerings.
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Wherefore, KMC DATA, LLC requests that the Tennessee Regulatory Authority approve its
application for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity to provide facilities-based and
resold local exchange and resold interexchange telecommunications services throughout the

entire State of Tennessee.

Respectfully submitted,

H. LaDon Baltimore

Farrar & Bates, L.L.P.

211 7™ Avenue, North, Suite 420
Nashville, TN 37219

Telephone: (615) 254-3060
Facsimile: (615) 254-9835

Its Attorney

Dated: du;;«f Z 2-o0 )
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EXHIBIT A

CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
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State of Delaware PAGE 1

Office of the Secretary of State

I, HARRIET SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF STATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO HEREBY CERTIFY "KMC DATA LLC" IS DULY FORMED UNDER
THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF DELAWARE AND IS IN GOOD STANDING AND
HAS A LEGAL EXISTENCE SO FAR AS THE RECORDS OF THIS OFFICE SHOW,
AS OF THE TWENTY-NINTH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D. 2001.

AND I DO HEREBY FURTHER CERTIFY THAT THE ANNUAL TAXES HAVE

NOT BEEN ASSESSED TO DATE.

Harriet Smith Windsor, Secretary of State
AUTHENTICATION: 0941376

3344825 8300

010045766 DATE: 01-29-01



State of Delaware
Office of the Secretary of State

PAGE 1

I, DARRIPT SMITH WINDSOR, SECRETARY OF SIATE OF THE STATE OF
DELAWARE, DO EEREBY CERTIFY TRE ATTACHED IS A TRUE AND CORRECT
COPY OF THE CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION OF "RMC DATA 1LC*, FILED IN
THIS OFFICY, ON THE TWELFTH DAY OF JANUARY, A.D. 2001, AT 4:30
0'CLOCK P.N- |

Secretary of State

3344825 8100 AUTEENTICATION: 0318432

010025137 DATE: 01-17-01



CERTIFICATE OF FORMATION
OF
KMC DATA LLC

The undersigned, an muthorized natural persan, for the purpoze of forming s limited
liability company under the provisions of ans subject to the requiremonts of ths State of
Delaware (particularly Chupter 18, Titla 6 of the Dalzware Code and the acts amendatory thersaf
and mupplementa] thereto, and known, identified and referred to as the “Delaware Limited
Liabiity Company Act"), hereby certifies that:

PIRST: Tho nesae of the limited liability comparny is KMC DATA LLC (the
“Cormpany™).

SECOND:  The address of the registored office in the Statc of Delawere is
Corporation Truet Center, 1205 Orange Stret, Wilmington, Delavare 19801. The name of its
regisiered sgent at such sddress is The Corporation Trust Company.

IN WITNESS WHRREOF, the usdertigned has sxscuted this Certificate of Formatian on

the 10th day of January, 2001.

Linda Smith. Authorized Person

STATZ OF DELAWARE
SRCREIARY OF STAIZ
DIVISION OF CORPORATIONS
FILED 04130 PN 01/12/2001
010025137 - 3344523
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KMC DATA LLC

k & X ¥

ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT OF
THE SOLE MEMBER

THE UNDERSIGNED, being the Sole Member of KMC Data LLC, a Delaware limited
liability company (the “Company™), does hereby take the following action by written consent
pursuant to Section 18-302(d) of the Limited Liability Company Act of the State of Delaware:

RESOLVED, that the following persons are hereby elected as officers of the Company
effective as of January j2,, 2001 in the positions set forth across from their names to serve,
subject to their current compensations, in such capacity until their successors are elected and
qualified or removed as provided in the Company's limited liability company agreement:

William F. Lenahan Chief Executive Officer

Roscoe C. Young II President and Chief Operating Officer

William H. Stewart Chief Financial Officer

Marcy Dean Senior Vice President and Treasurer

Robert Hagan Senior Vice President of Finance

Constance Loosemore Vice President, Assistant Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary

Alan M. Epstein Secretary
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand as of this /2 day of January,
2001.

KMC Tele Holdi

By:
Name: MA«—-‘L /4 SM
Title: CAO

Dated: As of January 2, 2001
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EXHIBIT B

CORPORATE STRUCTURE OF KMC DATA, LL.C
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EXHIBIT C

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY TO TRANSACT BUSINESS IN TENNESSEE
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Secretary of State

Division of Business Services _
312 Eighth Avenue North RQTEE:: S%z /09/%}1{ 4117-1106
6 Tloor, William R. Snodgrass Tower TE%EPHONE CONTACT: (615) 741-2286
Nashville, Tennessee 37243 FILE DATE/TIME: @2/08/01 1203

EFFECTIVE DATE/TIME: ©2/08/@1 12@5
CONTROL NUMBER: 0403167

TO:

CT CORPORATION SYSTEM
111 8TH AVE

13TH FLOOR

NEW YORK, NY 10011l

RE:

KMC DATA LLC

APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY -
1IMITED LIABILITY COMPANY .

WELCOME TO THE STATE OF TENNESSEE. THE ATTACHED LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY
gggg%FICATE OF AUTHORITY HAS BEEN FILED WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE AS INDICATED

A LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY ANNUAL REPORT MUST BE FILED WITH THE SECRETARY OF
STATE ON OR BEFORE THE FIRST DAY OF THE FOURTH MONTH FOLLOWING THE CLOSE OF THE
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY'S FISCAL YEAR. ONCE THE FISCAL YEAR HAS BEEN
ESTABLISHED, PLEASE PROVIDE THIS OFFICE WITH WRITTEN NOTIFICATION. THIS OFFICE
WILL MATL THE REPORT DURING THE LAST MONTH OF SAID FISCAL YEAR TO THE LIMITED
LIABILITY COMPANY AT THE ADDRESS OF ITS PRINCIPAL OFFICE OR TO A MAILING
*~nRESS PROVIDED TO THIS OFFICE IN WRITING. FAILURE TO FILE THIS REPORT OR TO
NTAIN A REGISTERED AGENT AND OFFICE WILL SUBJECT THE LIMITED LIABILITY
« ...PANY TO ADMINISTRATIVE REVOCATION OF ITS CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY.

WHEN CORRESPONDING WITH THIS OFFICE OR SUBMITTING DOCUMENTS FOR FILING, PLEASE
REFER TO THE LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY CONTROL NUMBER GIVEN ABOVE.

FOR: APPLICATION FOR CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY - ON DA&E: 02/09/01
LIMITED LIABILITY COMPANY FEES

FROM: RECEIVED: $300.00 $0.00

C T CORPORATION SYSTEM (NY-ZIP-10¢@11)

111 8TH AVE-13TH FL TOTAL PAYMENT RECEIVED: $300.00

NEW YORK, NY 10011-0000 RECEIPT NUMBER: 000928027891

ACCOUNT NUMBER: 00324151

RILEY C. DARNELL
SECRETARY OF STATE




EXHIBIT D

KMC DATA, LLC MANAGERIAL QUALIFICATIONS




The following is a list of KMC DATA, LLC’s management team:

William F. Lenahan Chief Executive Officer

Roscoe C. Young II President and Chief Operating Officer

William H. Stewart Chief Financial Officer

Alan Epstein Secretary

Robert Hagan Senior Vice President of Finance

Constance Loosemore Vice President, Assistant Treasurer and
Assistant Secretary

Julie DeSantis Assistant Secretary

Collectively, the members of KMC DATA’s management team have designed, managed,
and/o; operated advanced telecommunications facilities throughout the United States. The
members of KMC DATA’s management team bring many years of experience and a wealth of
knowledge from being associated with a number of a highly successful companies in the
telecommunications industry.

William F. Lenahan, KMC DATA’s Chief Executive Officer has nearly three decades of
executive leadership in telecommunications, data and information technology. Before joining
KMC, Mr. Lenahan served as President and CEO of BellSouth Wireless Data, a division of
BellSouth Corporation.  Previously, he was President and General Manager of Inacom
Information Systems and an executive with Sears Business Centers, first as Vice President and
General Manger and later as President and CEO. Mr. Lenahan eamned a Bachelor of Science in
Data Processing at Kings College and has pursued graduate studies in Business Administration,
Financial Management and Financial Planning at Pace University, Harvard University and

LaHulpe in Belgium.



Roscoe C. Young, I, KMC DATA’s President and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to
joining the Company, Mr. Young was Vice President of Network Services for Ameritech, where
he led more than 4,000 employees in providing services ranging from ISDN and digital Centrex
to dial tone. He previously directed engineering, network services, national account sales,
marketing and real estate procurement for MFS Communications as Senior Vice President of that
company. He has also been a senior executive with AT&T where he was responsible for sales,
marketing, operations, engineering, financial management and human resources. During that
time, he was selected by the Reagan Administration to serve as a Special Assistant to Secretary
of Defense Caspar Weinberger under the White House Executive Exchange Program. Mr.
Young received a B.A. in Psychology from Winona State University in 1974 and an M.S. in
Rehabilitation Administration from Southern Illinois University in 1977.

William H. Stewart, KMC DATA’s Chief Financial Officer, was previously employed
with Nassau Capital. Mr. Stewart joined Nassau Capital in 1995 and has over eleven years in the
telecommunications investment industry. While at Nassau Capital, Mr. Stewart led Nassau’s
investment program in the communications industry, which included investments in Cypress
Communications, Crown Castle and Portal Software. Mr. Stewart has served as a Director of
KMC Holdings since 1996. He graduated cum laude with a B.S. degree from Villanova
University, earned an M.B.A. from New York University, and is a Chartered Financial Analyst.

Alan M. Epstein, Secretary of KMC DATA, is a member of the Corporate Department of
Kelley Drye & Warren and is the leader of the Firm’s Project Finance and Infrastructure Group.
He is a member of the bars of New York and New Jersey. Mr. Epstein has acted as counsel for
finance companies, sponsors, equity investors and equipment suppliers in connection with

project financings or leveraged leases of industrial facilities, power projects and



telecommunications systems, including vessels, cogeneration plants and waste-to-energy projects
as well as commercial aircraft, cargo ships and rail equipment. Mr. Epstein has led the
structuring and negotiation of numerous financing transactions, particularly power and
telecommunications projects throughout the United States and abroad, particularly in Southeast
Asia. He has extensive experience in financing of non-recourse and limited recourse projects.
He was resident in Kelley Drye & Warren LLP’s Tokyo office in 1983 and has spoken at various
conferences concerning financing, project development, telecommunications and energy
projects. Mr. Epstein is the author of a chapter on lease financing published by Matthew Bender
& Co., Inc. Mr. Epstein is a 1974 graduate of Syracuse University College of Law.

Robert Hagan, Sr. Vice President-Finance, joined KMC in December, 1997 as Controller.
In February, 1999, he was promoted to Vice President, Controller. Previously, Mr. Hagan was
Vice President, Finance, with Westfalia Separator, Inc., and was Chief Financial Officer,
Secretary and Treasurer, of the Lynton Group. Mr. Hagan spent five years with Ernst & Young
and received his CPA in 1985. He has earned two BS degrees in Accounting and Business
Management from Fairleigh Dickinson University.

Constance Loosemore, Vice President, Assistant Treasurer and Assistant Secretary joined
KMC after serving as Assistant Vice President, Telecommunications and Media Group with
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson. Prior to that she was the Assistant Vice President, US Project
Finance Group with the Sanwa Bank. Ms. Loosemore eamed a BS in Finance from the
University of Tennessee.

Julie DeSantis is KMC Holdings’ Assistant Secretary. Before joining KMC in March of

2000, Ms. DeSantis was the Risk Manager at both Mitsubishi International Corporation and the



Matsushita Electric Corporation of America. Ms. DeSantis received her Bachelor of Science in
Business Administration in 1993 from Bryant College.

With such vast technical experience by the members of its management team, in addition
to the outstanding team of engineers and network specialists it has employed, KMC DATA has
the adequate technical experience and managerial capability to develop and maintain a successful

local exchange operation in this state.



EXHIBIT E

AUTHORIZATION OF KMC AFFILIATES TO PROVIDE
TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE
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Authority Granted or

KMC Entity Service Unregulated Authority Pending
KMC Data, LLC Towa, Montana, South Carolina, | Alabama, Alaska, Arkansas,
South Dakota, Washington, D.C. | Arizona, Delaware, Florida, Hawaii,
Idaho, Kansas, Louisiana, Maryland,
Massachusetts, Michigan,
Minnesota, Missouri, Nebraska,
New Hampshire, North Carolina,
Ohio, Texas, Virginia (CLEC only),
Wisconsin.
KMC Telecom Inc. Alabama, Florida, Georgia, N/A
Louisiana, New Hampshire,
Kansas, North Carolina, Puerto
Rico, Texas, Wisconsin.
KMC Telecom II Inc. Florida, Ilinois, Indiana, N/A
Kansas, Michigan, Minnesota,
New Hampshire (IXC), North
Carolina, Texas.
KMC Telecom III, Inc. Alabama, Arkansas, Florida, Oklahoma
Georgia, Indiana, Kansas,
Kentucky, Louisiana, Maryland,
Michigan, Mississippi, Missouri,
Nevada, North Carolina, Ohio,
South Carolina, Tennessee,
Texas, West Virginia,
Wisconsin.
KMC Telecom IV, Inc. Alabama, Georgia, Kansas, N/A

Kentucky, Mississippi,
Nebraska, Nevada, Oklahoma,
Texas.

DCO1/JENKE/132736.3




KMC Entity

Authority Granted or
Service Unregulated

Authority Pending

KMC Telecom V, Inc.

Alabama, Arizona, Arkansas,
California, Colorado,
Connecticut, Delaware, Florida,
Georgia, Idaho, Illinois, Indiana,
Iowa, Kansas, Kentucky,
Louisiana, Maine,
Massachusetts, Michigan,
Minnesota, Mississippi,
Missouri, Montana, Nebraska,
Nevada, New Hampshire, New
Jersey, New Mexico, New York,
North Carolina, Ohio,
Oklahoma, Oregon,
Pennsylvania, Rhode Island,
South Carolina, South Dakota,
Tennessee, Texas, Utah,
Vermont, Washington,
Washington, D.C., West
Virginia, Wisconsin, Wyoming.

Alaska, Maryland, North Dakota.

KMC Telecom of Virginia, | Virginia N/A
Inc.

KMC Telecom IV of Virginia N/A
Virginia, Inc.

KMC Telecom V of Virginia N/A

Virginia, Inc.

DCO1/JENKE/132736.3
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KMC HOLDING’S SEC FORM 10-K
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC

Filing Type:
Description:
Filing Date:
Period End:

Primary Exchange:
Ticker:

10-K

Annual Report
Apr 17,2001
Dec 31, 2000

N/A
N/A

DCO1/JENKE/147091.3
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Document is copied.

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

FOR ANNUAL AND TRANSITION REPORTS PURSUANT TO
SECTIONS 13 OR 15(D) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

(MARK ONE)
|X] ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000

| | TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(D) OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to
Commission File Number: 333-50475

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
(EXACT NAME OF REGISTRANT AS SPECIFIED IN ITS CHARTER)

DELAWARE 22-3545325
(STATE OR OTHER JURISDICTION (I.R.S. EMPLOYER
OF INCORPORATION OR ORGANIZATION) IDENTIFICATION NO.)

1545 ROUTE 206
BEDMINSTER, NEW JERSEY 07921
(ADDRESS OF PRINCIPAL EXECUTIVE OFFICES, INCLUDING ZIP CODE)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (908} 470-2100

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(B) OF THE ACT:
None

SECURITIES REGISTERED PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(G) OF THE ACT:
None

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports
required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the
registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such
filing requirements for the past 90 days. (X] Yes [ ] No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinguent filers pursuant to Item
405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be contained, to the
best of registrant's knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements
incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any amendment to this
Form 10-K ([X].

The aggregate market value of the voting common stock held by
non-affiliates of the registrant as of March 30, 2001 was approximately
$86,193,000 based upon an estimate of the fair value thereof by management of
the registrant. There is no established trading market for the voting common

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page |
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2
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stock of the registrant and no sales have occurred within the past sixty days.

As of March 30, 2001, 861,145 shares of the registrant's Common Stock,
$0.01 par value, were outstanding. There is no established trading market for
the Common Stock.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE. None.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD - LOOKING STATEMENTS

STATEMENTS 1IN THIS ANNUAL REPORT ON FORM 10-K THAT ARE NOT PURELY
HISTORICAL ARE FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 27A OF
THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933 AND SECTION 21E OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934, INCLUDING STATEMENTS REGARDING THE COMPANY'S EXPECTATIONS, HOPES,
INTENTIONS OR STRATEGIES REGARDING THE FUTURE. FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS
INCLUDE: STATEMENTS REGARDING THE ANTICIPATED DEVELOPMENT AND EXPANSION OF OUR
BUSINESS, THE MARKETS IN WHICH OUR SERVICES ARE CURRENTLY OFFERED, OR WILL BE
OFFERED IN THE FUTURE, THE SERVICES WHICH WE EXPECT TO OFFER IN THE FUTURE, THE
CONTINUING IMPLEMENTATION OF OUR OPERATIONS SUPPORT SYSTEM, OUR ANTICIPATED
CAPITAL EXPENDITURES, OUR FUNDING NEEDS AND POTENTIAL FINANCING SOURCES,
REGULATORY REFORM, THE INTENT, BELIEF OR CURRENT EXPECTATIONS OF THE COMPANY,
OUR DIRECTORS OR OFFICERS WITH RESPECT TO OUR FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE AND
OTHER MATTERS, AND OTHER STATEMENTS REGARDING MATTERS THAT ARE NOT HISTORICAL
FACTS. ALL FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS IN THIS REPORT ARE BASED ON INFORMATION
AVAILABLE TO THE COMPANY AS OF THE DATE THIS REPORT IS FILED WITH THE SECURITIES
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, AND THE COMPANY ASSUMES NO OBLIGATION TO UPDATE ANY
SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. FACTORS THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO
DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM THOSE EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED BY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING
STATEMENTS INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO, THE FACTORS SET FORTH IN "ITEM 7.
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS -- CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE RESULTS."

PART I
ITEM 1. BUSINESS.
BACKGROUND

The initial predecessors of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. were founded in
1994 and 1995, respectively, by Harold N. Kamine, the Company's Chairman of the
Board. These predecessors were merged in 1996 and renamed KMC Telecom Inc. KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. was formed during 1997 primarily to own, directly or
indirectly, all of the shares of its operating subsidiaries. The principal
equity investors in the Company currently include Nassau Capital Partners L.P.,
Mr. Kamine, Lucent Technologies, Inc., General Electric Capital Corporation, CIT
Lending Services Corporation, First Union Corp., and Dresdner Kleinwort
Wasserstein.

COMPANY OVERVIEW

We are a rapidly growing fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. We offer these
services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, 1long distance carriers and wireless service providers. Our
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier III markets, and providing data services on a nationwide basis.

We provide a full suite of broadband communications services in 37 Tier
III markets, which we define as markets with a population between 100,000 and
750,000. We own and operate robust fiber-based networks and Class 5 switching
equipment in all of our Tier III markets, which are predominantly located in the
South, Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. We will continue to
expand in our existing Tier III markets because we believe that these markets
have attractive growth attributes and are typically less competitive than larger
markets. Our customers in these markets include: AT&T, Boeing, City of Augusta,
Columbia Hospital, NASA, Pillsbury, State of Wisconsin, Texas A&M University and
Wal-Mart.

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online_Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 2
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We also provide nationwide data services under long-term guaranteed
revenue contracts. Under these contracts, we currently provide local Internet
access infrastructure and other enhanced data services and will be providing
Voice over Internet Protocol service, or VOIP, beginning in the second half of
2001. Currently, we have contracts representing approximately $280 million in
annualized revenues in approximately 140 markets. We expect these markets to be
operational by the second quarter of 2001. The Internet infrastructure we are
deploying includes the latest technology platforms from Cisco and Nortel, which
we believe will result in a cost-effective and technologically superior solution
for our customers.

See Note 8 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained in Item 8
of this Report on Form 10-K for financial information by Tier III Markets
Segment and Nationwide Data Platform Segment.

BUSINESS STRATEGY

We intend to become a leading competitive provider of data and voice
services in the Tier III markets that we serve directly. These services will be
provided on an individual product basis and as part of valuzs-added service
bundles. We also intend to continue to form alliances with carriers in Tier I
and II markets to deliver next generation data services. To accomplish these
objectives we will:

CONTINUE TO OPERATE ROBUST FIBER OPTIC NETWORKS IN TIER III MARKETS TO
SUPPORT BROADBAND APPLICATIONS. We will continue to expand our geographically
extensive, full service, fiber-based networks in Tier III markets to support
both wvoice and broadband data applications. We believe our networks are
generally more technologically advanced than those of the incumbent Ilocal
exchange carrier, facilitate the capture of market share, and are likely to
deter other alternative competitive local exchange carriers from penetrating our
markets due to the cost of constructing a competing network of equal capability.
In all of our operational markets, we have completed our backbone construction
connecting the market's central business district with outlying office parks,
large institutions, the locations of long distance carriers' transmission
equipment and major incumbent local exchange carrier central offices. Consistent
with capital availability, we intend to continue to expand our networks in
response to customer demand.

CONTINUE TO STRENGTHEN OUR LOCAL PRESENCE WITH PERSONALIZED CUSTOMER
SERVICE IN TIER III MARKETS. We seek to capture and retain customers in Tier III
markets through 1local, personalized sales, marketing and customer service
programs. In order to accomplish this, we will continue to:

] establish 1local sales offices in each market in which we operate
a network,

=] recruit our city directors and sales staff primarily from the
local market,

o rely primarily on a face-to-face direct selling approach, and

o) support our sales staff with 1locally based customer service,
billing and technical support personnel and participation in the
local community.

Most of our existing sales personnel are local residents who have previously
worked for the incumbent local exchange carrier or other telecommunications
companies. We believe that our "Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch(R)"
sales approach is very important to customers in Tier III markets, who do not
typically receive localized sales contact or customer support from the incumbent
local exchange carrier.

EXPAND OUR DATA PLATFORM OFFERINGS BY LEVERAGING OUR RELATIONSHIPS WITH
MAJOR CARRIER CUSTOMERS AND BY EXPANDING INTO NEW MARKETS. In Tier I, II and III
markets, we are creating a nationwide next generation local broadband network to

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 3
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provide data communications services through strategic alliances with major
carrier customers. We believe that these alliances leverage our core strengths
in managing technology and developing infrastructure and use the carriers'
larger sales organizations to brand and distribute these capabilities. We expect
to use our guaranteed revenue contracts with these carriers to reduce the risks
associated with expansion. We will build our networks to meet existing
requirements under these contracts while preserving the flexibility to rapidly
and cost- effectively expand capacity with demand.

ENHANCE OUR EXISTING INFRASTRUCTURE TO DELIVER NEXT GENERATION VOICE
AND DATA SERVICES. We will expand our existing infrastructure so that we can
continue to offer new voice and data services, thereby enhancing our market
penetration and maintaining low customer turnover. Services we expect to offer
in the future include voice and data service bundles, =xDSL-based applications,
web hosting, data storage and backup, and application service hosting. We also
intend to become the leading gateway for data communications services to the
Tier III markets we serve. We provide data services directly to our own
customers and to long distance carriers, Internet service providers and other
businesses which require broadband access in our markets but do not currently
have their own facilities or connections in those markets.

3

SERVICES

We offer a comprehensive suite of data and voice services.
Historically, we have resold switched services which we purchased from incumbent
local exchange carriers. In December 1997, we began providing our own on-network
services to our customers. Our on-network services and resale services account
for all of our revenues. The allocation between on-network revenues and resale
revenues was as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

1998 1999 2000
On-network XrevenuesS. .. ... ... arvenennans 37% 69% 95%
ReSale XevenUEeS . ... .ot vt onenonanens 63% 31i% 5%

VOICE SERVICES

For the year ended December 31, 2000, voice services accounted for
approximately 25% of our revenue. These voice services include:

LOCAL SWITCHED SERVICES. Local switched services allow customers to
connect their key systems and PBX system with the public network through dial
tone lines and trunks. Dial tone 1lines also enable customers without
premise-based communications systems to connect to the public network through
stand-alone telephone devices. We also offer enhanced services such as call
waiting, conferencing, speed dialing and voice mail to our customers. We
currently have switches commercially operable in each of our 37 Tier TIII
markets. We have added and will continue to add capacity in all markets to
insure services are available when required by our customers.

LONG DISTANCE SERVICES. We offer a full range of long distance services
including inter- and intra-LATA, interstate, international, calling card,
prepaid calling card and 800 type services. We offer long distance services to
our customers by entering into wholesale agreements with various long distance
carriers and reselling their transmission services to our customers. We believe
that many of our customers will prefer the option of purchasing long distance
services from us in conjunction with their local switched services as part of
their one-stop telecommunications solution.

CENTREX-TYPE SERVICES. Centrex-type services provide customers the
functionality of PBX without the capital expense of installing these systems.
Centrex-type services reduce customers' maintenance expenses and increase
communications reliability. We introduced these services in all our operational

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 4
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markets during 1999 and the first quarter of 2000. These services feature call
forwarding, speed dialing, conferencing and intercom, transfer and voice mail
capabilities. Centrex-type services can be provided over standard voice
connections or, where voice and data services are required, ISDN connections.

DATA SERVICES

Data services represented approximately 75% of our revenue for the year
ended December 31, 2000. We believe that these services enhance our ability to
provide an integrated turnkey solution to our customers' data, voice and video
transmission requirements. Our current data service offerings include:

PRIMARY RATE ISDN. Primary Rate ISDN provides customers the equivalent
of 1.544 megabits per second of digital communications via a T-1 type facility,
with 23 channels for data and voice communications and a 24th channel providing
network signaling and control for the services. We focus our Primary Rate ISDN
sales efforts on Internet service providers who use it as a means of supporting
customer access to their operations, and end-user customers who use it as a
network access facility for their internal telecommunications systems.

INTERNET INFRASTRUCTURE. Our Internet infrastructure service provides
large bandwidth users with data switching capability at the network level,
allowing them to acguire capacity as required without investing 1in data
switching equipment. Internet infrastructure service gives us the ability to
provide data switching to Internet service providers by allowing data calls to

4

be terminated though port wholesale equipment rather than the switch. This
enables the Internet service provider to more cost effectively manage its data
requirements while, at the same time, increasing the efficiency and capacity of
our Class 5 switches.

BASIC RATE ISDN. Basic Rate ISDN, or BRI, provides customers the
potential of 144 kilobits per second of digital communications via a single
network facility interface. We believe this service is attractive to medium and
small size customers, since it provides dial-up access to the Internet, and
other dial-up data applications, while simultaneously providing the ability to
integrate voice traffic on a single network facility.

PRIVATE LINE AND SPECIAL ACCESS SERVICES. We currently provide various
types of on-network dedicated services which permit the transmission of voice
and data between two or more specified points and are dedicated to a particular
customer. Private 1line services are provided over dedicated lines and are
available in different capacities. DS-1 lines are dedicated lines that provide
24 separate channels that transport voice and/or data. DS-3 lines provide 672
channels. The use of the channels and capacity of the service is determined by
the needs of the customer. Special access services are provided to long distance
carriers to connect their customers to the long distance carriers' locations or
to multiple locations of the carrier. The services are provided over DS-1 and
DS-3 lines. If additional capacity is desired we have the ability to provide
0C-3, 0C-12 and higher capacities that deliver multiple DS-3 equivalent
capacities. Our private line and special access services are designed to meet
the needs of our customers.

FRAME RELAY/ATM. Frame relay and ATM, or asynchronous transfer mode,
are used by some of our data customers as a fast data transport service for Wide
Area Networks. Today we resell these services. In the future we intend to
provide these services over our own network and utilize a third party provider
for transport outside our network.

Our future data service offerings will include:

INTERNET ACCESS SERVICES. We plan to offer Internet access services
in partnership with several carriers beginning in the second half of 2001.

APPLICATION SERVICE PROVIDER. Through the second quarter of 2001 we
will conduct a proof of concept trial in two Tier III cities of a range of KMC
hosted and managed application services. These services include managed Internet
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access with a selection of security options (i.e. firewall, URL filtering, virus
scanning and intrusion detection) as well as a variety of hosted software
applications provided on a subscription basis. These applications range from
common desktop productivity tools like Microsoft Office and Microsoft Exchange
electronic mail/calendaring and contact management, to semi-custom accounting
applications from Quicken and Great Plains as well as select industry specific
vertical solutions. Depending on the results of the trial and the interest of
our customer base, this service may be rolled out to all of our Tier III markets
in the future.

WEB HOSTING. We plan to offer web site design services and web hosting
on secured, monitored servers. These services will provide small to medium size
customers a turn key e-commerce solution.

DATA STORAGE AND BACKUP. We plan to offer automatic and secure off-site
storage of enterprise data. These services will include consulting, testing and
hosting, with 24 hours-per-day, seven days-per-week monitoring.

DSL. DSL, or digital subscriber 1line, is a method of using existing
copper wire for high bit-rate data transport in the "last mile" connecting our
network backbone ring to the customer's premises. DSL provides the customer with
a choice of bandwidth based upon its particular needs. Beginning in 2001, we
plan to offer HDSL, SDSL and ADSL in selected markets to provide high bandwidth
data and video service to medium and small size business customers. We have
deployed DSLAMs, or digital subscriber line access multiplexers, in collocation
offices in 29 of our Tier III cities. These DSLAMs are equipped and configured
to support two access products; first to provide an optimized T-1 service via
HDSL, and second to provide ADSL and SDSL applications directly to our
customers.

OPERATIONS SUPPORT SYSTEM

We continue the implementation of our high quality operations support
system encompassing comprehensive billing, service order, customer care and
electronic bonding capability. The system is expected to support our existing
and contemplated services. The installation of the operational support systems
has been substantially completed with development and expansion to continue as
needed. The system is designed to provide us with a single "flow-through" order
system that will allow each order to be tracked from service provisioning
through installation.

We implemented the service order module and the number tracking module
in all our existing Tier III markets in July and August 2000. The implementation
included full testing of capabilities and training of personnel in all Tier III
markets. All existing Tier III markets are utilizing the system for order entry.

We are currently electronically bonded with five carriers and expect to
be electronically bonded with our remaining carriers during 2001. Electronic
bonding is the ability to electronically share customer order information
between us and the incumbent local exchange carrier or interconnection carrier.
Even when we are electronically bonded, we may not achieve the anticipated
efficiencies if the information provided to us by the incumbent local exchange
carrier is not in a format that we can readily use or if the incumbent local
exchange carrier does not promptly provision new lines for us.

The asset and inventory modules, which will provide each market's
inventory, are currently being loaded with the necessary data including line
data. Completion of the data loading, verification process and testing will
conclude the implementation and provide full "flow-through" capability during
2001.

We believe that our operations support system will allow us to quickly
address customer concerns, and improve operations efficiency which provides us
with a significant competitive advantage.

TIER III MARKETS
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We target Tier III markets, which we define as markets with a
population from 100,000 to 750,000. As part of our market selection process we
analyze the demographic, economic, competitive and telecommunications demand
characteristics of the market. We estimate market demand using data gathered
from long distance carriers, the Federal Communications Commission, local
sources, site visits and specific market studies commissioned by us. Through the
utilization of 20 databases, we also analyze the concentration of potential
business, government and institutional end-user customers and the general
economic prospects for the area.

We depend upon a detailed business analysis coupled with a
"success-based" return on capital employed analysis to drive our capital
deployment . Each year capital is deployed based on forecasts, and investment is
made when the forecasted investment return exceeds our threshold requirement.

Once we target a Tier III market for development, we design a network
to provide access to approximately 80% of the business customers in that market
either through direct connections to our network or through unbundled network
elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier. Typically, we
construct a SONET, or self-healing synchronous optical network, backbone ring to
provide coverage of the major business districts, government offices, hospitals,
office parks and universities, the principal 1locations of the transmission
equipment of long distance carriers offering services in the area, and the
incumbent local exchange carrier's central office(s). Following construction of
our backbone network, we build additional 1loops to increase the size of our
addressable market as demand grows.

The construction of a network reguires us to obtain municipal
franchises and other permits. These rights are typically subject to
non-exclusive agreements of finite duration providing for the payment of fees by
us or the provision of services by us to the municipality without compensation.
In addition, we must secure rights-of-way and other access rights which are also
typically provided wunder non-exclusive, multi-year agreements and generally
contain renewal options. Generally, these rights are obtained from utilities,
incumbent local exchange carriers, other competitive local exchange carriers,
railroads and 1long distance carriers. The Telecommunications Act of 1996
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requires most utilities to provide rights-of-way to competitive local exchange
carriers on non-discriminatory terms and conditions and at reasonable rates.

Our requirements for a planned network are communicated to KNT Network
Technologies LLC which provides program management for construction of the
outside plant portion of the network. Our own personnel negotiate required
contracts and rights-of-way and test the network components prior to commencing
commercial service. Cable, equipment and supplies required for the networks are
available from a variety of sources at competitive rates. The construction
period for a new network varies depending upon such factors as the number of
backbone route miles to be installed, the relative use of aerial as opposed to
buried cable deployment, the initial number of buildings targeted for connection
to the network backbone and other factors. We believe that a new fiber optic
network can be commercially operable within approximately nine months after
construction commences.

During Phase I of our network construction program we completed
networks in eight Tier III markets. We completed networks in 15 Tier III markets
during Phase II of the program and added networks in 14 additional markets
during Phase III. All of the 14 networks in Phase III were operational as of
December 31, 2000. The markets in which we established networks during each
phase of the program are as follows:

PHASE I PHASE TII PHASE III
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Huntsville, Alabama Daytona Beach, Florida
Melbourne, Florida Fort Myers, Florida
Florida

Augusta, Georgia Pensacola, Florida
Savannah, Georgia Sarasota, Florida

Rockville/Bethesda/Frederick,
Baton Rouge, Louisiana Tallahassee, Florida

Shreveport, Louisiana Fort Wayne, Indiana
Corpus Christi, Texas Topeka, Kansas
Mississippi

Madison, Wisconsin Ann Arbor, Michigan

Eden Prairie, Minnesota
Fayetteville, North Carclina
Greensboro, North Carolina
Winston-Salem, North Carolina
Longview, Texas

Carolina
Norfolk, Virginia
Roanoke, Virginia

Tennessee

The following table provides aggregate data as of

Montgomery, Alabama
Clearwater/St. Petersburg,

Monroe, Louisiana

Maryland
Lansing, Michigan
Biloxi/Gulfport,

Akron, Ohio

Dayton, Ohic

Toledo, Ohio

Charleston, South Carolina
Columbia, South Carolina
Spartanburg, South

Chattanocoga, Tennessee
Johnson City/Kingsport,

February 28, 2001 for the

networks placed in operation during Phase I, Phase II and Phase III of our

network construction program, respectively:

TOTAL LINES
IN SERVICE (1) ROUTE MILES
Phase I (8 markets)............ 574,109 751
Phase 11 (15 marketsB)........-- 1,126,992 915
Phase III (14 markets)......... 331,661 657
b e oE- 5 2,032,762 2,323

ADDRESSABLE

COMMERCIAL

BUILDINGS (2) COLLOCATIONS
14,853 33
26,214 55
27,294 46
68,361 134

(1) Represents all active switched channels we provide to customers either by

unbundled network elements leased from the

incumbent local exchange

carrier, by direct connection to our own network, or by resale via the
incumbent local exchange carrier's network and all active dedicated lines
we provide to customers expressed on a DS-0 equivalent basis.

(2) Addressable by either unbundled network elements

leased from the incumbent

local exchange carrier or by a direct connection to our own network. We
define a commercial building as one with greater than ten employees.
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TIER III NETWORK ARCHITECTURE

Our networks are designed for high-speed data and voice communications,
using Class 5 digital switching devices. These devices are deployed in all of
our networks, as part of a total central office configuration that includes
electronic digital c¢ross connect devices, SONET transport equipment and
associated DC power plants and AC emergency power facilities. We currently offer
end-to-end fully protected fiber services using the SONET ring architecture
which routes customer traffic simultaneously in both directions around the ring
to provide protection against fiber cuts. If a line is cut, traffic is
automatically reversed and sent to its destination around the other side of the
ring. In addition, back-up electronics become operational in the event of
failure of the primary components. The switches and associated transport
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equipment are deployed in an initial configuration that permits rapid growth as
our business in the local market grows. Our networks provide access to customers
through SONET-based fiber optic rings for on-network service and through
unbundied network elements which are connected to our central office through
SONET fiber rings between the incumbent local exchange carrier tandem and at
least two incumbent local exchange carrier service offices. In addition, at
least three interexchange carriers are connected from their points of presence
to our central office by SONET rings, for long distance connectivity.

We expedite new market service installation by deploying our
switch-in-the-box concept using a turn key process that allows installation and
testing of the switch in specially designed portable buildings at the
manufacturing facility before deployment. The switch and its housing are then
shipped and placed on-site for integration into the network.

We have deployed subscriber loop carrier egquipment in each incumbent
local exchange carrier collocation for connection to customer premise equipment,
and service is then concentrated for transport to our central office for
distribution. In addition, we are deploying equipment to permit digital
subscriber line (DSL) services to be served on gqualifying unbundled network
element copper facilities. The incumbent local exchange carrier collocations are
engineered to provide access to business, institutional, governmental or other
large customers. In addition, £for large customer services, the fiber backbone
can be extended to provide fiber access all the way to the business complex or
building for on-network services. We provide customer prenise electronic
equipment to connect to both unbundled network element and on-network
facilities.

We have also deployed a nationwide primary rate interface (PRI)
capability that permits the provisioning of Internet infrastructure services to
large Internet service providers without the need to utilize the Class 5
switching capacity. This capability is managed via two centralized KMC NextGen
SoftSwitch controllers, which permit the growth of Internet services guickly.
This technology provides economical and highly scalable PRI growth and avoids
the higher cost associated with placing additional capacity on the existing
Class 5 switch in each city.

We currently deploy a 72 pair-strand fiber optic network. Our optical
bandwidth capacity in fiber rings ranges from OC-3 to OC-48. We are actively
conducting both field and lab trials of dense wave division multiplexing (DWDM)
to enhance bandwidth capability in our Tier III markets.

We monitor our fiber optic networks and electronics 24 hours-per-day,
seven days-per-week, using a combination of local and national network control
centers. Local network monitoring is accomplished by means of an automatic
notification system that monitors for system anomalies. This system provides
instantaneous alarms to an on-call network technician whenever an anomaly is
detected. The local market technician is trained in network problem resolution
and provides on-site corrective procedures when appropriate. A national Network
Knowledge Center, located in Denver, Colorado, acts as the focal point for all
of our operating networks, providing integrated and centralized network
monitoring, correlation and problem management. The Network Knowledge Center has
access to all operating networks and can work independently of the local systems
to effect repair or restoration activities. The Network Knowledge Center is
currently provided by Lucent on a contractual basis.

The Network Knowledge Center receives, tracks and manages all customer
calls and issues to satisfactory conclusion. The call center works with our own
customer care representatives and engineers in the Lawrenceville facility to
ensure that timely and consistent service is provided. In order to enhance
customer service, we will be bringing these call center services exclusively
in-house during 2001.

NATIONWIDE DATA PLATFORM

We are a growing nationwide provider of Internet infrastructure in Tier
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I, IT and III markets. We currently provide dial-up Internet access and other
data services to carriers using remote access servers, a type of switch that
uses Internet Protocol rather than traditional circuit-based switching. This
technology uses packets to transfer information and uses bandwidth more
efficiently and at a lower cost than similar services based on circuit
gwitching. We are deploying a nationwide data platform which we believe will
enable us to reach approximately 50% of the U.S. population. In March 2001, we
signed an agreement with Qwest to provide Voice over Internet Protocol, or VOIP,
services on over 30% of this Nationwide Data Platform, beginning in the second
half of 2001.

We are deploying a platform that will provide Internet access
infrastructure, remote access service capability, and VOIP services in Tier I,
IT and III markets across the United States. In the markets in which we
currently provide integrated communications services, connectivity is integrated
into our existing architecture. In the markets in which we do not operate
systems, we establish a point of presence, lease fiber and provide the Internet
service providers with the same basic architecture for their applications. This
provides the capability to create revenue for these major customers beyond our
existing markets.

Going forward, the application of Internet Protocol packet technology
to the public-switched telephone network may provide many distinct advantages
over the current time division multiplexing transport infrastructure, including:

o much less expensive and demanding deployment, less costly
equipment, lower space and power requirements, and faster
implementation,

o the ability for customers to integrate data and voice over the

same networks, saving cost and complexity, as well as the ability
to support new services combining both data and voice
communications,

] the opportunity for carriers to leverage the growing volume of
data traffic, and

o DSL, fiber, and other broadband access technologies are
particularly compatible with packet-based transport.

As national and global carriers implement managed Internet Protocol
networks for end-to-end connectivity, they will require local Internet Protocol
infrastructure, including local access devices, packet switches and routers, SS7
and other gateways, and local softswitches.

We currently have a local infrastructure for dial-up access pursuant to
agreements with several next generation carriers and Internet service providers.
In the second half of 2001, we will begin implementing Voice over Internet
Protocol. Additional opportunities include broadband Internet Protocol
platforms. This initiative is consistent with our current strategy and
infrastructure and, we believe, will also position us as a major participant
among next-generation telecom providers.

Voice over Internet Protocol is not currently being wused by the
telecommunications industry to any material extent for many of the purposes we
believe it will serve in the future.

Our existing contracts require us to provide over one million ports in
approximately 140 markets nationwide by the second quarter of 2001. We are
currently in the process of deploying Cisco and Nortel equipment to provide
these ports through 41 supernodes, or concentration points for high-speed
connectivity to the Internet, located in various cities, including ten in our
existing markets. Our service allows our carrier customers to provide their own
customers with dial-up access to the Internet. Under the current regulatory
scheme, those calls may qualify for reciprocal compensation which would be
incremental to the guaranteed revenues that we receive from our carrier
customers.

All of these contracts to date have been structured so that our
customers pay a fixed amount to us, regardless of their level of usage. These
contracts have terms of 42 to 51 months and have certain cost pass-throughs
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which allow us to limit our maintenance and servicing costs to predetermined
levels, and receive additional revenues for any costs incurred in excess of such
predetermined levels.

We currently have a dedicated team devoted to service and maintenance
under these contracts. We expect personnel demands to diminish significantly
after initial deployment, which will reduce our costs associated with this
business, over the remaining lives of these contracts.

NEW TECHNOLOGY EVALUATION

We evaluate and test new concepts and capabilities in our laboratory in
Lawrenceville, Georgia, as well as in field trials. New capabilities for
existing technologies are evaluated, along with emerging technologies that could
potentially be used for voice, data or converged voice/data services. We are
currently evaluating next generation metropolitan DWDM, PRI and modem pooling
technology, SoftSwitch, Passive Optical Networks, High Speed Optical Ethernet
MANs, and various next generation Internet Protocol based multi-service
platforms.

SALES

We target our sales activities at three separate customer groups: Tier
TII local customers, Tier III national customers and national data platform
customers. Tier III local customers include local governments, hospitals and
educational facilities as well as businesses. Tier III national customers are
usually interexchange carriers or large corporations which have branches or
local offices within our Tier III markets, but which make their buying decisions
centrally from their corporate offices. National data platform customers include
major long distance carriers and Internet service providers.

TIER III LOCAL. We establish 1local sales offices in each Tier III
market we serve. Each local sales office is staffed by a city director, six to
eight account executives and sales support personnel. The sales support
personnel include customer service, technical, and billing personnel. During
2001 we will be establishing an alternate channel sales program to complement
the efforts of our local sales offices. We anticipate that the program will
include partner marketing, direct marketing, and various eCommerce
business-to-business based initiatives, as well as referral programs. Partner
marketing will consist of our performing joint marketing efforts with sales
agents selected from companies that are currently selling to or servicing
customers with whom we also want to do business. The sales agents could be
systems integrators, telecommunications equipment suppliers, Internet service
providers, information technology consultants, and telecommunications
consultants. These agents would sell our products and their products at the same
time as part of a total solution. The direct marketing program will be used to
generate demand through direct mailings and telemarketing campaigns. e-Commerce
business-to-business based initiatives may include e-marketing to our embedded
customer base, targeted e-lists, or implementation of a KMC web-based order
process. Referral programs would involve enlisting the aid of business contacts
our account executives have established who would be willing to pass on sales
leads in exchange for a commission.

We seek to hire local, seasoned telecommunications managers with sales
experience as City Directors. City Directors assist with the initial network
build out and oversee the daily operations of their networks, in addition to
managing sales staff and market development . Their daily operations
responsibilities include management of provisioning, customer service, pricing
decisions and the billing process. City Directors work with senior management in
the strategic planning process, including capital expenditure and budget
planning. They perform cash flow analysis for fiber connections of new buildings
to the network, and participate in planning fiber network extensions in their
markets.

In our Tier III markets, we use a face-to-face direct sales force of
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approximately 180 account executives. Most of our sales personnel are hired
locally because we believe that knowledge of, and contacts in, a local market
are key factors for competitive differentiation and commercial success in a Tier
IIT market. We believe that this local focus will help to set us apart from the
incumbent local exchange carriers, our principal competitors in these markets.

TIER ITI NATIONAL. While there are few Fortune 500 companies with
headquarters located in our operating cities, there are branches and local
offices of large corporations within our market areas. Often these large
corporations make their buying decisions centrally, either through their
telecommunications or MIS functions, which are normally located at corporate
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headquarters. Our national markets sales organization is structured to assist
them in determining requirements for their various locations within our markets.
Additionally, this group targets regional and national interexchange carriers,
primarily for the sale of transport services. We believe that this focus on
national markets will further increase our market penetration with carriers and
large companies in our cities. We currently have 17 national market account
managers.

NATIONWIDE DATA SERVICES. We have nationwide data services customer
account managers who build relationships with major long distance carriers and
Internet service providers. These relationships facilitate initial sales of our
services. We believe, and our contracts with our existing customers have shown,
that once national data platform customers experience our service they will
allow us to provide additional services to them and expand the relationship.

) We recruit our sales force from several sources including incumbent
local exchange carriers, competitive local exchange carriers, interexchange
carriers, cellular companies and interconnect companies. Once hired, our local
Tier III sales force is put through a program of intense local training and
computer based data and voice product training at the local sales office. All
sales personnel participate in consultative sales and product training at our
corporate operations facility. Our sales force is compensated based on a fixed
base salary and variable payments for the sale of recurring monthly revenue.

CUSTOMERS

Contracts with Qwest Communications Corporation and Qwest
Communications International, Inc. {collectively, "Owest") accounted for
approximately 36% of our total revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000. A
significant portion of the Qwest business was denerated from long term
guaranteed revenue contracts. No other customer accounted for 10% or more of our
revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31,
1999, no one customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue. It is unlikely
that the loss of any single customer, other than Qwest, would have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations.

As of February 28, 2001, we had approximately 12,700 customers, which
can be broken down into the following categories:

o Tier III 1local customers are local to a particular city and
include local governments, hospitals and educational facilities
as well as businesses, including local and regional Internet
service providers. Our business customers range from large
businesses to medium and small size businesses, including medical
and insurance offices, car dealerships, broadcast media outlets
and real estate brokerages.

o Tier III national customers consist of Fortune 500 companies,
regional and national interexchange carriers, other large
companies, major 1long distance carriers, wireless service

providers and other competitive local exchange providers that
have a local or branch office in several of our markets.

[ Nationwide data platform customers consist of major long distance
carriers and Internet service providers.
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Examples of our customers in each of these categories- are shown below:

TIER III LOCAL CUSTOMERS TIER III NATIONAL CUSTOMERS DATA
PLATFORM SERVICES CUSTOMERS

Boeing AT&T Corp.
Broadwing
City of Augusta, Georgia Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railway Qwest
Columbia Hospital Krispy Kreme Donuts
NASA Sprint
Pillsbury UUNET
State of Wisconsin Walgreens
Texas A&M University Walmart
11
MARKETING

We market our local services through a combination of media channels
and personal service in each of our local markets. We seek to gain brand
awareness through advertising on local television, radio and print media. We
also use outdoor advertising in prominent locations, customer testimonials, and
local events and sponsorships, such as charity golf tournaments.

Consistent with our "Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch(R)"
motto, we also seek to actively participate in our local communities. Each City
Director is typically a long-time local resident with extensive
telecommunications experience and is well known and respected in the community.
The City Director typically seeks to hire other local residents, further
strengthening our involvement with and contacts throughout the local market.
Each local office is typically an active member of the local Chamber of
Commerce, and contributes to local charities. We believe that these activities
provide us with a point of differentiation compared to the incumbent local
exchange carriers, who have generally underserved Tier III markets in favor of
larger markets.

SUPPLIERS

We depend on a number of suppliers in order to operate our networks.
The following companies are our primary suppliers.

TELECOMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT. We have contracted with Lucent, as our
primary supplier, to purchase switching, transport and digital cross connect
products. Lucent has also agreed to implement and test our switches and related
equipment. In addition, we have entered into an agreement with Lucent pursuant
to which Lucent has agreed to monitor our switches on an on-going basis. Lucent
is an investor in our preferred stock and a lender under our credit facilities.

BILLING SUPPORT SYSTEMS IMPLEMENTATION. In the second guarter of 1999,
we installed software developed by Billing Concepts Systems, Inc./APTIS to
provide us with comprehensive billing functionality, including the ability to
capture call detail records, message rating, bill calculation, invoice
generation, customer care and inquiry, collections wmanagement, and quality
assurance. This software enables us to produce a single bill covering all of the
products and services that we provide to a customer. Additional development of
new billing functionality continues.

OPERATIONAL SUPPORT SYSTEMS IMPLEMENTATION. We entered into an
agreement in 1998 with Eftia 0SS Solutions 1Inc. to develop our operational
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support systems. These systems manage service order processing, circuit and
asset inventory, telephone number inventory and trouble administration. The
installation of the operational support systems has been substantially completed
with development and expansion to continue as needed.

OUTSIDE NETWORK RELATED CONSTRUCTION. We are currently in negotiations
to complete the transfer of our construction division to KNT Network
Technologies, LLC, a company independently owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau
Capital, our principal stockholders. Pursuant to an arrangement between the
parties, effective June 1, 2000, we transferred substantially all of the
employees of our construction division to KNT. KNT is providing construction and
maintenance services to us and is being reimbursed for all of the direct costs
of these activities. In addition, we are currently funding substantially all of
KNT's general overhead and administrative costs at an amount not to exceed $15
million per annum. We are currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms
of this arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be
completed by June 15, 2001.

The services and products which we obtained from these principal
suppliers are also available from a number of other sources. If we were forced
to change suppliers for any reason, however, we may experience some
difficulties, particularly with respect to the compatibility of equipment from
new suppliers with our existing Lucent equipment.
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COMPETITION

OVERVIEW. The telecommunications industry is highly competitive. Our
principal competitors in Tier III markets are the incumbent local exchange
carriers. In most instances the incumbent local exchange carrier is one of the
regional Bell operating companies (such as Verizon, BellSouth or SBC). Incumbent
local exchange carriers presently have a majority of the market share in those
areas we consider our market areas. Because of their relatively small size, we
do not believe that Tier III wmarkets can profitably support more than two
facilities-based competitors in addition to the incumbent local exchange
carrier.

Other competitors may include competitive 1local exchange carriers,
microwave carriers, wireless telecommunications providers and private networks
built by large end-users. Potential competitors (using similar or different
technologies) include cable television companies, wutilities, incumbent local
exchange carriers, regional Bell operating companies seeking to operate outside
their current local service areas and independent telephone companies. In
addition, there will be future competition from large long distance carriers,
such as AT&T and MCI WorldCom, which have begun to offer integrated local and
long distance telecommunications services. Consolidation of telecommunications
companies and the formation of strategic alliances within the telecommunications
industry, as well as the development of new technologies, could give rise to
significant new competitors for us.

Both the long distance business and the data transmission business are
extremely competitive. Prices in both businesses have declined significantly in
recent years and are expected to continue to decline. 1In the long distance
business, we will face competition from large carriers such as AT&T, MCI
WorldCom and Sprint. We will rely on other carriers to provide transmission and
termination for our long distance traffic and therefore will be dependent on
such carriers.

A large portion of our nationwide data platform business will be
conducted in larger Tier I and Tier II markets. We expect that our primary
competitors in this business will be both incumbent local exchange carriers and
other competitive local exchange carriers. Because the regional Bell operating
companies and other incumbent local exchange carriers tend to focus their
efforts on Tier I and Tier II markets, they will have a significantly greater
local presence in these markets. In addition, due to the larger size of the
markets, there are a greater number of facilities-based competitive local
exchange carriers competing for data business in these markets than we usually
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face in Tier III markets. For this reason, we generally will not enter these
markets to offer nationwide data platform services unless we have a pre-existing
agreement with a significant customer justifying our presence in the market.

INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS. Our principal competitors for local
exchange services are the regional Bell operating companies. As a recent entrant
in the integrated telecommunications services industry, we have not yet achieved
a significant market share for any of our services. In particular, the incumbent
local exchange carriers:

o have long-standing relationships with their customers,

o have financial, technical and marketing resources substantially
greater than ours,

o have the potential to fund competitive services with revenues
from a variety of other businesses, and

o currently benefit from a number of existing regulations that
favor the incumbent local exchange carriers over us in some
respects.

COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS AND OTHER COMPETITORS. We compete
from time to time with competitive local exchange carriers. In our markets we
generally face competition from two or more competitive local exchange carriers.
However, in many instances, the competitive local exchange carriers present in
our Tier III markets have not established robust fiber-based networks comparable
to ours. After the investment and expense of establishing a network and support
services in a given market, the marginal cost of carrying an additional call is
negligible. Accordingly, in Tier III markets where there are three or more
fiber-based competitive local exchange carriers, we expect substantial price

13

competition. We believe that operations in such markets are likely to be
unprofitable for one or more operators.

We face competition in each of our markets. However, we believe that
our commitment to build a significant network, deploy switches and establish
local sales and support facilities at the outset in each of the Tier III markets
which we target should reduce the number of facilities-based competitors and
drive other entrants to focus on the resale of incumbent local exchange carrier
service or our services or to invest in other markets. We believe that each
market will also see more agent and distributor resale initiatives.

REGULATION

Our services are subject to varying degrees of federal, state and local
regulation. The Federal Communications Commission exercises jurisdiction over
facilities of, and interstate and international services offered by,
telecommunications common carriers. The state regulatory commissions retain
jurisdiction over the same facilities and services to the extent they are used
to originate or terminate intrastate communications. Local governments sometimes
impose franchise or licensing requirements on competitive local exchange
carriers. The regulatory environment is in a constant state of flux, and you
should be aware that any of the items discussed below are subject to rapid
change due to regulatory action, judicial decision or legislative initiative.

FEDERAL REGULATION

We are regulated at the federal level as a nondominant common carrier
subject to minimal regulation under Title II of the Communications Act of 1934.
The Communications Act of 1934 was substantially amended by the
Telecommunications Act of 1996. This 1legislation is designed to enhance
competition in the local telecommunications marketplace by:

o removing state and local entry barriers,
° requiring incumbent local exchange carriers to provide
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interconnection to their facilities,

o facilitating the end-users' choice to switch service providers
from incumbent local exchange carriers to competitive local
exchange carriers like us, and

o requiring access to rights-of-way.

The legislation also is designed to enhance the competitive position of
competitive local exchange carriers and increase local competition by newer
competitors such as long distance carriers, cable television companies and
public utility companies. Under the Telecommunications Act of 1996, regional
Bell operating companies have the opportunity to provide in-region long distance
services if specified conditions are met. In addition, the Telecommunications
Act of 1996 eliminates certain restrictions on utility holding companies, thus
clearing the way for them to diversify into telecommunications services.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 specifically requires all
telecommunications carriers (including incumbent local exchange carriers and
competitive local exchange carriers (like us)):

o not to prohibit or unduly restrict resale of their services,

o to provide dialing parity and nondiscriminatory access to
telephone numbers, operator services, directory assistance and
directory listings,

o to afford access to poles, ducts, conduits and rights-of-way, and

o to establish reciprocal compensation arrangements for the
transport and termination of telecommunications.
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It also requires competitive local exchange carriers and incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide interconnection for the transmission and routing of
telephone exchange service and exchange access. It requires incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide such interconnection:

[} at any technically feasible point within the incumbent local exchange
carrier's network,

o) that is at least equal in quality to that provided by the incumbent
local exchange carrier to itself, its affiliates or any other party to
which the incumbent local exchange carrier provides interconnection,
and

o at rates, terms and conditions that are just, reasonable and
nondiscriminatory.

Incumbent local exchange carriers also are required under the law to provide
nondiscriminatory access to network elements on an unbundled basis at any
technically feasible point, to offer their local retail telephone services for
resale at wholesale rates, and to facilitate collocation of equipment necessary
for competitors to interconnect with them or obtain access to their unbundled
network elements.

The Telecommunications Act of 1996 provided for the removal of most
restrictions imposed on AT&T and the regional Bell operating companies resulting
from the consent decree entered in 1982 which provided for divestiture of the
regional Bell operating companies from AT&T in 1984. The Telecommunications Act
establishes procedures under which a regional Bell operating company can enter
the market for long distance service between specified areas within its
in-region local service territory. The Telecommunications Act of 1996 permitted
the regional Bell operating companies to enter the out-of-region long distance
market immediately upon enactment. Before the regional Bell operating company
can provide in-region inter-LATA services, it must obtain Federal Communications
Commission approval upon a showing that facilities-based competition is present
in its market, that the regional Bell operating company has entered into
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interconnection agreements in the states where it seeks authority, that it has
satisfied a l4-point "checklist" of competitive requirements, and that its entry
is in the public interest. To date, such authority has only been granted to
Verizon (formerly Bell Atlantic) for New York and SBC for Kansas, Oklahoma and
Texas. A petition by Verizon for entry in Massachusetts is pending at the
Federal Communications Commission. The provision of inter-LATA services by
regional Bell operating companies is expected to reduce the market share of
major long distance carriers, and consequently, may have an adverse effect on
the ability of competitive local exchange carriers to generate access revenues
from long distance carriers.

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION RULES IMPLEMENTING THE LOCAL
COMPETITION PROVISIONS OF THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS ACT OF 1996. The Federal
Communications Commission in 1996 established a framework of national rules
enabling state public service commissions and the Federal Communications
Commission to begin implementing many of the local competition provisions of the
Telecommunications Act of 1996. The Federal Communications Commission prescribed
certain minimum points of interconnection necessary to permit competing carriers
to choose the most efficient points at which to interconnect with the incumbent
local exchange carriers' networks. The Federal Communications Commission also
adopted a minimum 1list of unbundled network elements that incumbent local
exchange carriers must make available to competitors wupon request and a
methodology for states to use in establishing rates for interconnection and the
purchase of unbundled network elements.

In January 1999, the Supreme Court ruled on a variety of issues
addressed in the Federal Communications Commission's 1996 order. Among other
things, the Supreme Court found that the Federal Communications Commission has
authority to establish national pricing rules for interconnection, unbundled
elements and resale services. However, the Supreme Court overturned the Federal
Communications Commission's rules regarding what network elements must be
unbundled by the regional Bell operating companies, and remanded to the Federal
Communications Commission the question of what network elements are "necessary"”
to competing carriers like us. On November 5, 13899, the Federal Communications
Commission issued an order re-establishing the network elements that must be
offered by incumbent local exchange carriers as unbundled network elements. That
decision is currently the subject of various reconsideration petitions and
appeals. We cannot provide any assurances regarding the disposition of these
petitions and appeals and we cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain
interconnection agreements on terms acceptable to us.

On July 18, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit issued
a decision in which it upheld the Federal Communications Commission's use of a
forward-looking methodology to establish prices for network elements, but the
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Court vacated the agency's rule that the methodology should be applied based on
the use of the most efficient telecommunications technology currently available
and the 1lowest cost network configuration. Rather, the Court held that the
methodology must be applied based on the costs of the incumbent 1local exchange
carriers' existing facilities and equipment. The issue was remanded to the
Federal Communications Commission for further consideration. The Court's ruling
is currently under review by the U.S. Supreme Court. A decision by the Supreme
Court is expected in the Court's fall 2001 term. We are unable to provide
assurances as to the outcome of the Supreme Court case or of the remand
proceeding that must be conducted by the Federal Communications Commission.

The 8th Circuit also affirmed its prior decision to vacate the Federal
Communications Commission rule that required incumbent local exchange carriers
to provide combinations of network elements that are not ordinarily combined in
their networks. The Court's decision keeps in place the system whereby carriers
cannot obtain network element combinations unless the incumbent local exchange
carrier has already combined the elements in its network today. The Supreme
Court is currently reviewing this issue as well as the pricing issue described
above.

On March 17, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the District of
Columbia Circuit vacated certain Federal Communications Commission rules
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relating to collocation of competitors' equipment in incumbent local exchange
carriers' central offices. This decision requires the Federal Communications
Commission to 1limit collocation to egquipment that 1is "necessary" for
interconnection with the incumbent 1local exchange carrier or access to the
incumbent local exchange carrier's unbundled network elements. On August 10,
2000, the Federal Communications Commission responded by issuing an order and
request for further comment. The agency required that incumbent local exchange
carriers provide physical collocation within 90 days after receiving an
application and clarified that an incumbent local exchange carrier must allow a
competitive local exchange carrier to construct a controlled environmental vault
or similar structure on land adjacent to an incumbent local exchange carrier
structure that lacks physical collocation space. The Federal Communications
Commission asked for comment on what equipment incumbent local exchange carriers
should allow competitive local exchange carriers to physically collocate and how
physical collocation space should be assigned, whether collocators should be
permitted to cross-connect with other collocators, and what rules should apply
to collocation at remote local exchange carrier premises. No assurances can be
given regarding the outcome of this further proceeding.

OTHER REGULATION. In general, the Federal Communications Commission's
policies encourage the entry of new competitors in the telecommunications
industry and are designed to prevent anti-competitive practices. Currently,
large incumbent local exchange carriers, such as the regional Bell operating
companies, are regulated as "dominant" carriers, while competitive local
exchange carriers, like us, are considered "nondominant" carriers. Dominant
carriers face more detailed regulatory scrutiny. As a nondominant carrier, we
are subject to relatively minimal Federal Communications Commission regulation.

o TARIFF. We may install and operate facilities for the transmission of
domestic interstate communications without prior Federal
Communications Commission authorization. The Federal Communications
Commission requires us to file periodic reports concerning our
interstate circuits and deployment of network facilities, and offer
interstate services on a nondiscriminatory basis, at Jjust and
reasonable rates. We also remain subject to Federal Communications
Commission complaint procedures.

The Federal Communications Commission adopted an order in 1996 (the
"Detariffing Order") which eliminated the requirement that nondominant
interstate carriers maintain tariffs on file with the Federal
Communications Commission for domestic interstate services. On April
28, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the D.C. Circuit upheld the

Commission's decision. The Federal Communications Commission
subsequently issued a notice establishing a 9-month transition to
mandatory detariffing. This transition period was subsequently

extended. However, by July 31, 2001, carriers must cancel all tariffs
for interstate domestic interexchange services. After that date, the
terms and conditions pursuant to which domestic providers offer
service to customers will be governed by contract. On March 16, 2001
the Federal Communications Commission adopted a mandatory detariffing
requirement for most international interexchange services provided by
non-dominant carriers. The Commission provided a nine month transition
period to permit carriers to adjust to this additional detariffing
requirement. The Federal Communications Commission is currently
considering whether to expand the mandatory detariffing requirement to
the interstate access services provided by competitive local exchange
carriers.
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o ACCESS CHARGES. The Federal Communications Commission has granted
incumbent local exchange carriers significant flexibility in pricing
their interstate special and switched access services. We anticipate
chat this pricing flexibility will result in incumbent local exchange
carriers lowering their prices in high traffic density areas, where
our customers are concentrated.

In late May 2000, the Federal Communications Commission adopted an
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order establishing a five-year plan for reforming federal access
charges. The order provides for reductions in the usage-based and
flat-rate charges assessed by incumbent local exchange carriers or
long distance service providers. The order also provided for increases
over time in the flat-rate monthly charges assessed directly by
incumbent local exchange carriers on residential and business
subscribers. The agency concluded that the plan as adopted would
result in a more rational interstate rate structure, which in turn
would result in more efficient competition.

o UNIVERSAL SERVICE REFORM. The Federal Communications Commission
implemented the provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996
relating to the preservation and advancement of universal telephone
service in 1997. All telecommunications carriers providing interstate
telecommunications services, including us, must contribute to the
universal service support funds. On October 8, 1999, the Federal
Communications Commission released an order implementing changes to
its universal service rules to comply with a decision of the Fifth
Circuit Court of Appeals. Among other changes, the Federal
Communications Commission revised its rules concerning assessment of
carriers' interstate and international revenues for universal service
contribution. The Federal Communications Commission narrowed the scope
of the contribution base, removing intrastate end-user
telecommunications revenues from the assessment, consistent with the
opinion of the Fifth Circuit Court of Appeals.

STATE REGULATION

We believe that most, if not all, states in which we operate or propose
to operate require a certification or other authorization to offer intrastate
and local services. These certifications generally reguire a showing that the
carrier has adequate financial, managerial and technical resources to offer the
proposed services in a manner consistent with the public interest. We have
obtained state authority for the provision of our competitive local exchange and
exchange access services and long distance services in those states where we
currently operate and we plan to obtain additional state authorizations as our
business expansion plans require. In most states, we are required to file
tariffs setting forth the terms, conditions and prices for services that are
classified as intrastate.

Some states also impose reporting, customer service and quality
requirements, as well as unbundling and universal service requirements on
competitive local exchange carriers. In addition, we are subject to the outcome
of proceedings held by state commissions to determine state regulatory policies
with respect to incumbent local exchange carrier and competitive local exchange
carrier competition, geographic build-out, mandatory detariffing and other
issues relevant to competitive local exchange carrier operations. Some states
have adopted state-specific universal service funding obligations.

In addition to obtaining state certifications, we must negotiate terms
of interconnection with the incumbent local exchange carriers before we can
begin providing local exchange and exchange access services. Our executed
agreements are subject to the approval of the state commissions. The appropriate
commissions have approved each of our current agreements and we anticipate state
commission approval of our future interconnection agreements.

We believe that, as the degree of local competition increases, the
states will offer the incumbent local exchange carriers increasing pricing
flexibility. This flexibility may present the incumbent local exchange carriers
with an opportunity to subsidize services that compete with our services with
revenues generated from non-competitive services, thereby allowing incumbent
local exchange carriers to offer competitive services at prices below the cost
of providing the service. We cannot predict the extent to which this may occur,
but it could have a material adverse effect on our business.
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We also may be subject to requirements in some states to obtain prior
approval for, or notify the state commission of, any transfers of control, sales
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of assets, corporate reorganizations, issuances of stock or debt instruments and
related transactions.

LOCAL GOVERNMENT AUTHORIZATIONS. We are required to obtain street use
and construction permits and licenses and/or franchises to install and expand
our fiber optic networks using municipal rights-of-way. In some municipalities
where we have installed or anticipate constructing networks, we will be required
to pay license or franchise fees based on a percentage of gross revenues or on a
per foot basis, as well as post performance bonds or letters of credit. We are
actively pursuing permits, franchises and other relevant authorities for use of
rights-of-way and utility facilities in a number of cities.

FRANCHISES AND PERMITS

The construction of a mnetwork reguires us to obtain municipal
franchises and other permits. These rights are typically the subject of
non-exclusive agreements of finite duration providing for the payment of fees or
the provision of services by us to the municipality without compensation. In
addition, we must secure rights-of-way and other access rights which are
typically provided under non-exclusive multi-year agreements, which generally
contain renewal options. Generally, these rights are obtained from utilities,
incumbent local exchange carriers, other competitive local exchange carriers,
railroads and long distance carriers. The Telecommunications Act of 1996
requires most utilities to afford access to rights-of-way to competitive local
exchange carriers on non-discriminatory terms and conditions and at reasonable
rates. However, there can be no assurance that delays and disputes will not
occur. Our agreements for rights-of-way and similar matters generally require us
to indemnify the party providing such rights. Such indemnities could make us
liable for actions (including negligence) of the other party.

EMPLOYEES

As of February 28, 2001, we had 1,266 full time employees. None of our employees
are represented by a labor union or subject to a collective bargaining
agreement, nor have we experienced any work stoppage due to labor disputes. We
believe that our relations with our employees are good. The labor market in the
telecommunications industry is currently very competitive and we compete for
qualified personnel with many of our competitors. We Dbelieve that our
compensation and benefits package is competitive in the telecommunications
industry. See Item 7 of this Report on Form 10-K - "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations--Certain Factors Which
May Affect Our Future Results -- The Future Success of Our Business Depends Upon
Key Personnel."

GEOGRAPHIC AREAS

We have no foreign operations. All of our networks are located in, and
all of our revenues are attributable to, the United States.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES.

We are headquartered in Bedminster, New Jersey and recently expanded
the space that we lease in our building from 20,000 to 50,000 square feet of
office space. This recent expansion should be sufficient to meet any of our
corporate headquarters space requirements for the near future. The lease
requires us to pay an annual base lease rent of approximately $1.0 million
{adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer price index), plus operating
expenses through 2012. We rent this space from a company in which a trust for
the benefit of Mr. Kamine's children has an ownership interest. See Item 11 of
this Report on Form 10-K - "Executive Compensation - Compensation Committee
Interlocks and Insider Participation.”

We also maintain an operations center and additional administrative
offices in Lawrenceville, Georgia. The Lawrenceville premises is approximately
104,000 square feet held under a lease that expires in 2011. Our annual base
rental obligation for these premises is $1.3 million (adjusted periodically for
changes in the consumer price index), plus operating expenses. We also own or
lease facilities in each of our existing Tier III markets for central offices,
sales offices and the location of our switches and related equipment. We lease
collocation space for our Internet infrastructure equipment in our Nationwide
Data Platform cities. We expect to lease an additional 50,000 square feet of
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space in Lawrenceville, Georgia starting in the second half of 2001 at an annual
cost of $650,000. This additional facility should be sufficient to satisfy our
near term space requirements.

We believe that our facilities are in good conditiom, are suitable for
our operations and that, if needed, suitable alternative space would be readily
available.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS.

We are from time to time involved in 1litigation incidental to the
conduct of our business. There is no pending legal proceeding to which we are a
party which, in the opinion of our management, is likely to have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.

ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS.

No matters were submitted to a vote of security holders during the
fourth quarter of 2000.

PART II
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS.

There is currently no established trading market for our Common Stock,
$0.01 par value per share. As of March 30, 2001, there were ten holders of
record of our Common Stock.

We have never declared nor paid cash dividends on our Common Stock and
do not presently anticipate paying any cash dividends on our Common Stock in the
foreseeable future. We currently expect that earnings, if any, will be retained
for growth and development of our business.

As a holding company, we depend upon the receipt of dividends and other
cash payments from our operating subsidiaries in order to meet our cash
requirements. Pursuant to the terms of our Amended and Restated Loan and
Security Agreement, dated as of February 15, 2000, among certain of our
principal operating subsidiaries and a group of lenders led by First Union
National Bank, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent (the "Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility"), those subsidiaries are restricted in their ability to
pay dividends on their capital stock. The indentures applicable to our 13 1/2%
Senior Notes due 2009 and our 12 1/2% Senior Discount Notes due 2008,
respectively, impose certain restrictions upon our ability to pay dividends on
our capital stock.

Subject to the foregoing and to any restrictions which may be contained
in any future indebtedness which we may incur, the payment of cash dividends on
our Common Stock will be within the sole discretion of our Board of Directors,
and will depend upon the earnings, capital requirements and financial position
of the Company, applicable requirements of law, general economic conditions and
other factors considered relevant by our Board of Directors.

On January 1, 2000, March 6, 2000, April 1, 2000, May 1, 2000, June 6,
2000, July 1, 2000 and October 1, 2000, the Company granted options to purchase
an aggregate of 255,674 shares of its Common Stock to employees and directors of
the Company, as well as independent contractors who perform services for the
Company, under the 1998 Stock Purchase and Option plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and Affiliates. No consideration was received for the
issuance of the options. The options have various exercise prices with 127,500
exercisable at an exercise price of $75 per share, 2,500 exercisable at an
exercise price of $125 per share, 64,508 exercisable at an exercise price of
$250 per share, and 61,166 exercisable at an exercise price of $300 per share.
The issuance of these options was made in reliance upon the exemption from the
registration requirements of the Securities Act provided by Section 4(2) of the
Act, on the basis that the transactions did not involve a public offering.
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ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA.

The selected financial data set forth below for the years ended
December 31, 1996, 1997, 1998, 1999 and 2000 were derived from our audited
financial statements and those of our predecessors. The data presented below
should be read in conjunction with Item 7 "Management's Discussion and Analysis
of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and the consolidated financial
statements and notes thereto included in Item 8 “Financial Statements and
Supplementary Data."

Year Ended December 31,

{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA}

STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS DATA:

$ 205 5 3,417 $ 22,425 $ 64,313 $ 209,195
Operating expenses:
Network operating costs:
Non-cash stock option compensation... 19 1,110 566 2,387 2,731
Other network operating costs........ 1,361 5,482 27,69% 81,678 169,593
Selling, general and administrative:
Non-cash stock option compensation... 221 12,760 6,514 27,446 31,040
Other selling, general and
administrative... - 2,216 12,176 34,171 B4, 434 162,275
Depreciation and amortizati 287 2,508 9,257 29,077 76,129

Total operating expenses............... 4,104 34,034 442,568

Loss from operations.................oiaonn (3,899) (30,617) {55,782) {160, 709) {233,373)
Other expense {(a)........ - - - (4,297) -
Interest income.......... - 513 8,818 8,701 11,784
Interest expense (b)........... .e (596) {2,582) (29,789) (69, 411) (136,393}
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle..................c...n (4,495) {32,686) (76, 753) (225,716) (357,982)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle (e} ... ... ...l - - - - {1,708}
Net 108B. . ..o voeeenamncneionnnneannnnnsns (4,495) 132,686} (76, 753) (225,716} {359,687)
pividends and accretion on redeemable preferred

BEOCK ..t i it e e - {8,904) (18,285) (81,633) (94,440)
Net loss applicable to common shareholders... S (4,495) $ (41,590) $ (95,038) $(307,349) 5 (454,127)
Net loss per common share before cumulative

effect of change in accounting principle.. § (7.49) $ (64.93) § (114.42) $ (360.88) $ (529.22})
Cunnilative effect of change in accounting

principle (€) ........ieieniiniiiiiians - - - - (1.99)
Net loss per common share.................... § (7.49) $ (64.93) $ (114.42) $ (360.988) $ (531.21)
Proforma amounts assuming the change in

accounting principle was applied retroactively:
Net loss applicable tc common shareholders.. 5 (4,495) $ (41,746} $ (95,424) $(309,054) $  {452,422)
Net loss per common share.................... $ (7.49) $ (65.17) $ (114.88) $ (362.88) $ (529.22)
Weighted average number of common shares

OULBLARAING. . ...t iiieceeeeeeaos 600 641 a3 B52 855
OTHER FINANCIAL DATA:
Capital expenditures {(d}..................... $ 9,111 $ 61,146 $ 161,803 5 440,733 $ 457,651
Adjusted EBITDA(®) ....... .. ... ... .. (3,372) (14,241) {39,445) (101,799) (122,673)
EBITDA(®) .. ..ttt it et e (3,612) (28,111) (46,528) {135,929) {157, 244)
Cash used in operating activities............ (2,687) (8,676) {33,573) {98,293) (146,448)
Cash used in investing activities. . {10,174} (62,992) (180,198) {277,078) (488,952)
Cash provided by financing activities........ 14,314 85,734 219,399 440,156 659,411
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Year Ended December 31,
1996 1897 1998 1993 2000
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(IN THOUSANDS)
BALANCE SHEET DATA:
Cash and cash equivalents.................... $ 1,487 $ 15,553 $ 21,181 § 85,966 $ 109,977
Restricted investments....... 88,571 100,086

(2,345) 3,672 {1,392) {57,007} 163,116}

Working capital................ e

Networks, property and equipment, 12,347 71,371 224,890 639,324 1,021,684
Total AaBBeLB. ... .0 cc ittt .- 16,715 95,943 311,310 886,040 1,331,275
Long-term notes payable.....................- 12,330 €1,277 41,414 235,000 728,173
Other long-texrm debt.........c..vuininnnnnnns - - 267,811 576,137 615,181
Redeemable preferred stock................... - 35,925 52,033 203,790 472,765
Redeemable common stock and warrants......... - 11,736 22,979 46,680 62,380
Total nonredeemable equity {(deficiency)...... 389 {26,673) (104,353) (384,413) (B19,471)

(a) During the second quarter of 1999, we recorded a $4.3 million charge to
other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The net
amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 1999.

{b) Excludes capitalized interest of (i) $103,000 for 1996, (ii) $854,000 for
1997, (iii) $5.1 million for 1998, (iv) $6.6 million for 1999 and (v) $10.4
million for 2000. During the construction of our networks, the interest
costs related to construction expenditures are capitalized.

(¢) 1In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), REVENUE RECOGNITION IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS. SAB 101 provides additional guidance in applying generally
accepted accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial
statements. Through December 31, 1999, we recognized installation revenue
upon completion of the installation. Effective January 1, 2000, in
accordance with the provisions of SAB 101, we are recognizing installation
revenue over the average contract period. The cumulative effect of this
change in accounting principle resulted in a charge of approximately $1.7
million which was recorded in the quarter ended March 31, 2000. For the
year ended December 31, 2000, the net effect of adopting this change in
accounting principle was a deferral of the recognition of $3.0 million of
revenue, which increased net loss for the year by $3.56 per share. Revenue
for the year ended December 31, 2000 includes $1.7 million of revenues
that, prior to the accounting change, had been recognized through December
31, 1999.

(d) The figure for 1997 includes $2.0 million related to the acquisition of a
network.

(e) Adjusted EBITDA consists of earnings (loss) before net interest, income
taxes, depreciation and amortization charges, stock option compensation
expense (a non-cash charge), other expense and cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle. EBITDA consists of earnings (loss) before all of
the foregoing items except stock option compensation expense and other
expense. These items are provided because they are measures commonly used
in the telecommunications industry. They are presented to enhance an
understanding of our operating results and they are not intended to
represent cash flow or results of operations in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. Adjusted EBITDA and EBITDA are not
calculated under generally accepted accounting principles and are not
necessarily comparable to similarly titled measures of other companies.
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS
OF OPERATIONS.

YOU SHOULD READ THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS TOGETHER WITH OUR
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS, INCLUDING THE NOTES AND THE OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION
APPEARING ELSEWHERE IN THIS REPORT. DUE TO OUR LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY,
STARTUP NATURE AND RAPID GROWTH, PERIOD-TO-PERIOD COMPARISONS OF FINANCIAL DATA
ARE NOT NECESSARILY INDICATIVE, AND YOU SHOULD NOT RELY UPON THEM AS AN
INDICATOR OF OUR FUTURE PERFORMANCE. THE FOLLOWING DISCUSSION INCLUDES
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS. SEE "--CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE
RESULTS".

OVERVIEW
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We are a rapidly growing fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. We offer these
services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, long distance carriers and wireless service providers. Our
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier IIT markets, and providing data services on a nationwide basis.

We provide a full suite of broadband communications services in 37 Tier
ITTI markets, which we define as markets with a population between 100,000 and
750,000. We own and operate robust fiber-based networks and switching equipment
in all of our Tier III markets, which are predominantly located in the South,
Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. We will continue to expand in
our existing Tier III markets because we believe that these markets have
attractive growth attributes and are typically less competitive than larger
markets. Our customers in these markets include: AT&T, Boeing, City of Augusta,
Columbia Hospital, NASA, Pillsbury, State of Wisconsin, Texas A&M University and
Wal-Mart.

We also provide nationwide data services under long-term guaranteed
revenue contracts. Under these contracts, we provide local Internet access
infrastructure and other enhanced data services and will be providing Voice over
Internet Protocol beginning in the second half of 2001. Currently, we have
contracts representing approximately $280 million in annualized revenues in
approximately 140 markets. We expect these markets to be operational by the
second quarter of 2001. The Internet infrastructure we are deploying includes
the latest technology platforms £from Cisco and Nortel, which we believe will
result in a cost-effective and technologically superior solution for our
customers.

TIER III MARKETS. We have installed fiber-based SONET networks, or
self- healing synchronous optical networks, using a Class 5 switch in all of our
37 markets. Our fiber optic networks are initially designed and built to reach
approximately 80% of the business access lines in each of our markets, typically
requiring a local fiber loop of about 30 to 40 miles.

As our switches have become operational, our operating margins have
improved meaningfully. Our operating margins have also improved due to increased
on-network revenues relative to resale revenues. On-network revenues are
revenues earned from services provided on our network, including by direct
connection to our switch, unbundled network element or dedicated line. Resale
revenues are generated when traffic is carried completely on the incumbent local
exchange carriers' facilities. On-network revenues have increased from
approximately 37% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 1998 to
approximately 95% of our revenues for the year ended December 31, 2000.

NATIONWIDE DATA PLATFORM. We currently provide Internet access
infrastructure using remote access servers manufactured by Cisco and Nortel
which we are deploying in our 41 supernodes, including ten in our existing Tier
III markets. Supernodes are concentration points for high-speed connectivity to
the Internet.

Under the terms of our existing guaranteed revenue contracts, we
provide the routing and ancillary equipment for each supernode, as well as data
transport service from the incumbent 1local exchange carrier to our supernode
location. Our customers pay us a fixed price per port and compensate us for
certain expenses, including space, power and transport, that we may incur above
an agreed level. This structure provides highly predictable revenues and costs
over the life of each contract, currently ranging from 42 to 51 months. These
contracts began generating revenues during the third quarter of 2000. Revenues
will continue to increase as the contracts are phased in through the third
quarter of 2001. These contracts started providing positive margins beginning
with the commencement of revenues in the third quarter of 2000.
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We purchased approximately $134.4 million of equipment (the "KMC
Funding V Equipment”) relating to these contracts during the first quarter of
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2000. We sold this eguipment to General Electric Credit Corporation and CIT
Lending Services Corporation, and jeased it back from them, during the second
quarter of 2000. We purchased an additional $168.6 million of equipment {the
"KMC Funding Equipment") relating to these contracts during the second quarter
of 2000 and signed an agreement in November 2000 with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson
North American Leasing, Inc. to finance -this equipment by means of a 48 month
term loan. In March 2001, we entered into two financing transactions (the "KMC
Funding V Monetization" and the "KMC Funding Monetization," respectively) and
repaid the remaining balance on this term loan and exercised our purchase option
on the KMC Funding V Equipment under the operating lease. See "--Liquidity and
Capital Resources" below for a detailed description of these transactions.

The table below provides selected key operational and financial data on a
consolidated basis as of the following dates:

Quarter Ended

December March 31, June 30, September December

31, 1989 2000 2000 30, 2000 31, 2000

Tier II1 operational markets.... 34 35 3s 3s 37
Route miles...........c.imueennn 1,475 1,724 1,989 2,178 2,285
Fiber miles...... ... ccirennenns 94,119 110,335 122,376 134,952 140,988
C0l1loCationS. . cvue v 81 111 124 125 134
CUSEOMEYS . . ot nemesmrnsnsannnnes 6,060 7,305 8,513 9,990 11,602
Total buildings connected....... 4,108 5,615 7,088 9,085 9,745
Total lines in service.......... 318,031 480,079 767,992 1,865,390 2,284,375
On-network revenues(a)(b)....... 87% 88% 93% 96% 97%
Resale revenues(a)(c)........... 13% 12% 7% 1% 3%

(a) As a percentage of total revenues.

(b) On-network revenues are revenues earned from services provided on our
network, including by direct connection to our switch, unbundled network
element or dedicated line.

(c) Resale revenues are generated when traffic is carried completely on the
incumbent local exchange carriers' facilities.

REVENUE. Our revenue is derived from the sale of local switched
services, long distance services, Centrex-type services, private line services,
special access services and Internet access infrastructure. In prior years, a
significant portion of our revenue was derived from the resale of switched
services. We have transitioned the majority of our customers on-network and as a
result the portion of our revenue related to the resale of switched services has
decreased from 63% of total revenue for the year ended 1998 to 5% of total
revenue for the year ended 2000.

RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION. We recognized reciprocal compensation revenue
of approximately $9.7 million, or 15.1% of our total revenue for 1999 and
approximately $18.2 million or 8.7% of our total revenue for the year ended
December 31, 2000. In May 2000, we reached a resolution of our claims for
payment of certain reciprocal compensation charges, previously disputed by
BellSouth Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment
that resolved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, we agreed
with BellSouth on future rates for reciprocal compensation, setting new
contractual terms for payment. Our prior agreement with BellSouth provided for a
rate of $.009 per minute of use for reciprocal compensation. Under the terms of
the new agreement, the rates for reciprocal compensation which will apply to all
local traffic, including ISP-bound traffic, will decrease over time. The
reduction will be phased in over a three-year period beginning with a rate of
$.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, $.00175 per minute of use from
April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and $.0015 per minute of use from April 1,
2002 through March 31, 2003.
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In March 2001, we filed a formal complaint against Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company with the Kansas Corporation Commission seeking payment of past
due reciprocal compensation for calls to Internet service providers. We cannot
predict the outcome of this proceeding.

We are currently pursuing resolution of this issue with other incumbent
local exchange carriers. Our goal is to reach mutually acceptable terms for both
outstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all traffic. We
cannot assure you that we will reach new agreements with these carriers on
favorable terms

As of December 31, 2000, we have provided reserves which we believe are
sufficient to cover any amounts which may not be collected, but we cannot assure
you that this will be the case. Our management will continue to consider the
circumstances surrounding this dispute periodically in determining whether
additional reserves against unpaid balances are warranted.

OPERATING EXPENSES. Our principal operating expenses consist of network
operating costs, selling, general and administrative expenses, stock option
compensation expense and depreciation and amortization. Network operating costs
include charges from termination and unbundled network element charges; charges
from incumbent local exchange carriers for resale services; charges from long
distance carriers for resale of long distance services; salaries and benefits
associated with network operations, billing and information services and
customer care personnel; franchise fees and other costs. Network operating costs
also include a percentage of both our intrastate and interstate revenues which
we pay as universal service fund charges. National data platform operating
expenses include space, power, transport, maintenance, staffing, sales, general
and administrative and rental expenses under our operating lease agreements.
Certain of these costs are passed through to the carrier customer which allows
us to limit our maintenance and servicing costs to predetermined levels, and to
receive additional revenues for any costs incurred in excess of such
predetermined levels. Selling, general and administrative expenses consist of
sales personnel and support costs, corporate and finance personnel and support
costs and legal and accounting expenses. Depreciation and amortization includes
charges related to plant, property and eguipment and amortization of intangible
assets, including franchise acquisition costs. Depreciation and amortization
expense will increase as we place additional equipment into service expanding
our existing networks.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense includes interest charges on our
senior notes, senior discount notes, our senior secured credit facilities and
our Internet infrastructure equipment financings. Interest expense also includes
amortization of deferred financing costs.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

REVENUE. Revenue increased 225% from $64.3 million for 1999 to $209.2
million for 2000. This increase is attributable to the fact that our Tier III
Market business derived revenues from 37 markets during 2000 compared to 23
markets during most of 1999 as well to the fact that our Nationwide Data
Platform business began to generate revenues for the first time in the third
quarter of 2000. In addition, each of our Tier III markets that generated
revenues during 1999 generated increased revenues during 2000.

On-network local switched services, long distance services,
Centrex-type services, private line services, special access services and
Internet access infrastructure revenues ("On-network revenues") represented 95%
of total revenue in 2000, compared to 69% of total revenue in 1999; while
revenue derived from the resale of switched services ("Resale revenue")
represented 5% and 31% of total revenue, respectively, during those periods.
On-network revenues include revenues derived from services provided through
direct connections to our own networks, services provided by means of unbundled
network elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier and services
provided by dedicated line. In addition, we recognized reciprocal compensation

revenue of approximately $18.2 million or 8.7% of our total revenue for the year
2000.
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NETWORK OPERATING COSTS. Network operating costs, excluding non-cash
stock compensation expense, increased 108% from $81.7 million for 1999 to $169.6
million for 2000. This increase of $87.9 million is due primarily to the
increase in the number of markets in which we operated in 2000 as compared to
1999 combined with expenses related to the startup of our Nationwide Data
Platform business in the third quarter of 2000. The components of this increase
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are $48.3 mwillion in direct costs associated with our Tier III Market and
Nationwide Data Platform businesses which provide on-network services, including
leasing unbundled network elements, and resale services, $18.0 million in
personnel costs, §$7.3 million in network support services, $5.4 million in
consulting and professional services costs, $2.7 million in telecommunications
costs and $6.2 million in other direct operating costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding non-cash stock compensation expense,
increased 92% from $84.4 million for 1999 to $162.3 million in 2000. This
increase of $77.9 million is due primarily to the increase in the number of
markets in which we operated in 2000 as compared to 1999 as well as to the fact
that our Nationwide Data Platform business commenced operations for the first
time in the third quarter of 2000. The components of this increase are $38.0
million in personnel costs, $11.0 million in professional costs, $5.7 million in
facility costs, $3.2 million in telecommunications costs and $2.4 million in
travel related costs, as well as increases in other marketing and general and
administrative costs aggregating approximately $17.6 million, including amounts
related to our arrangement with KNT.

STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION EXPENSE. Stock option compensation expense, a
non-cash charge, in aggregate increased 16% from $29.8 million in 1999 to $34.6
million for 2000. This increase is due primarily to an increase in the estimated
fair value of our common stock, as well as the grant of additional option awards
during 2000.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased 162% from $29.1 million for 1999 to $76.1 million for 2000. This
increase is due primarily to depreciation expense associated with the greater
number of networks in commercial operation during 2000.

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income increased 36% from $8.7 million in
1999 to $11.8 million in 2000. The increase is due primarily to larger average
cash, cash equivalent and restricted cash balances during 2000 as compared to
1999, as well as receiving interest at a higher average rate.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense increased 97% from $69.4 million in
1999 to $136.4 million in 2000. Of this increase, $49.2 million is related to
higher borrowings under our senior secured credit facilities, $15.1 million is
attributable to the fact that our $275 million of 13 1/2% senior notes, issued
in May 1999, were outstanding throughout all of 2000, $4.9 million is due to
accretion and amortization of financing costs on our senior discount notes and
$1.6 million is due to our Nationwide Data Platform business. The individual
increases above were offset by a $3.8 million increase in capitalized interest
related to network construction projects which increased from $6.6 million
during 1999 to $10.4 million during 2000.

NET LOSS BEFORE CUMULATIVE EFFECT OF CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLE.
For the reasons stated above, net loss before cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle increased from $225.7 million for 1999 to $358.0 million
for 2000.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999 COMPARED TO YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

REVENUE. Revenue increased 187% from $22.4 million for 1998 to $64.3
million for 1999. This increase is primarily attributable to revenues derived
from 23 markets we serviced during 1999, as compared to 1998 when we derived
revenues from only 8 markets during the entire year, and began to derive
revenues from 14 additional markets during the fourth quarter of 1998. In

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 27
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC — 10-K — Annual Report Date Filed: 4/17/2001

addition, each of our markets that generated revenues during 1998 generated
increased revenues during 1999.

During 1998 and 1999, we recognized revenue which we believed was due
to us from incumbent local exchange carriers for terminating local traffic of
Internet service providers. We determined to recognize this revenue because we
concluded, based upon all of the facts and circumstances known to us at the
time, including numerous state public service commission and state and federal
court decisions upholding competitive local exchange carriers' entitlement to
reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of those amounts was
reasonably assured. On October 13, 1999, however, the Louisiana Public Service
Commission ruled that local traffic to Internet service providers in Louisiana
is not eligible for reciprocal compensation. As a result of that ruling, we
determined that we could no longer conclude that realization of amounts
attributable to termination of local calls to Internet service providers in
- Louisiana was reasonably assured. Accordingly, we recorded an adjustment to
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reduce revenue in the third quarter of 1999, which reversed all reciprocal
revenue recognized related to Internet service provider traffic in Louisiana for
the entire vyear of 1998 and the first nine wmonths of 1999. The adjustment
amounted to $4.4 mwillion, of which $1.1 million relates to the year ended
December 31, 1998 and $3.3 million relates to the nine months ended September
30, 1999.

Although incumbent local exchange carriers, such as BellSouth (prior to
our May 2000 settlement with them), have generally withheld payments of amounts
due for reciprocal compensation to competitive local exchange carriers like us
for calls to Internet service providers and disputed the entitlement of
competitive local exchange carriers to reciprocal compensation for such calls in
jurisdictions other than Louisiana as well, we have determined to continue to
recognize amounts due to us for reciprocal compensation for such calls in
jurisdictions other than Louisiana and South Carolina {(which is the only other
jurisdiction in which we currently operate that has adopted a similar position)
because we have concluded, based upon all of the facts and circumstances,
including numerous state public service commissions and state and federal court
decisions upholding competitive local exchange carriers’ entitlement to
reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of such amounts is
reasonably assured.

Revenue for 1998 and 1999 included $14.2 million and $19.7 million,
respectively, derived from resale services and an aggregate of $8.2 million and
$44.6 million (including, after giving effect to the third quarter 1999 $4.4
million adjustment for Louisiana, $9.7 million of revenue related to reciprocal
compensation during 1999), respectively, of revenue derived from on-network
services. Resale services represented 63% of revenue in 1998 and 31% of revenue
in 1999.

NETWORK OPERATING COSTS. Network operating costs, excluding non-cash
stock compensation expense, increased 195% from $27.7 million in 1998 to $81.7
million in 1999. This increase of $54.0 million was due primarily to the
increase in the number of markets in which we operated in 1999. The components
of this increase are $27.7 million in direct costs associated with providing
on-network services, including leasing unbundled network elements, and resale
services, $14.3 million in personnel costs, $4.2 million in network support
services, §5.1 million in consulting and professional services costs, $600,000
in facility costs, $900,000 in travel costs and $1.2 million in
telecommunications and other direct operating costs.

SELLING, GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES. Selling, general and
administrative expenses, excluding non-cash stock compensation expense,
increased 147% from $34.2 million in 1998 to $84.4 million in 1999. This
increase of approximately $50.2 million resulted primarily from increases of
$25.4 million in personnel costs, $5.1 million in professional costs, §3.4
million in travel related costs, as well as increases in other marketing and
general and administrative costs aggregating approximately $16.3 million. These
increases were due primarily to the greater number of networks in commercial
operation during 19599.
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STOCK OPTION COMPENSATION EXPENSE. Stock option compensation expense, a
non-cash charge, increased 320% from an aggregate of $7.1 million for 1998 to
$29.8 million for 1999. This increase primarily resulted from an increase in the
estimated fair value of our common stock, as well as the grant of additional
option awards during 19995.

DEPRECIATION AND AMORTIZATION. Depreciation and amortization expense
increased from $9.3 million for 1998 to $29.1 million for 1999, primarily as a
result of depreciation expense associated with the greater number of networks in
commercial operation during 1993.

OTHER EXPENSE. During the second gquarter of 1999, we recorded a $4.3
million charge to other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration
award. The net amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June
1999.

INTEREST INCOME. Interest income remained consistent from $8.8 million
in 1998 to $8.7 million in 1999.

INTEREST EXPENSE. Interest expense increased from $29.8 million in 1998
to $69.4 million in 1999. Of this increase, $23.3 million is attributable to the
fact that our $275 million of 13 1/2% senior notes were issued in May 1999,
$10.9 million is attributable to higher borrowings under our senior secured
credit facility and $6.9 million is attributable to increased accretion year
over year on our senior discount notes. The individual increases above were

26

offset by a $1.5 million increase in capitalized interest related to network
construction projects from $5.1 million during 1998 to $6.6 million during 1999.

NET LOSS. For the reasons stated above, net loss increased from $76.8
million for 1998 to $225.7 million for 1999.

STOCK COMPENSATION PLAN

During 1996 and 1997, one of our principal operating subsidiaries
granted options to purchase shares of its common stock pursuant to its 1996
Stock Plan. On June 26, 1998, our board of directors adopted the 1998 Stock
Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and
Affiliates which authorizes the grant of options to purchase shares of our
common stock and replaced our 1996 Stock Plan. During the third quarter of 1998,
we replaced the options to purchase shares of common stock previously granted
under the 1996 Stock Plan, with options to purchase shares of our common stock
granted under the 1998 Stock Plan. We also granted new options to some
additional employees. Upon cancellation of the outstanding options under the
1396 Stock Plan, we reversed all compensation expense previously recorded with
respect to those options. Additionally, to the extent the fair value of our
common stock exceeded the exercise price of the options granted under the 1598
Stock Plan, we recognized compensation expense related to such options to the
extent vested. The net effect of the cancellation of the options outstanding
under the 1996 Stock Plan and the grant of options under the 1998 Stock Plan
resulted in a credit to compensation expense of approximately $600,000 in 1998.

Some of the provisions in the stock option awards granted under the
1998 Stock Plan will necessitate that the awards be treated as variable stock
compensation awards pursuant to Accounting Principles Board Opinion No. 25.
Accordingly, compensation expense will be charged or credited periodically
through the date of exercise or cancellation of such stock options, based on
changes in the value of our stock as well as the vesting schedule of such
options. These compensation charges or credits are non-cash in nature, but could
have a material effect on our future reported net income (loss).

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOQURCES

We have incurred significant operating and net losses as a result of
the development and operation of our networks. We expect that such losses will
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continue as we emphasize the development, construction and expansion of our
networks and build our customer base. As a result, we do not expect there to be
any cash provided by operations in the near future. We will also need to fund
the expansion of our networks and our capital expenditures related to our
nationwide data platform business. We have financed our operating 1losses and
capital expenditures with equity invested by our founders, preferred stock
placements, credit facility borrowings, equipment loans, operating leases,
monetizations and our 12 1/2% senior discount notes and 13 1/2% senior notes.

During the first quarter of 2000, we amended, restated and combined our
prior senior secured credit facility and our prior Lucent facility in a single
$700.0 million facility. Under this amended senior secured credit facility, our
subsidiaries which own our 37 existing networks are permitted to borrow up to an
aggregate of $700.0 million, subject to certain conditions, for the purchase of
fiber optic cable, switches and other telecommunications equipment and, once
certain financial conditions are met, for working capital and other general
corporate purposes.

During the quarter ended June 30, 2000, our subsidiary, KMC Telecom,
IV, Inc., closed a new senior secured term loan from Lucent Technologies Inc.
Proceeds from this loan were to be used to purchase or install Lucent products.
This loan agreement was subsequently terminated by both parties and the
equipment purchased under it was returned to Lucent.

In July 2000, we issued shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock
to Lucent Technologies, Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners, CIT
Lending Services, Nassau Capital Partners and Harold N. Kamine, our Chairman,
for aggregate gross proceeds of $182.5 million (See Note 7, "Redeemable and
Nonredeemable Equity-SERIES G PREFERRED STOCK," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K). The Series
G Convertible Preferred Stock has an aggregate liquidation preference of $182.5
million and an annual cumulative dividend equal to 7% of the liquidation
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preference. Payment of the unpaid dividends is triggered by an initial public
offering in which we receive aggregate gross proceeds of at least $80.0 million
or a merger, consolidation or sale of substantially all of our assets. In such
event, we may elect to pay these dividends with additional shares of our common
stock.

In March 2001, we entered into a financing transaction (see Note 18,
vSubsequent Events-KMC FUNDING MONETIZATION," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K) that
resulted in us receiving unrestricted gross proceeds of $325.0 from a secured
loan. The KMC Funding Monetization is secured by the future cash flows from our
Nationwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in June 2000
(see Note 9, "Significant Contracts and Customers," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K). The KMC
Funding Monetization requires that the principal and interest be paid on a
monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related contract. We
retain the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this contract which
are expected to be approximately 25% of the monthly cash flows (from which
on-going operational expenses must be paid). We realized net proceeds of
approximately $145.5 million after using the proceeds to pay off the 48 month
term loan we obtained pursuant to our November 2000 agreement with Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing, Inc. to finance our acquisition of the

KMC Funding Equipment (see Note 5, "Long-Term Debt - KMC FUNDING INTERNET
INFRASTRUCTURE EQUIPMENT FINANCING," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K), as well as to pay

any financing fees and expenses related to the monetization.

In March 2001, we entered into a financing transaction (see Note 18,
"Subsequent Events-KMC FUNDING V MONETIZATION," of the Notes to Consolidated
Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form 10-K) that
resulted in us receiving unrestricted gross proceeds of $225.4 million from a
secured loan. The KMC Funding V Monetization is secured by the future cash flows
from our Nationwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in
March 2000 (see Note 9, "Significant Contracts and Customers," of the Notes to
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Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form
10-K). The KMC Funding V Monetization requires that the principal and interest
be paid on a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related
contract. We retain the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this
contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the monthly cash flows
(from which on-going operational expenses must be paid). We realized net
proceeds of approximately $125.5 million after using the proceeds to exercise
our purchase option with respect to the KMC Funding V Equipment which we were
leasing from GECC and CIT Lending Services Corporation under an operating lease,
as well as to pay any financing fees and expenses related to the monetization.

in March 2001, we purchased approximately $65.0 million of Voice over
Internet Protocol equipment in association with entering into an agreement with
Qwest (see Note 18, "Subsequent Events - VOIP EQUIPMENT CONTRACT," of the Notes
to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item 8 of this Report on Form
10-K) . We expect to enter into a financing transaction to fund the cost of this
equipment; however, we can give no assurances that we will be able to obtain
such financing.

In April 2001, we further amended our amended senior secured credit
facility. The aggregate amount of the facility remains at $700.0 million and
funds are available under it for the same purposes. The primary changes effected
by the amendment were (i} changes to certain of the financial covenants to
reflect changes in the Company's business since the amended senior secured
credit facility was entered into and to permit continued compliance with those
covenants by the borrowers in accordance with its revised business plan, (ii) to
conform the repayment schedules of both term loans and the revolving loan, (iii)
to require the borrowers to make an aggregate of $100 million in prepayments on
the loans in accordance with an agreed schedule, (iv) to require the Company to
use a portion of the proceeds of future equity issuances in excess of a
cumulative $200.0 million to make additional prepayments on the loans, (v} to
require the Company to use agreed upon portions of the proceeds from certain
sales of assets to make additional prepayments on the loans, (vi) to require the
Company to use agreed upon portions of the excess cash flows from its Nationwide
Data Platform business to make additional capital contributions to the
borrowers, (vii) to require the Company to restructure those of its subsidiaries
involved in its Nationwide Data Platform business under a single subsidiary
holding company, the shares of which will be pledged as additional collateral
for KMC Holding's obligations under its guaranty of the amended senior secured
credit facility, and (viii) to increase the interest rate. In connection with
the amendment, the lenders also waived failures by the borrowers to comply with
certain of the prior financial covenants as of March 31, 2001, and the Company
made aggregate capital contributions to the borrowers of $200.0 million. In
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addition, the collateral for KMC Holdings' guaranty of the facility was expanded
to include substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings. For a more detailed

discussion of this amendment see Note 18, "Subsequent Events - AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY," included in Item 8 of this Report on
Form 10-K.

As of March 30, 2001, we had $656.2 million and $550.4 million of
indebtedness outstanding under the amended senior secured credit facility and
the combined KMC Funding V Monetization and KMC Funding Monetization,
respectively. Subject to certain conditions, as of that date we had an
additional $43.8 million in borrowing capacity available under the amended
senior secured facility. The KMC Funding V Monetization and KMC Funding
Monetization were both fully drawn at that date.

Net cash provided by financing activities from borrowings and equity
issuances was $659.4 mwillion and our net cash used in operating and investing
activities was $635.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2000.

We made capital expenditures of $161.8 million in 1998, $440.7 million
in 1999, and $457.7 million in 2000. Of the total capital expenditures for 2000,
$280.7 million was related to the Tier III Markets business segment and $177.0
million was for the Nationwide Data Platform business segment. As of March 30,
2001, we had outstanding purchase commitments aggregating approximately $32.2
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million related to the purchase of fiber optic cable and telecommunications
equipment under our agreements with certain suppliers and service providers. We
currently anticipate capital expenditures to be approximately $120.0 million for
the Tier III Markets business for 2001. It is our intention that capital
expenditures for the Nationwide Data Platform business will be financed
separately and therefore will not affect our current liquidity position. The
majority of the Tier III Market expenditures are expected to be made for network
expansion to facilitate the offering of our services. We expect to continue to
incur operating losses while we expand our business and build our customer base.
Actual capital expenditures and operating losses will depend on numerous
factors, including the nature of future expansion and acquisition opportunities
and factors beyond our control, including economic conditions, competition,
regulatory developments and the availability of capital.

We believe that our cash and borrowings available under the amended
senior secured credit facility will be sufficient to meet our liquidity needs to
fund operating losses and capital expenditure requirements for all of our 37
Tier III markets, our current Nationwide Data Platform contracts and other
existing commitments into the second quarter of 2002.

However, in the event that our plans change, the assumptions upon which
our plans are based prove inaccurate, we expand or accelerate our business plan
or we determine to consummate acquisitions, the foregoing sources of funds may
prove insufficient and we may be reguired to seek additional financing sooner
than we currently expect. Additional sources of financing may include public or
private equity or debt financings, leases and other financing arrangements. We
can give no assurance that additional financing will be available to us or, if
available, that it can be obtained on a timely basis and on acceptable terms.

We believe that the present market prices of our 12 1/2% senior
discount notes and our 13 1/2% senior notes represent an opportunity for us to
reduce our long-term debt. Accordingly, our subsidiaries have recently made, and
may in the future make, purchases of senior discount notes and/or senior notes
in the open market from time to time at then prevailing market prices. Certain
of our officers and directors may also make purchases for their own account. We
may utilize a portion of our unrestricted cash to pay for any purchases of
senior discount notes or senior notes that we may make.

CERTAIN FACTORS WHICH MAY AFFECT OUR FUTURE RESULTS

WE HAVE A LIMITED OPERATING HISTORY AND HAVE INCURRED SIGNIFICANT NEGATIVE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATIONS AND SIGNIFICANT NEGATIVE EBITDA SINCE INCEPTION

We commenced material operations in 1996 and, as a result, we have a
limited operating history and limited revenues. We have only recently completed
the process of building many of our networks. Accordingly, you will have limited
historical financial information upon which to base your evaluation of our
business. Our prospects for financial and operational success must be considered
in light of the risks, expenses and difficulties frequently encountered by
companies in their early stage of development.
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In connection with the expansion of our networks we have incurred and
expect to continue to incur significant negative cash flow from operations while
we expand our business and build our customer base. Our negative cash flow and
negative EBITDA have increased in each of the last five years. Our operating
losses and cash used by operations will increase as a result of the continuation
of our expansion strategy.

For the year ended December 31, 2000, we had revenues of $209.2
million, negative cash flow from operations of $146.4 million and negative
EBITDA of $157.2 million.

We might not achieve or sustain profitability or at any time have
sufficient resources to meet our capital expenditure and working capital
requirements. We will need to significantly increase our revenues and cash flows
to meet our debt service obligations.
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OUR FUTURE GROWTH MAY REQUIRE SUBSTANTIAL ADDITIONAL CAPITAL

Our current plans for expansion may require substantial additional cash
from outside sources. We currently anticipate that our capital expenditures for
2001 will be approximately $120.0 million for the Tier III Markets business. It
is our intention that capital expenditures for the Nationwide Data Platform
business will be financed separately and therefore will not affect our current
liquidity position. We will also have substantial net losses to fund and our
substantial cash requirements will continue into the foreseeable future.

Additional sources of financing may include:

o public or private equity or debt financings,
o capitalized leases, and
[<] other financing arrangements.

Additional financing may not be available to us on acceptable terms,
within the limitations contained in the documents relating to our indebtedness,
or at all. Failure to obtain such additional financing could result in the delay
or abandonment of some or all of our development and expansion plans and
expenditures.

WE HAVE A SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNT OF INDEBTEDNESS, SIGNIFICANT DEBT SERVICE
REQUIREMENTS AND REFINANCING RISKS

As of March 31, 2001, we had approximately $1.8 billion of indebtedness
outstanding. In addition, wuntil February 15, 2003, our senior discount notes
accrete in value instead of paying cash interest. At March 31, 2001, the
carrying value of the notes was $350.8 million, which will accrete to a
principal amount of $460.8 million as of February 15, 2003. Subsequently, we
will be required to make semi-annual cash interest payments on these notes. Our
substantial indebtedness could have important consequences. For example, it
could:

o limit our ability to obtain additional financing in the future,

(<] require us to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from
operations to make payments on our indebtedness, thereby reducing
the funds available to us for other purposes, including working
capital and capital expenditures,

o limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to changes in,
our business or the industry in which we operate,

o] make us more highly leveraged than many, if not all, of our
competitors, which could place us at a competitive disadvantage
relative to our competitors that are less leveraged, and

o increase our vulnerability in the event of a downturn in our
business.
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The documents under which our long-term debt was issued contain a

number of significant covenants. These covenants limit, among other things, our
ability to:

(o) borrow additional money,
[o) create liens,
o engage in sale-leaseback transactions,
[o) pay dividends,
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o make investments,

° sell assets,

o issue capital stock,

o redeem capital stock,

o merge or consolidate, and

o enter into transactions with our stockholders and affiliates.

The 1limitations contained in the documents under which our long-term
debt was issued are subject to a number of important gqualifications and
exceptions. In particular, while the indentures applicable to our senior
discount notes and our senior notes restrict our ability to incur additional
indebtedness, they do permit us to incur an unlimited amount of purchase money
indebtedness. If we incur new indebtedness, the related risks that we and our
subsidiaries now face could intensify.

Under our credit facilities, certain of our subsidiaries are required
to meet a number of financial tests at the end of each quarter. In addition,
these subsidiaries are required to prepay at least $100 million of indebtedness
under those credit facilities prior to May 1, 2002. Failure to comply with these
tests or to make the required prepayments could limit their ability to make
further borrowings, or could result in a default under our credit facilities,
allowing the lenders to accelerate the maturity of the loans made thereunder.
Our subsidiaries might not be able to comply with these covenants in the future.

If we fail to meet our obligations under the documents governing our
indebtedness there could be a default on our indebtedness which would permit the
holders of substantially all of our indebtedness to accelexate the maturity
thereof.

In connection with the build-out of our networks and expansion of our
services, we recorded negative EBITDA and our earnings were insufficient to
cover fixed charges for 1998, 1999 and 2000. After giving effect to the increase
in interest expense resulting from the establishment of the forty-eight month
term loan with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing Inc. which we
entered into in November 2000 to purchase the KMC VI Equipment (and which was
later repaid with a portion of the proceeds from the KMC Funding Monetization)
and the termination of the KMC Telecom IV credit facility as if they occurred on
January 1, 2000, our earnings would have been insufficient to cover fixed
charges by $370.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2000. We might not be
able to improve our earnings before fixed charges or EBITDA. If we do not, we
will not be able to meet our debt service obligations.
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BECAUSE WE ARE A HOLDING COMPANY, WE WILL BE RELIANT ON FUNDS FROM OUR
SUBSIDIARIES TO REPAY OUR INDEBTEDNESS AND OUR SUBSIDIARIES' CREDITORS MAY HAVE
PRIORITY ON THOSE FUNDS

We are a holding company whose sole material asset is the common stock
of our subsidiaries. In connection with the amended senior secured credit
facility, we have reaffirmed the pledge of all of the common stock of our
operating subsidiaries that own our 37 existing networks to the lenders under
the amended senior secured credit facility. These operating subsidiaries, which
currently own substantially all of our operating assets related to our Tier III
Markets business, are directly liable to the lenders under the amended senior
secured credit facility. 1In addition, under a recent amendment to the amended
senior secured credit facility, we will be required to pledge to the lenders all
of the common stock of a subsidiary holding company which we will organize to
hold all of the common stock of the operating subsidiaries through which we
conduct our National Data Platform business.

We must rely upon dividends and other payments from our operating
subsidiaries to generate the funds necessary to meet our obligations, including
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the payment of principal and interest on the notes. These subsidiaries are
legally distinct from us and have no obligation to pay amounts due by us. The
ability of our operating subsidiaries to make such payments to us will be
subject to, among other things, the availability of funds, the terms of each
operating subsidiary's indebtedness and applicable state laws. In particular,
the terms of the operating subsidiaries' credit facilities prohibit them from
paying dividends and principal and interest on intercompany borrowings unless,
among other things, they are in compliance with certain financial covenants.
Accordingly, we cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain any funds from
our operating subsidiaries.

Claims of creditors of our subsidiaries, including trade creditors,
will generally have priority as to the assets of such subsidiaries over the
claims of the Company and the holders of our indebtedness and capital stock. We
have unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of the amended senior secured
credit facility.

THERE ARE RISKS IN CONNECTION WITH OUR NATIONWIDE DATA PLATFORM BUSINESS

We have entered into a number of guaranteed revenue contracts with
carrier customers whereby we, as the local service provider, will provide data
telecommunications services to these companies for approximately 42 to 51
months. At the present time we have commitments under these agreements to
provide more than one million ports.

To date, we have principally financed the capital cost of the equipment
associated with the provision of this service. We are wholly dependent upon
payment of fees under agreements with the carrier customers in order to fund the
required financing.

We do not have an option to renew or extend these agreements. In
addition, given the rapid change in technology in the telecommunications
industry, the equipment may be obsolete at the end of the term.

Currently, more than 96% of the ports comprising our nationwide data
platform are subject to our contracts with Qwest. Any failure by Qwest to make
the contracted payments would have a material adverse effect on our business.

OUR INDUSTRY IS EXTREMELY COMPETITIVE AND MANY OF OUR COMPETITORS HAVE
GREATER RESOURCES THAN WE HAVE

The telecommunications industry is extremely competitive, particularly
with respect to price and service. We face competition in all of our markets,
primarily from incumbent local exchange carriers. Generally, our incumbent local
exchange carrier competitor is one of the regional Bell operating companies. The
incumbent local exchange carriers:

[} have long-standing relationships with their customers,

o have financial, technical and marketing resources substantially
greater than we have,

o have the potential to fund competitive services with revenues from
a variety of businesses, and

32

o) currently benefit from a number of existing regulations that favor
these carriers.

We do not believe that Tier III markets can profitably support more
than two facilities-based competitors to the incumbent local exchange carrier.
In several of our markets we face competition from two or more facilities-based
competitive local exchange carriers. After establishing and funding a network in
a given market, the marginal cost of carrying an additional call is negligible.
Accordingly, in Tier III markets where there are three or more facilities-based
competitive local exchange carriers, we expect substantial price competition. We
believe that such markets may be unprofitable for one or more operators.
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Potential competitors in our markets include:

[} microwave carriers,

o wireless telecommunications providers,

o cable television companies, utilities, regional Bell operating
companies seeking to operate outside their current local service
areas,

o independent telephone companies, and

<) large long distance carriers, such as AT&T and MCI WorldCom, which
have begun to offer integrated local and long distance

telecommunications services.

Industry consolidation and the formation of strategic alliances within the
telecommunications industry, as well as the development of new technologies,
could also give rise to significant new competitors for us.

A large portion of our Nationwide Data Platform business will be
conducted in larger Tier I and Tier II markets. We expect that our primary
competitors in this business will be both incumbent local exchange carriers and
other competitive local exchange carriers. Because the regional Bell operating
companies and other incumbent local exchange carriers tend to focus their
efforts on Tier I and Tier II markets, they will have a significantly greater
local presence in these markets. In addition, due to the larger size of the
markets, there are a greater number of facilities-based competitive local
exchange carriers competing for data business in these markets than we usually
face in Tier III markets. For this reason, we generally will not enter these
markets to offer nationwide data platform services unless we have a pre-existing
agreement with a significant customer justifying our presence in the market .

One of the primary purposes of the Telecommunications Act of 1996 is to
promote competition, particularly in local markets. Recent regulatory
initiatives allow competitive local exchange carriers like us to interconnect
with incumbent local exchange carrier facilities. This provides increased
business opportunities for us. However, these regulatory initiatives have been
accompanied by increased pricing flexibility for, and relaxation of regulatory
oversight of, the incumbent local exchange carriers. If the incumbent 1local
exchange carriers engage in increased volume and discount pricing practices or
charge us increased fees for interconnection to their networks, or if the
incumbent local exchange carriers delay implementation of our interconnection to
their networks, our business may be adversely affected.

To the extent we interconnect with and use incumbent local exchange
carrier networks to serve our customers, we are dependent upon their technology
and capabilities. The Telecommunications Act imposes interconnection obligations
on incumbent local exchange carriers, but we cannot assure you that we will be
able to obtain the interconnections we require at desirable rates, terms and
conditions. In the event that we experience difficulties in obtaining
appropriate and reasonably priced service from the incumbent local exchange
carriers, our ability to serve our customers would be impaired.

Both the long distance and data transmission businesses are extremely
competitive. Prices in both businesses have declined significantly in recent
years and are expected to continue to decline. Our long distance services face
competition from large carriers such as AT&T, MCI WorldCom and Sprint. We will
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rely on other carriers to provide transmission and termination for our long
distance traffic and therefore will be dependent on such carriers.

Although we expect to experience declining prices and increasing price
competition, we might not be able to achieve or maintain adequate market share
or revenue, or compete effectively, in any of our markets.

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 36
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC — 10-K — Annual Report Date Filed: 4/17/2001

INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS HAVE DISPUTED THE ENTITLEMENT OF
COMPETITIVE LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS TO RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION FOR CERTAIN CALLS
TO INTERNET SERVICE PROVIDERS

In most states in which we provide services, our arrangements with the
incumbent local exchange carriers provide that every time a customer of an
incumbent local exchange carrier connects to an Internet service provider that
is one of our customers, we are entitled to receive payment from the incumbent
local exchange carrier. This payment is called "reciprocal compensation." The
incumbent local exchange carriers have objected to making reciprocal
compensation payments and are seeking to have this changed by legislation,
regulation and litigation. The incumbent local exchange carriers have threatened
to withhold, and in many cases have withheld, reciprocal compensation for such
calls. We recognized reciprocal compensation revenue of approximately $18.2
million or 8.7% of our revenue, related to these calls for the year ended
December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, the receivable related to these
calls was approximately $7.2 million.

In May 2000, we reached a resolution of our claims for payment of
certain reciprocal compensation charges previously disputed by BellSouth
Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment that
resolved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, we agreed with
BellSouth on future rates for reciprocal compensation, setting new contractual
terms for payment. Our prior agreement with BellSouth provided for a rate of
$.009 per minute of use for reciprocal compensation. Under the terms of the new
agreement, the rates for reciprocal compensation which will apply to all local
traffic, including Internet service provider-bound traffic, will decrease over
time. The reduction will be phased in over a three year period beginning with a
rate of $.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, $.00175 per minute of use
from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and §.0015 per minute of use from
April 1, 2002 through March 31, 2003.

In March 2001, we filed a formal complaint against Southwestern Bell
Telephone Company with the Kansas Corporation Commission seeking payment of past
due reciprocal compensation for calls to Internet service providers. We cannot
predict the outcome of this proceeding.

We are currently pursuing resolution of this issue with other incumbent
local exchange carriers. Our goal is to reach mutually acceptable terms for both
outstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all traffic. We
cannot assure you that we will reach new agreements with these carriers on
favorable terms; nor can we assure you that changes in legislation or regulation
will not adversely affect our ability to collect reciprocal compensation.

WE RELY ON INCUMBENT LOCAL EXCHANGE CARRIERS FOR INTERCONNECTION AND
PROVISIONING

Although the incumbent local exchange carriers are legally required to
vunbundle" their network into discrete elements and permit us to purchase only
the network elements we need to originate and terminate our traffic, thereby
decreasing operating expenses, we cannot assure you that this unbundling will be
timely or result in favorable prices. We cannot service a new customer unless
the incumbent local exchange carrier sends a technician to physically alter its
network (known as provisioning). We have experienced delays in provisioning
unbundled network elements from incumbent local exchange carriers in the past
and these delays have hampered our revenue growth. These delays may continue to
occur.

In January 1999, the Supreme Court overturned the Federal
Communications Commission's rules regarding which network elements must be
unbundled by the incumbent local exchange carriers, and remanded to the Federal
Communications Commission the question of which network elements are “"necessary"
to competing carriers like us. The Supreme Court also remanded several issues to
the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit for further consideration.

On November 5, 1999, the Federal Communications Commission issued an
order establishing the network elements that must be offered by incumbent local
exchange carriers as unbundled network elements. The Federal Communications
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Commission required that most, but not all, of the network elements specified in
its initial order, as well as some new network elements not included on the
original 1list, be made available by incumbent local exchange carriers. The
Federal Communications Commission also changed the obligation of incumbent local
exchange carriers to provide certain combinations of network elements. Various
parties have sought reconsideration and filed appeals of the Federal
Communications Commission's order. Those appeals and petitions are pending and
there can be no assurance as to their ultimate outcome.

on July 18, 2000, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the 8th Circuit issued
a decision in which it upheld the Federal Communication Commission's use of a
forward-looking methodology to establish prices for network elements, but the
Court vacated the agency's rule that the methodology applied should be based on
the use of the most efficient telecommunications technology currently available
and the lowest cost network configuration. Rather, the Court held that the
methodology must be applied based on the costs of the incumbent local exchange
carriers' existing facilities and equipment. The issue was remanded to the
Federal Communications Commission for further consideration. The Court's ruling
is currently under review by the U.S. Supreme Court. A decision by the Supreme
Court is expected in the Court's fall 2001 term. We are unable to provide
assurances as to the outcome of the Supreme Court case or of the remand
proceeding that must be conducted by the Federal Communications Commission.

The 8th Circuit also affirmed its prior decision to vacate the Federal
Communications Commission rule that required incumbent local exchange carriers
to provide combinations of network elements that are not ordinarily combined in
their networks. The Court's decision keeps in place the system whereby carriers
cannot obtain network element cowbinations unless the incumbent local exchange
carrier has already combined the elements in its network today. The Supreme
Court is currently reviewing this issue as well as the pricing issue described
above.

WE MUST COMPLETE THE INSTALLATION OF OUR CUSTOMER SERVICE SYSTEMS

Sophisticated information and processing systems are vital to our
growth and our ability to monitor costs, bill customers, provision customer
orders and achieve operating efficiencies. Initially, our billing and
information systems were designed largely in-house with partial reliance on
third-party vendors. These systems generally met our needs due in part to our
low volume of bills and orders. As we have expanded our services and our
customer base, the need for sophisticated billing and information systems has
increased significantly. We have embarked upon a program to implement a full
suite of order management, customer service, billing and financial applications.
These applications include electronic order tracking software developed by Eftia
0SS Solutions 1Inc., providing comprehensive billing functions developed by
Billing Concepts Systems, Inc./APTIS, Inc. and financial software developed by
PecpleSoft, Inc. The installation of the operational support systems has been
substantially completed with development and expansion to continue as needed.
The initial installation of the new billing and financial systems was completed
during the second quarter of 1999. Additional development of the billing and
financial systems will be phased in over time as needed. Our failure to:

fe) implement the new operational support systems on a timely basis,

o adequately identify all of our information and processing needs,
or

o upgrade our systems as necessary,

could have a material adverse effect on our business.

THERE ARE RISKS IN PROVIDING LONG DISTANCE SERVICES

We enter into wholesale agreements with long distance carriers to
provide us with long distance transmission capacity. These agreements typically
provide for the resale of long distance services on a per minute basis (some
with minimum volume commitments or volume discounts). The negotiation of these
agreements involves estimates of future supply and demand for long distance
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telecommunications transmission capacity, as well as estimates of the calling
pattern and traffic levels of our future long distance customers. Should we fail
to meet our minimum volume commitments, if any, pursuant to these agreements, we
may be obligated to pay underutilization charges or we may lose the benefit of
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all or a portion of the volume discounts we have negotiated. Likewise, we may
underestimate our need for long distance facilities and therefore be required to
obtain the necessary transmission capacity in "spot markets"” which are often
more expensive than longer term contracts. We cannot assure you that we will
acquire 1long distance capacity on favorable terms or that we can accurately
predict long distance prices and volumes so that we can generate favorable gross
margins from our long distance business.

WE ARE SUBJECT TO SIGNIFICANT GOVERNMENT REGULATION WHICH MAY CHANGE IN AN
ADVERSE MANNER

Our networks and the provision of switched and private line services
are subject to significant regulation at the federal, state and local levels.
The telecommunications industry in general, and the competitive local exchange
carrier industry in particular, are undergoing substantial regulatory change and
uncertainty. We cannot assure you that future regulatoxry, judicial or
legislative changes, or other regulatory activities, will not have a material
adverse effect on our business. For a further discussion of regulatory issues
see Item 1 - "Business--Regulation" of this Report on Form 10-K.

WE WILL BE DEPENDENT UPON KNT NETWORK TECHNOLOGIES LLC FOR OUTSIDE NETWORK
RELATED CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTENANCE SERVICES

We are currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of our
construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC, a company independently
owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau Capital, our principal stockholders.
Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties, effective June 1, 2000, we
transferred substantially all of the employees of our construction division to
KNT. KNT is providing construction and maintenance services to us and is being
reimbursed for all of the direct costs of these activities. In addition, we are
currently funding substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative
costs at an amount not to exceed $15 million per annum. We will be dependent
upon KNT for performance of our network related construction needs.

WE ARE DEPENDENT ON AGREEMENTS WITH THIRD PARTIES FOR OUR RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND
FRANCHISES

We must obtain easements, rights-of-way, entry to premises, franchises
and licenses from various private parties, actual and potential competitors and
state and local governments in order to construct and operate our networks, some
of which may be terminated upon 30 or 60 days' notice to us. We cannot assure
you that we will obtain rights-of-way and franchise agreements on acceptable
terms or that current or potential competitors will not obtain similar
rights-of-way and franchise agreements that will allow them to compete against
us. If any of our existing franchise or license agreements were terminated or
not renewed and we were forced to remove our fiber optic cables or abandon our
networks in place, such termination could have a material adverse effect on our
business. Our agreements for rights-of-way and similar matters generally require
us to indemnify the party providing such rights. Such indemnities could make us
liable for actions (including negligence of the other party).

THE TELECOMMUNICATIONS INDUSTRY IS SUBJECT TO RAPID TECHNOLOGICAL CHANGE

The telecommunications industry is subject to rapid and significant
changes in technology, and we must rely on third parties for the development of
and access to new technology. We cannot predict the effect of technological
changes on our business. For example, Voice over Internet Protocol technology is
not currently being used to any material extent for many of the purposes for
which we believe it will in the future. There may be significant obstacles in
implementing Voice over Internet Protocol for these purposes. We believe our
future success will depend, in part, on our ability to anticipate or adapt to
these changes and to offer, on a timely basis, services that meet customer
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demands. In particular, service offerings in the data transmission sector of the
industry are expanding rapidly. We may not be able to anticipate or adapt to
such changes and to offer, on a timely basis, services that meet customers’
demands .

THE FUTURE SUCCESS OF OUR BUSINESS DEPENDS UPON KEY PERSONNEL

We believe that the efforts of a number of key management and operating
personnel will largely determine our success and the loss of any of such persons
could adversely affect us. We do not maintain so-called "key man" insurance on
any of our personnel. We have employment agreements with Mr. Lenahan, our Chief
Executive Officer, Mr. Young, our President and Chief Operating Officer, and Mr.
Stewart, our Chief Financial Officer, which expire at various times from March
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2003 through April 2005. Our success will also depend in part upon our ability
to hire and retain highly skilled and qualified operating, marketing, financial
and technical personnel. The competition for qualified personnel in the
telecommunications industry is intense and, accordingly, we may not be able to
hire or retain necessary personnel.
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ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK.

Market risks relating to our operations result primarily from changes
in interest rates. A substantial portion of our long-term debt bears interest at
a fixed rate. However, the fair market value of the fixed rate debt is sensitive
to changes in interest rates. We are subject to the risk that market interest
rates will decline and the interest expense due under the fixed rate debt will
exceed the amounts due based on current market rates. We have entered into two
interest rate swap agreements with commercial banks to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on a portion of our outstanding variable rate debt.
The agreements effectively fix the interest rate on $415.0 million of our
outstanding variable rate borrowings under our amended senior secured credit
facility due 2007. A $325.0 million interest rate swap agreement entered into in
April 2000 terminates in April 2004 and a $90.0 million interest rate swap
agreement entered into in June 2000 terminates in June 2005. For other
information regarding the swap agreements, see Note 6, "Interest Rate Swap
Agreements," of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements included in Item
8 of this Report on Form 10-K.

The following table provides information about our significant
financial instruments that are sensitive to changes in interest rates (in
millions) :

Fair value

December Future Principal Payments

Long-Term Debt:
Fixed Rate:
Senior Discount Notes,
interest payable at 12 1/2%,
maturing 2008............ $ 85.3 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - 5§ 340.2 $ 340.2
Senior Notes, interest
payable at 13 1/2%, maturing
2009. .. ... i 109.5 - - - - - 375.0 275.0
Variable rate:
Amended Senior Secured
Credit Pacility, interest
variable (11.87% at
December 31, 2000)(a).... 618.2 - .6 54.5 9%.9 136.5 326.7 618.2
Interner Infrastructure
Equipment Financing (8.75%

at December 31, 20060) (a). 110.0 18.3 31.4 1.4 28.9 - - 110.0

Interest rate swaps:
Variable rate for fixed rate {13.2) - - - - - - -
Total $ 909.8 $ 18.3 $ 32.0 $ 85.9 $ 120.8 $ 126.5 $§ 941.9 $ 1,343.4

(a) Interest is based on a variable rate, which at our option, is determined by
either a base rate or LIBOR, plus, in each case, a specified margin.
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA.

The following statements are filed as part of this Annual Report on
Form 10-K:
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc. as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the related consolidated
statements of operations, redeemable equity, nonredeemable equity and cash flows
for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2000. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's wmanagement.
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based
on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States. Those standards reguire that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above
present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. as of December 31, 1999 and 2000, and the
consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2000, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States.
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/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

MetroPark, New Jersey
April 17, 2001
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XMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
{IN THOUSANDS)
DECEMBER 31
1999 2900
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivVAlents. .. ... ... i e, s 85,966 s 109,977
Restricted investments 37,125 37,125
Accounts receivable, net of all
$10,921 in 1999 and 2000, respectively 27.373 47,141
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,375 14,888
TOLALl CUXXOOU BBBEES. . ...ttt it ettt atatae e anoaonasnansasenoaeassatasnosnsroeaneeasann 151,839 209,131
Long-term restricted investments........ 51,446 62,931
Networks, property and eguipment, net... 639,324
Intangible aesets, net................_. 3,602
Deferred financing costs, net. 38,816
Lo T2 1,013
$ 886,040
=amzsaszzazs
LIABILITIES,
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNT S PaAYAb L. . .. e $ 167,490 $ 180,803
Accrued expenses..... 37,047 73,605
L b T gy Y 4,309 17,839
Total current liabilities 208,846 272,247
Notes payable........ . . 235,000 728,173
Senior notes payable 275,000 275,000
Senior discount notes payable 301,137 340,181
Total liabilitims. .. ... e e 1,019,583 1,615,601

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable equity:

Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK preferred stock, par value $.01 per
share; authorized: 630 shares in 1999 and 2000; shares issued and

outstanding:
Series E, €5 shares in 1999 and 75 shares in 2000 ($74,954 liquidation
B2 o T U 50,770 61,9592
Series P, 44 shares in 1999 and 48 shares in 2000 ($47,866 liquidation
Dbt 2 T 41,370 50,568

Redeemable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value $.01 per share; 499
shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding:
Series A, 124 ghares in 1999 and 2000 ($12,380 liquidation preference)......... 71,349 109,272
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Series C, 175 shares in 1999 and 2000 ($17,500 liguidation preference).........
Redeemable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value §.01 per
share; 2,500 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding:
Series G-1, -0- shares in 1999 and 59 shares in 2000 ($19,900 liquidation

8 b oy T P
Series G-2, -0- shares in 1999 and 481 shares in 2000 ($162,600 liquidation
BT b T R R R
Redeemable common stock, shares issued and ocutstanding, 224 in 1999 and 2000 -
Redeemable COMMON BLOCK WATZADLS .. ..t o.uneueinraoonraorotaaoriosaeearsaaernscoasasons

Total redeemable equity........ e e e e e e e e e e
Nonredeemable equity (deficiency):
Common stock, par value $.01 per share; 4,250 shares authorized, issued and
outstanding, €29 shares in 1999 and 637 shares im 2000......
Unearned COMPENBALION. ... ... uiuiiiiniiaenanneneennnenanun
Accumulated deficit

Total nonredeemable equity (deficiency)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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XMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATBD STATEMENTS OF OPERATIO!

40,301

33,755
12,928

250,470

6
(9,163)
(375,256)

(384,413}

$ 886,040

NS

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

72,701

19,435

158,797
45,563
16,817

535,145

6
(16,608)
{802,869)

(819,471)

$ 1,331,275

1958 1999 2000
ROV UG . . . ittt e e e e $ 22,425 $ 64,313 $ 209,195
Operating expenses:
Network operating costs:
Non-cash stock option compensation expense............. 566 2,387 2,731
Other network opexating COSES................oneononn.. 27,698 81,678 169,593
Selling, general and administrative:
Non-cash stock option compensation expense............. 6,514 27,446 31,840
Other selling, general and administrative.............. 34,172 84,434 162,275
Depreciation and amortization..................c.cuiiinino. 9,257 29,077 76,129
Total operating eXpenSes......................i..iiioaaaaai.. 78,207 225,022 442,568
Lo8B frOm OPEXALIONB. . .ot ittt et et (55,782) (160, 709) (233,373
Obher @XPEOBE . . .. . e e e -- (4,297 --
Interest income.. 8,818 8,701 11,784
Interest expense. (29,789) (69,411) (136,393)
Net loss before cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle. ... ... ... (76,753) {225,716) (357,982)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........... -- -- (1,705)
DL U T O (76,753) (225,716) (359,687)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred stock......... {18,285) (81,633) (94,440)
Net loss applicable to common shareholders.................... 5 (95,038) $  {307,349) $ (454,127)
Net loss per common share before cumulative effect of change
in accounting principle..... ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., § (114.42) s (360.88) $ (529.22)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle........... -- -- (1.99)
Net loss per common share.............. ... ... . iiiiiiiennnn $ {114 .42) 3 (360.88) $ {§31.21)
azzczanzzzmxs sxzxesmaxezee rEsEmsEmExmzE

Pro forma amounts assuming the change in accounting
principle was applied retroactively:

Net loss applicable to common shareholders.................... $ (95,424) § (309,054) $ (452,422)
= x=mzsmesnces

Net loss per common share. ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ............ $ (114.88) H (362.88) s (529.22)

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding.......... 831 852 B55
Py

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 1999 AND 2000

(IN THOUSANDS)

REDEEMABLE EQUITY

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 124 $ 18,879 150 § 14,667 25 $2,379 -~ 8 -- --

Conversion of Series D Preferred
Stock to Series C Preferred Stock..... 25 2,379 {25) (2,379)
Issuance of common stock RPN
Accretion of redeemable equity..
Payment of dividends on preferred
stock of subsidiary...................
Issuance of warrants..................
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock
options. ... ... ...l
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options to employees...
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options

to non-employees. . .................
Amortizations of unearmed

compensation. ... ........... ...,
Net 1o85. ... oeiem et

11,511 4.597

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1598 124 30,390 175 21,643 -- -- -- -- --

Issuance of Series E Preferred Stock... 60 44,829
Issuance of Series P Preferred Stock... 40
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred

BEOCK .+ o et v e ee et 5 5,004

Reclassification of warrants related
to "put rights”.....................
Exercise of warrants. s
Accretion on redeemahle equxty ......... 40,959 18,658 937
Isguance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options
to employees. .. . ... e
Adjustment to fair value of stock
options to non-employees.............
Amortization of unearned compensatxon
Exercise of stock options
Reclassification of additional
paid-in capital deficiency
Net loss

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 124 71,349 175 40,301

Issuance of Series Gl Preferred Stock..
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock..
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred

Accretion on redeemable equity......... 37,923 32,400 1,271
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options to employees....
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options
to non-employees. ...............
Exercise of stock options
Amortization of unearned compensatxon
Redemption and retirement of Series F
Preferred Stock..................... 4)
Reclassification of additional paid-in
capital deficiency..................
Net 108B.... ... oriieniennnnnnnana..,

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 124 $109,272 175 §72,701 - $ -- 75 $61,992 48

34,817

4,177

2,376

6,654
5,509

(2,965)

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 19388, 1999 AND 2000

(IN THOUSANDS)
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REDEEMABLE EQUITY

Red

Shares Amount Shares Amount Warrants E

Total
eemable
quity

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 -- 3 -- 133 $11,187 § 539 $ 47,651
Conversion of Series D Preferred
Stock to Series C Preferred Stock....
Issuance of common stock...............
Accretion of redeemable equity 91 9,500 9,500
Payment of dividends on preferred 1,618 135 17,861
stock of subsidiary..................
Issuance of warrants...................
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock
[0 > o U o T S
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options to employees....
Issuance and adjustments to fair
value of stock options
tO NON-employees. .. ...vovninneenn.
Amortizations of unearned
compensation
Net 1O0SS.. . iuieneninnreronaannnnsions
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 -~ -- 224 22,305 674 75,012
Issuance of Series E Preferred Stock...
Issuance of Series F Preferred Stock... 44,829
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred 34,817
SEOCK. ittt e it e e
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred 5,004
BEOCK. - it e
Issuance Oof warrantsS...........covecuus 4,177
Reclassification of warrants related 10,606 10,606
to "put rights”........... ... ... ...
Exercise of warrants................... (249) (249)
Accretion on redeemable equity.........
Issuance and adjustments to fair 11,450 1,894 76,274
value of stock opticns
to employees. .. ... ...t
Adjustment to fair value of stock
options to non-employees.............
Amortization of unearned compensation..
Exercise of stock optionsS..............
Reclassification of additional
paid-in capital deficiency...........
Net 1O0SS....rneiinnnerennnnncnnnnnnnnn
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 -- -- 224 33,755 12,925 250,470
Isguance of Series Gl Preferred Stock..
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock.. 59 19,355 19,355
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred 481 158,145 158,145
SLOCK . v ettt e
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred 9,951
SLOCK. .t e e
Accretion on redeemable equity......... 6,654
Issuance and adjustments to fair 732 11,808 3,892 93,535
value of stock options to employees..
Issuance and adjustments to fair --
value of stock options
TO non-employees. .....covuviinne. o
Exercise of stock options.............. --
Amortization of unearned compensation.. --
Redemption and retirement of Series F --
Preferred Stock............ ... . ...,
Reclassification of additional paid-in ) {2,965)
capital deficiency..................
Net 1OSS......0uitiveinnennrnnnnnaeennnn --
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 540 $178,232 224 $45,563 $16,817 $535,145
=xzzxa  E=msazsz zoosEs zaxzszsx szEma=s EE=E=EEzes

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 1999 AND 2000
(IN THOUSANDS)

NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY

Additional
COMMON STOCK Paid-1In
Shares Amount Capital
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 614 $ 6 $§ 15,374
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Series C
Preferred Stock.........oiiiiiniiiiaan,
Issuance of Common stock.....
Accretion of redeemable eq-uxt {17,861)
Payment of dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary... (592)
Issuance of warrantB......... v evnrnvneannn eeee e 10,446
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock options............... {26,191)
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
opLions to empPloyeeB . .. ... it it i e e 27,906
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of atock
options to non-employees............. ... ... ciieieanaan 4,668
Amortizations of unearned compensatlon. . Ce.
R I - T
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1598 614 6 13,7590
Issuance of Series E Preferred Stock... e .
Issuance of Series F Preferred Stock........... -
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock.... . (5,004}
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock. - (4,177)
Issuance of Warrants.... ... .. ... ... ... N 749
Reclassification of warrants related to "put rzghts". B 249
ExerciBe of warrants... ... ... iiiiiiiiiiiii e 1
Accretion on redeemable equity..........coiiiiiiinnnn.s (76,274)
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options Lo employees. .. ... ...ttt 27,286
Adjustment to fair value of stock options to
oo R 1 e T 5,832
Amortization of unearned compensation e .en
Exercise Oof StOCk OpPtiONB. ... ...ttt iuunnennnrennannn 15 333
Reclassification of additional paid-in capital
deficiency........... et tttett et e, 37,255
Net 108B. .. uuneennineinnuiacananaeronnsnnaanceaconeeannnnns
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 629 6 --
Issuance of Series Gl Preferred Stock
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock. {9,951)
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock. (6,654)
Accretion on redeesmable equity..........c.ccoiiiiiiiinan. (93,535)
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
OPLiONS LO @MPlOYEES. ... it iini i ienieinanns s 38,218
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options to non-employees. e PN 3,796
Exercise of Stock options............ 8 562
Amortization of unearned compensation
Redemption and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock...
Reclassification of additicnal paid-in capital
defiCiency . cvrn i e e 67,564
Net 108B.....cvveuunnnn e e et i e e
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 637 $ 6 $ --
SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF REDEEMABLE EQUITY
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998, 1999 AND 2000
(IN THOUSANDS)
NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
Total
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Unearned Accumulated
Compensation Deficit
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1997 $ (6,521) $ (35,532
Conversion of Series D Preferred Stock to Series C
Preferred StOCK. . ..o i eeiieet e nnnernenrrsncnnsaons
Issuance of Common stock.......
Accretion of redeemable equity
payment of dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary...
Issuance Of WaXTanbtB. .. ...uueeeronacenncnanarnascennanns
Cancellation of KMC Telecom stock options............... 4,845
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options tO emPloyeeS. .. ...ttt i i {27,906)
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
options to non-employees
Amortizations of unearned compensation .o 23,758
Net 1088. ... cuiininietennneectnesananeseasnanacraannons (76,753)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1998 {5,824) {112, 285)
Issuance of Series E Preferred Stock
Isguance of Series F Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock........
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock........
Issuance Oof WarXantsS. .. ...vouttentnurnnecnnennrannns
Reclassification of warrants related to "put rights"
Exercise of warrants -
Accretion on redeemable equity.......i.iiiiiiieiianinaann
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock
Options Lo empPloyeesS. .. .. .tiniiinn it aetnesannan {27,286}
Adjustment to fair value of stock options to
NON-EMPlOYES . . ittt ettt erarearernsarnanananas
Amortization of unearned compensation. . 23,947
Exercise of Stock options. ... ... ... ... ... ... ..
Reclassification of additional paid-in capital
L 13 4 X o 1« o P (37,255)
3£ o < - (225,716}
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 1999 $ (9,163) § (375,256)

Issuance of Series Gl Preferred Stock...................
Issuance of Series G2 Preferred Stock..............

Nonredeemable
Equity
(Deficiency)

$

(26,673}

(17,861)

(592)
10,446

(21,346)

4,668
23,758
(76,753)

(104,353}

(5,004}
(4,177)
749
249
1

(76,274)

S,832

23,947

333

(225,716)

$ (384,413)

(9,951)

Stock Dividends of Series E Preferred Stock
Stock Dividends of Series F Preferred Stock RN (6,654)
Accretion on redeemable equity............... ..o, (93,535)
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock

OpLtions £O eMPlOYe®S . . ...ttt iiuitiitenncanenanrennnnn (38,218) -
Issuance and adjustments to fair value of stock

options to nom-employees........... ... i, 3,796
Exercise of Stock OptionS. ... ..t vuviiniiernnnennnenanns 562
Amortization of unearned compensation................... 30,773 30,773
Redemption and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock... {362) (362)
Reclassification of additiomal paid-in capital

deficiency. ... e e e {67,564) -
B 1 o e - 2 (359,687) (359,687)
BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2000 $ (16,608) $ (802,869) $ {819,471)

44

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
{IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31

1998 1999 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
LT e - N § {76,753} $ (225,718) $ (359,687}
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization.......oeeeiaannnnnnnnnnennnannn 9,257 29,077 76,129
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Provision for doubtful ACCOUNEB. ...t vriiereennnaanrenaaannnn 370 5,263 7.875
Non-cash interest expense - 25,356 31,141 45,635
Non-cash stock option compensation expense................... 7,080 29,833 34,571
Changes in assets and liabilities:
ACCOUNtS receivable. . .. ... .. ittt tnnnnrnenenercennen {6,591) (25,097) (27,.643)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets. . {826) {60} (2,513)
Other aBBEtS.......cceccesrrrocascnaranren . (1,821) 3,720 {9)
Accounts payable.. .. 7,449 29,319 31,541
Accrued expenses.. .. 1,719 21,105 34,123
Deferyed TeVeNUE. . .. ccrnnnneeranonnrssasennsancasnssases 1,187 3,122 13,530
Net cash used in operating activities................ ... ... .. (33,573) (98,293) (146, 448)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Construction of networks and purchases of equipment............. (148,580) (318,5386) (476,640)
Acquisitions of franchises, authorizations and related assets... (1,147) (1,992) {926)
Deposit on purchase of eqUIpPmMENt. .. ... cvinriraererrnconcnnrnnn (2,551) - -
Additions to restricted investments. . - - (43,471)
Purchase of investments, net........ (27,920) - -
Redemption Of inVeStMENES. .. ..ouuue e inuneeraranrensronennnenas - 43,450 32,085
Net cash used in investing activities.............c..iiiiiinnnnns (180,198) (277,078) (488,952)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable, net of isguance COStS.............. 938 - 108,475
Proceeds £rom issuance of common stock and warrants,
net of 18BUANCE COBLB. ... .icieraatnoinranersososnnnsennnonsans 20,446 - -
Proceeds from issuance of preferrxed stock and related warrants,
net oOf i88UANCE COBLB...... .. ciiitititrernncceananesaaanannnnn - 91,001 177,500
Issuance costs of credit facilities.... (6,515) (2,300) -
Proceeds from exercise of stock options - 333 562
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net of issuance costs
and purchase of portfolio of restricted investments.......... - 158,286 -
Proceeds from senior secured credit facility, net of issuance
COSE B .t vt i veaens i vsanannstissensoaaassassnonnnatosasmnssunnnnns - 192,836 376,203
Repayment of notes payable............................ . (20,801} - -
Repurchase and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock - - (3,329)

Proceeds from issuance of senior discount notes, net of
1BOUANCE COBEB .+ it ittt tn i itieaeeenasisnsecnasnnnnsnenssnnsenns 225,923 - -

Dividends on preferred stock of subsidiary (592 - -
Net cash provided by financing activities....................... 215,399 440,156 653,411
Net increase in cash and cash equivalentsS..........cccvuieeennnns 5,628 64,785 24,011
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 15,553 21,181 85,966
Cash and cash equivalents, end Of Y@Ar......vevueurnnnnrronnanss $ 21,181 $ 85,966 $ 109,977
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Cash paid during the year for interest, net of amounts

capitalized. . .. i i e i e $ 4,438 $ 29,182 $ 80,374

rxmssssumme e mEmzmrme Emrxmzssmzeen

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2000
1. ORGANIZATION

KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. ("KMC Holdings") is a holding company
formed during 1997 primarily to own all of the shares of its then operating
subsidiaries, KMC Telecom Inc. ("KMC Telecom"), KMC Telecom II, Inc. ("KMC
Telecom II"), KMC Telecom III, 1Inc. ("KMC Telecom III") and KMC Telecom of
Virginia, Inc. KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries are collectively
referred to herein as the Company. All significant intercompany transactions and
balances have been eliminated in consolidation.

The Company is a fiber-based integrated communications provider
offering data, voice and Internet infrastructure services. The Company offers
these services to businesses, governments and institutional end-users, Internet
service providers, 1long distance carriers and wireless service providers,
primarily in the South, Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. The
business has two distinct components: serving communications-intensive customers
in Tier III markets, and providing data services on a nationwide basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
BASIS OF PRESENTATION

On July 1, 1999, the Company acgquired all of the membership interests
of KMC Services LLC.from Harold N. Kamine, the Chairman of the Board of
Directors, for nominal consideration. KMC Services LLC was formed to provide
services to the Company and its customers, initially offering a leasing program
for equipment physically installed at the customer's premises. The acquisition
was accounted for as a combination of entities under common control, and no
changes were made to the historical cost basis of KMC Services LLC's assets.
During the second quarter of 1999, the Company had reduced the carrying value of
its $709,000 1loan receivable from KMC Services LLC to an amount equal to the
value of KMC Services LLC's net assets at the acquisition date. KMC Services LLC
has been consolidated with the Company since July 1, 1999.

The Company has incurred significant operating and net losses as a
result of the development and operation of its networks, and expects that such
losses will continue as it emphasizes the development, construction and
expansion of its networks and building its customer base. As a result, the
Company does not expect there to be any cash provided by operations in the near
future. The Company will also need to fund the expansion of its networks as well
as to fund capital expenditures related to its nationwide data platform
business. To date, the Company has financed its operating losses and capital
expenditures with equity invested by its founders, preferred stock placements,
credit facility borrowings, equipment loans, operating leases, monetizations and
its 12 1/2% senior discount notes and 13 1/2% senior notes. Actual capital
expenditures and operating losses will depend on numerous factors, including the
nature of future expansion and acquisition opportunities and factors beyond the
Company's control, including economic conditions, competition, regulatory
developments and the availability of capital.

As more fully described in Note 18, the Company entered into two
financing transactions in March 2001 which generated aggregate unrestricted net
proceeds of approximately $271.0 million and, in April 2001, further amended its
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility to, among other things, revise certain of
the financial covenants to be less restrictive.

After giving effect to these transactions, management believes that the
Company's cash and borrowings available under the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility will be sufficient to meet its liquidity needs on a going concern basis
to fund operating losses and capital expenditure requirements for all of its
Tier III markets, its current Nationwide Data Platform contracts and other
existing commitments into the second quarter of 2002. However, in the event that
such plans change, the assumptions upon which such plans are based prove
inaccurate, the Company expands or accelerates its business plan or determines
to consummate acquisitions, the foregoing sources of funds may prove
insufficient and the Company may be required to seek additional financing sooner
than currently expected. Additional sources of financing may include public or
private equity or debt financings, leases and other financing arrangements.

46

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of
three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents.

NETWORKS, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Networks, property and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated
depreciation. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives of the
respective assets using the straight-line method for financial statement
reporting purposes.
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The estimated useful lives of the Company's principal classes of assets
are as follows:

Networks:
Fiber optic Systems...... ... itiiiiteniineneennnnnnnnsennanns 20 years
Telecommunications equipment......... ... it 10 years
Furniture and other.. ... ... .. ...t it i i 5 years
Leasehold improvements. .. ...... ittt iiienanenenenncnnens Life of lease

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Costs incurred in developing new networks or expanding existing
networks, including negotiation of rights-of-way and obtaining regulatory
authorizations are capitalized and amortized over the initial term of the
agreements, which generally range from 2 to 7 years. Costs incurred to obtain
city franchises are capitalized by the Company and amortized over the initial
term of the franchises, which generally range from 2 to 7 years.

IMPAIRMENT OF LONG-LIVED ASSETS

The Company records impairment losses on 1long-lived assets used in
operations or expected to be disposed of when impairment indicators are present
and the cash flows expected to be derived from those assets are less than the
carrying amounts of those assets. An impairment loss is measured as the amount
by which the carrying amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset.
There were no material impairments of assets during the year.

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS

The Company capitalizes issuance costs related to its debt. Such costs
are amortized wutilizing the interest method over the lives of the related debt.
The related amortization is included as a component of interest expense, and
amounted to $2,279,000, $3,814,000 and $7,721,000 for the years ended December
31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets are comprised principally of employee 1loans, security
deposits and other deposits.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognized in the period the service is provided, except for
installation revenue which is recorded over the average contract period (see
"ACCOUNTING CHANGE" below). The Company generally invoices customers one month
in advance for recurring services resulting in deferred revenue. However, some
sexrvices, such as reciprocal compensation, are not billed in advance resulting
in unbilled revenue included in accounts receivable. The accounts receivable
balances for services which will be billed in the succeeding month totaled
$5,305,000 and $4,119,000 at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively.

47

ACCOUNTING CHANGE

In December 1999, the Securities and Exchange Commission issued Staff
Accounting Bulletin No. 101 ("SAB 101"), REVENUE RECOGNITION 1IN FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS. SAB 101 provides additional guidance in applying generally accepted
accounting principles to revenue recognition in financial statements. Through
December 31, 1999, the Company recognized installation revenue upon completion
of the installation. Effective January 1, 2000, in accordance with the
provisions of SAB 101, the Company is recognizing installation revenue over the
average contract period. The cumulative effect of this change in accounting
principle resulted in a charge of approximately $1.7 million which was recorded
in the guarter ended March 31, 2000. For the year ended December 31, 2000, the
net effect of adopting this change in accounting principle was a deferral of the
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recognition of $3.0 million of revenue, which increased net loss for the period
by $3.56 per share. Revenue for the year ended December 31, 2000 includes $1.7
million of revenues that, prior to the accounting change, had been recognized
through December 31, 1999.

NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

Earnings per share are calculated in accordance with FASB Statement No.
128, EARNINGS PER SHARE ("Statement 128"). All earnings per share amounts for
all periods have been presented in accordance with the provisions of Statement
128. Diluted earnings per share have not been presented for any period, as the
impact of including outstanding options and warrants would be anti-dilutive.

INCOME TAXES

The Company accounts for income taxes in accordance with FASB Statement
No. 109, "ACCOUNTING FOR INCOME TAXES," which requires that deferred income
taxes be recorded based on differences between the financial reporting and tax
reporting bases of assets and liabilities, using enacted tax rates.

ADVERTISING COSTS

Advertising costs are included in selling, general and administrative
expenses and charged to expense as incurred. For the years ended December 31,
1998, 1999 and 2000, such costs were $2,769,000, 54,080,000 and $6,851,000,
respectively.

USE OF ESTIMATES

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements and
accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION

As permitted by FASB Statement No. 123, ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK-BASED
COMPENSATION ("Statement 123"), the Company has elected to follow Accounting
Principles Board Opinion No. 25, ACCOUNTING FOR STOCK ISSUED TO EMPLOYEES ("APB
25") and related interpretations 1in accounting for its employee stock-based
compensation. Under APB 25, no compensation expense is recognized at the time of
option grant if the exercise price of the employee stock option is fixed and
equals or exceeds the fair market wvalue of the wunderlying common stock on the
date of grant, and the number of shares to be issued pursuant to the exercise of
such option are known and fixed at the grant date. As more fully described in
Note 7, the Company's outstanding stock options are not considered fixed options
under APB 25. The Company accounts for non-employee stock-based compensation in
accordance with Statement 123.

SEGMENT REPORTING

In 1998, the Company adopted FASB Statement No. 131, DISCLOSURES ABOUT
SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AND RELATED INFORMATION ("Statement 131"). Statement
131 uses a management approach to report financial and descriptive information
about an entity's operating segments. Operating segments are revenue-producing
components of an enterprise for which separate financial information is produced
internally for the entity's chief operating decision maker. Under this
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definition, the Company operated within a single segment until the commencement
of our Nationwide Data Platform Business in 2000. See Note 8 for the Company's
detailed segment disclosure.

RECENTLY ISSUED ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Statement
No. 133, ACCOUNTING FOR DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES
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("Statement 133"), which will require the Company to recognize all derivatives
on the balance sheet at fair wvalue. The Company will be required to adopt
Statement 133, as amended by Statement No. 137 which defers the effective date,
as of January 1, 2001. Derivatives that are not hedges must be adjusted to fair
value through income. If the derivative is a hedge, depending on the nature of
the hedge, changes in the fair wvalue of derivatives will either be offset
against the change in fair wvalue of the hedged assets, liabilities, or firm
commitments through earnings or recognized in other comprehensive income until
the hedged item is recognized in earnings. The ineffective portion of a
derivative's change in fair value will be immediately recognized in earnings.
The Company has two interest rate swap agreements to hedge its interest rate
exposure (see Note 6), and the estimated effect of applying Statement 133 as of
December 31, 2000 would have resulted in the fair value of the swaps of $13.2
million being included as an asset with a corresponding credit to other
comprehensive income.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications have been made to the 1998 and 1999
consolidated financial statements to conform with the 2000 presentation.

3. NETWORKS, PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Networks and equipment are comprised of the following:

DECEMBER 31,

(IN THOUSANDS)

Fiber OpLiC SYSLEMS . . ...ttt it ettt ie e eaeeannananns $ 150,647 $ 249,690
Telecommunications eQUIPMENt . ... ... ettt e erernenenaann 436,056 696,683
Furniture and other. . ... ... ... ittt et i tieeiee e 21,397 27,790
Leasehold improOvVemeNnLS. ... ..ttt it it ettt e et 1,811 2,704
[0l E-1u Plai b Nal BB Ko T8 o3 et D o 7=7- TG 66,380 157,075

676,291 1,133,942
Less accumulated depreciation..........oiuiiiniiineinninnann. (36,967) (112,258)

639,324 $ 1,021,684

(73

Costs capitalized during the development of the Company's networks
include amounts incurred related to network engineering, design and construction
and capitalized interest. Capitalized interest related to the construction of
the networks during the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 amounted to
$5,133,000, $6,635,000, and $10,384,000 respectively.

For the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, depreciation
expense was $8,284,000, $27,723,000, and $75,434,000 respectively.
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4. ACCRUED EXPENSES

Accrued expenses are comprised of the following:

DECEMBER 31,
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{IN THOUSANDS)

Accrued compensation........ ... ..ot iiiii i i eaa . $ 11,423 $ 20,068
Accrued interest payable........... ...t 8,544 20,419
Accrued telecommunications costsS.......... ... ...l 3,794 8,125
Accrued costs related to financing activities................. 7,316 1,593
Other accrued EXpPeNSe8. ... ... ot erereneroccanroanrnasansoans 5,970 23,400

$ 37,047 $ 73,605

5. LONG-TERM DEBT
KMC FUNDING INTERNET INFRASTRUCTURE EQUIPMENT FINANCING

In November 2000, our subsidiary, KMC Telecom Funding Corporation,
entered into an agreement with Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc. to finance the $168 million of Internet infrastructure eguipment purchased
from Qwest Communications Corporation in June 2000 (the "KMC Funding Equipment")
(See Note 9). The maximum aggregate loan amount is $168 million and the proceeds
from this loan can be drawn down in installments through April 30, 2001 to fund
the vendor payments due on the KMC Funding Equipment. Borrowings under this loan
bear interest payable at a rate of 200 basis points above the LIBOR Rate through
October 15, 2001 and 600 basis points over the LIBOR Rate thereafter. The loan
is secured by the KMC Funding Equipment and requires 48 monthly payments
commencing on December 15, 2000. The first 6 payments are interest only, and the
remaining payments include principal and interest. The loan was amended in Maxch
2001 to allow the Company to borrow an additional $21 million. As of December
31, 2000, the outstanding balance on this 1loan was $110 million and an
additional $79 million was drawn down through March 2001. As more fully
described in Note 18, the loan was repaid in full in March 2001, using a portion
of the proceeds from the KMC Funding Monetization.

AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY

During the quarter ended March 31, 2000, the Company's subsidiaries,
KMC Telecom, Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc. and KMC
Telecom III, Inc. (collectively, the "Borrowers"), amended, restated and
combined the Senior Secured Credit Facility and the Lucent Loan and Security
Agreement, into a single facility by entering into a $700 million Loan and
Security Agreement (the "Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility") with a group
of lenders led by CIT Lending Services Corporation (formerly Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation), GE Capital Corporation, Canadian Imperial Bank of
Commerce, First Union National Bank and Lucent Technologies Inc. {collectively,
the "Lenders").

The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility includes a $175 million
reducing revolver facility (the "Revolver"), a $75 million term loan (the "Term
Loan") and a $450 million term loan facility (the "Lucent Term Loan"). At
December 31, 2000, the outstanding loan balances on the Revolver, the Term Loan
and the Lucent Term Loan, were approximately $165 million, $75 million, and $378
million, respectively. Up to $10 million of the Revolver can be used for letters
of credit and as of December 31, 2000, approximately $7 million had been drawn
against the Revolver for letters of credit.

The Revolver will mature on April 1, 2007. Proceeds from the Revolver
can be used to finance the purchase of certain equipment, transaction costs and,
upon attainment of certain financial conditions, for working capital and other
general corporate purposes. The aggregate commitment of the Lenders under the
Revolver will be reduced on each quarterly payment date beginning April 1, 2003.
The initial quarterly commitment reduction is 5.0%, reducing to 3.75% on July 1,
2003, then increasing to 6.25% on July 1, 2004, and further increasing to 7.50%
on July 1, 2006. Commencing with the fiscal year ending December 31, 2001, the
aggregate Revolver commitment will be further reduced by an amount equal to 50%
of excess operating cash flows (as defined in the Amended Senior Secured Credit
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Facility) for the prior fiscal year until the Borrowers achieve certain
financial conditions. The Borrowers must pay an annual commitment fee on the
unused portion of the Revolver ranging from .75% to 1.25%.

The Term Loan is payable in twenty consecutive gquarterly installments
of $188,000 beginning on April 1, 2002 and two final installments of $35.6
million each on April 1, 2007 and July 1, 2007. Proceeds from the Term Loan can
be used to finance the purchase of certain equipment, transaction costs, working
capital and other general corporate purposes.

The Lucent Term Loan provides for an aggregate commitment of up to $450
million. Proceeds from the Lucent Term Loan can be used to purchase Lucent
products or to reimburse the Borrowers for Lucent products previously purchased
with cash or other sources of 1liquidity. The Lucent Term Loan will mature on
July 1, 2007 and requires quarterly principal payments beginning on July 1, 2003
of 5%. The principal payment decreases to 3.75% per quarter beginning on October
1, 2003, increases to 6.25% on Qctober 1, 2004 and further increases to 7.50% on
October 1, 2006. An annual commitment fee of 1.50% is payable for any unused
portion of the Lucent Term Loan.

Borrowings under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility bear
interest payable, at the Borrowers' option, at either {(a) the "Applicable Base
Rate Margin" (which generally ranges from 2.00% to 3.25%) plus the greater of
(i) the administrative agent's prime rate or (ii} the overnight federal funds
rate plus .5% or (b) the "Applicable LIBOR Margin" (which generally ranges from
3.00% to 4.25%) plus LIBOR, as defined. "Applicable Base Rate Margin" interest
is payable quarterly while "Applicable LIBOR Margin" interest is payable at the
end of each applicable interest period or at least every three months. Under the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility the Borrowers were being charged a
weighted average interest rate of 11.87% at December 31, 2000 (10.26% at
December 31, 1999 and 9.38% at December 31, 1898). If a payment default were to
occur, the interest rate will be increased by four percentage points. If any
other event of default were to occur, the interest rate will be increased by two
percentage points.

KMC Holdings has unconditionally guaranteed the repayment of the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility when such repayment is due, whether at
maturity, upon acceleration, or otherwise. KMC Holdings has pledged the shares
of each of the Borrowers to the Lenders to collateralize its obligations under
the guaranty. 1In addition, the Borrowers have each pledged all of their assets
to the Lenders.

The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility contains a number of
affirmative and negative covenants, one of which requires us to make additional
cash capital contributions to our subsidiaries which are the borrowers
thereunder of at least $35 million prior to August 31, 2001. The original
covenant required $185 million in cash capital contributions by April 1, 2001.
However, because we contributed $150 million of the proceeds of our Series G
private equity financing toward fulfilling this requirement, the Lenders amended
this covenant by extending the due date on the remaining $35 million of cash
capital contributions to August 31, 2001. Because the entire $185 million cash
capital contribution was not made by July 31, 2000, however, the applicable
interest rate associated with the facility was increased by 100 basis points.
Additional affirmative and negative covenants include, among others, covenants
restricting the ability of the Borrowers to consolidate or merge with any
person, sell or lease assets not in the ordinary course of business, sell or
enter into long term leases of dark fiber, redeem stock, pay dividends or make
any other payments (including payments of principal or interest on loans) to KMC
Holdings, create subsidiaries, transfer any permits or licenses, or incur
additional indebtedness or act as guarantor for the debt of any person, subject
to certain conditions.

The Borrowers are required to comply with certain financial tests and
maintain certain financial ratios, including, among others, a ratio of total
debt to contributed capital, certain minimum revenues, maximum EBITDA losses and
minimum EBITDA, maximum capital expenditures and minimum access lines, a maximum
total leverage ratio, a minimum debt service coverage ratio, a minimum fixed
charge coverage ratio and a maximum consolidated leverage ratio.
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Failure to satisfy any of the financial covenants will constitute an
event of default under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility permitting the
Lenders, after notice, to terminate the commitment and/or accelerate payment of
outstanding indebtedness thereunder. The Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility
also includes other customary events of default, including, without limitation,
a cross-default to other material indebtedness, material undischarged judgments,
bankruptcy, loss of a material franchise or material 1license, breach of
representations and warranties, a material adverse change, and the occurrence of
a change of control.
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As of December 31, 2000, the borrowers were in compliance with all of
the financial covenants of the facility.

In April 2001, the Company further amended the Amended Senior Secured
Credit PFacility. This amendment made a number of significant changes in the
facility, although it did not change the overall amount of the facility or the
purposes for which proceeds of loans under the facility may be used. 1In
connection with the amendment, the Lenders also waived failures by the Borrowers
to comply with certain of the prior financial covenants as of March 31, 2001 and
the Company made aggregate capital contributions to the Borrowers of $200.0
million (which satisfied the $35 million regquirement discussed above). 1In
addition, the collateral for KMC Holdings' guaranty of the facility was expanded
to include substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings. See Note 18 for a
detailed description of this amendment.

TELECOM IV SENIOR SECURED TERM LOAN

During the quarter ended June 30, 2000, the Company's subsidiary, KMC
Telecom, IV, Inc., closed a new senior secured term loan (the "Telecom IV Loan")
with Lucent Technologies Inc. The Telecom IV Loan initially provided up to $35
million of principal borrowings, plus accrued interest, until certain conditions
were met and then provided for additional principal borrowings up to a ceiling
of $50 million, plus accrued interest. In December 2000, the Company and Lucent
agreed to terminate this arrangement and the equipment purchased with funds from
the Telecom IV Loan was returned to Lucent. Accordingly, the Telecom IV Loan
balance was extinguished in full and this facility is no longer available to the
Company .

SENIOR DISCOUNT NOTES

On January 29, 1998, KMC Holdings sold 460,800 wunits, each unit
consisting of a 12 1/2% senior discount note with a principal amount at maturity
of $1,000 due 2008 pursuant to the Senior Discount Note Indenture between KMC
Holdings and the Chase Manhattan Bank, as trustee (the "Senior Discount Notes")
and one warrant to purchase .21785 shares of Common Stock of KMC Holdings at an
exercise price of $.01 per share. The gross and net proceeds of the offering
were approximately $250 million and $236.4 million, respectively. A substantial
portion of the net proceeds of the offering have been loaned by KMC Holdings to
its subsidiaries. On August 11, 1998, KMC Holdings exchanged the notes issued on
January 29, 1998 for $460.8 million aggregate principal amount at maturity of
notes that had been registered under the Securities Act of 1933 (as used below
and elsewhere herein, "Senior Discount Notes" includes the original notes and
the exchange notes).

The Senior Discount Notes are unsecured, unsubordinated obligations of
the Company and mature on February 15, 2008. The Senior Discount Notes were sold
at a substantial discount from their principal amount at maturity, and there
will not be any payment of interest on the Senior Discount Notes prior to August
15, 2003. The Senior Discount Notes will fully accrete to face value on February
15, 2003. From and after February 15, 2003, the Senior Discount Notes will bear
interest, which will be payable in cash, at the rate of 12.5% per annum on
February 15 and August 15 of each year, commencing August 15, 2003. The Company
is accreting the initial carrying wvalue of the Senior Discount Notes to their

aggregate face value over the term of the debt at its effective interest rate of
13.7%.
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The Senior Discount Notes are redeemable, at the Company's option, in
whole or in part, on or after February 15, 2003 and prior to maturity, at
redemption prices equal to 106.25% of the aggregate principal amount at
maturity, plus accrued and unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date,
declining to 100% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued
and unpaid interest as of February 15, 2006.

The indebtedness evidenced by the Senior Discount Notes ranks pari
passu in right of payment with all existing and future unsubordinated, unsecured
indebtedness of KMC Holdings and senior in right of payment to all existing and
future subordinated indebtedness of KMC Holdings. However, KMC Holdings is a
holding company and the Senior Discount Notes are, therefore, effectively
subordinated to all existing and future liabilities (including trade payables)
of its subsidiaries.

Within 30 days of the occurrence of a Change of Contrel (as defined in
the Senior Discount Note Indenture), the Company must offer to purchase for cash
all Senior Discount Notes then outstanding at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the accreted value thereof, plus accrued interest. The Company's ability to
comply with this requirement is subject to certain restrictions contained in the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.
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The Senior Discount Note Indenture contains events of default,
including, but not limited to, (i) defaults in the payment of principal, premium

or interest, (ii) defaults in compliance with covenants contained in the Senior
Discount Note Indenture, (iii) cross defaults on more than $5 million of other
indebtedness, (iv) failure to pay more than $5 million of Jjudgments that have

not been stayed by appeal or otherwise and (v) the bankruptcy of KMC Holdings or
certain of its subsidiaries.

The Senior Discount Note Indenture restricts, among other things, the
ability of KMC Holdings to incur additional indebtedness, create liens, engage
in sale-leaseback transactions, pay dividends or make distributions in respect
of capital stock, make investments or certain other restricted payments, sell
assets of KMC Holdings, redeem capital stock, issue or sell stock of restricted
subsidiaries, enter into transactions with stockholders or affiliates or effect
a consolidation or merger. The Senior Discount Note Indenture permits KMC
Holdings' subsidiaries to be deemed unrestricted subsidiaries and, thus, not
subject to the restrictions of the Senior Discount Note Indenture.

The Senior Discount Notes are "applicable high yield discount
obligations" ("AHYDOs"), as defined in the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended. Under the rules applicable to AHYDOs, a portion of the original issue
discount ("OID") that accrues on the Senior Discount Notes will not be
deductible by the Company at any time. Any remaining OID on the Senior Discount
Notes will not be deductible by the Company until such OID is paid.

SENIOR NOTES

On May 24, 1999, KMC Holdings issued $275.0 million aggregate principal
amount of 13 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009. On December 30, 1999, KMC Holdings
exchanged the notes issued on May 24, 1999 for 5$275.0 million aggregate
principal amount of notes that had been registered under the Securities Act of
1933 (as used below and elsewhere herein, "Senior Notes" includes the original
notes and the exchange notes). Interest on the Senior Notes is payable
semi-annually in cash on May 15 and November 15 of each year, beginning November
15, 1999. A portion of the proceeds from the offering of the Senior Notes was
used to purchase a portfolio of U.S. government securities that were pledged as
security for the first six interest payments on the Senior Notes.

The Senior Notes are redeemable, at the Company's option, in whole or
in part, on or after May 15, 2004 and prior to maturity, at redemption prices
equal to 106.75% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued and
unpaid interest, if any, to the redemption date, declining to 100% of the
aggregate principal amount at maturity, plus accrued and unpaid interest as of
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May 15, 2007.

In addition, at any time prior to May 15, 2002, the Company may redeem
up to 35% of the aggregate principal amount at maturity of the Senior Notes with
the net proceeds from the sale of common equity at a redemption price of 113.5%
of the principal amount on such date plus accrued and unpaid interest. Upon a
change of control (as defined in the Senior Note Indenture), the Company must
offer to purchase for cash the Senior Notes at a purchase price equal to 101% of
the principal amount, plus accrued interest. The Company's ability to comply
with this requirement is subject to certain restrictions contained in the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.

The Senior Notes are guaranteed by KMC Telecom Financing, Inc., a
wholly-owned subsidiary. The Senior Notes are senior, unsecured, unsubordinated
obligations of KMC Holdings and rank pari passu in right of payment with all
existing and future unsubordinated, unsecured indebtedness of KMC Holdings and
senior in right of payment to all of existing and future subordinated
indebtedness of KMC Holdings. However, KMC Holdings is a holding company and the
Senior Notes are, therefore, effectively subordinated to all existing and future
liabilities (including trade payables), of its subsidiaries.

The Senior Note Indenture contains certain covenants that, among other
things, limit the Company's ability to incur additional indebtedness, engage in
sale-leaseback transactions, pay dividends or make certain other distributions,
sell assets, redeem capital stock, effect a consolidation or merger of KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and enter into transactions with stockholders and
affiliates and create liens on our assets.
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6. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENTS
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENT

In April 2000, the Company entered into an amended and restated
interest rate swap agreement (the "Amended Swap") with a commercial bank to
reduce the impact of changes in interest rates on a portion of its outstanding
variable rate debt. The Amended Swap effectively fixes the Company's interest
rate on $325 million of outstanding variable rate borrowings under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility (see Note 5) through April 2003, after which time
the Amended Swap is reduced to $225 million through January 2004 and then
finally reduced to $100 million until termination of the Amended Swap in April
2005. The Company is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by
the other party to the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company does
not anticipate nonperformance by the counterparty.

JUNE 2000 SWAP AGREEMENT

In June 2000, the Company entered into a second interest rate swap
agreement (the "June 2000 Swap") with a commercial bank to reduce the impact of
changes in interest rates on an additional portion of its outstanding wvariable
rate debt. The June 2000 Swap effectively fixes the Company's interest rate on
an additional $90 million of its outstanding variable rate borrowings under the
Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility for a period of five years. The Company
is exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to
the interest rate swap agreement. However, the Company does not anticipate
nonperformance by the counterparty.

7. REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
SERIES G PREFERRED STOCK

In July 2000, the Company issued 58,881 and 481,108 shares of Series
G-1 Voting and G-2 Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock (the "Series G
Preferred Stock"), rzrespectively, to Lucent Technologies, Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson Private Equity Partners, CIT Lending Services, Nassau Capital Partners
and Harold N. Kamine, its Chairman of the Board, for aggregate gross proceeds of
$182.5 million. The Series G Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of
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$337.97 per share and an annual cumulative dividend equal to 7.0% of the
liquidation preference. Payment of the unpaid dividends is triggered by (i} an
initial public offering in which the Company receives aggregate gross proceeds
of at least $80 million or (ii) a merger, consolidation or sale of substantially
all assets. As of December 31, 2000, accumulated but unpaid dividends on the
Series G Preferred Stock aggregated $6,388,000.

Each share of Series G Preferred Stock is convertible into a number of
shares of Common Stock equal to the liquidation preference of each share divided
by the conversion price then in effect. Initially, the conversion price is
$337.97. However, this price is adjustable, subject to certain exceptions, upon
the occurrence of certain events including (i) the issuance or sale of common
stock for a consideration per share less than the conversion price, (ii) the
issuance of rights or options to acquire common stock or convertible securities
with an exercise price less than the conversion price and (iii) the issuance or
sale of other convertible securities with a conversion or exchange price lower
than the conversion price. The Series G Preferred Stock will be automatically
converted into common stock upon (i) a Qualified Public Offering,  defined as
sale of common stock pursuant to a registration statement in which the Company
receives aggregate gross proceeds of at least $B80 million, provided that the per
share price at which such shares are sold in such offering is not less than the
liquidation preference then in effect, or (ii) the election of holders of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding shares of Series G Preferred Stock.

The Series G Preferred Stock ranks senior to the Common Stock, Series A
Convertible Preferred Stock and Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, on a
parity with the Series F Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
and junior to the Series E Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock.
The Series G-1 shareholders are entitled to vote on all matters before the
common holders, as a single class with the common, on an as if converted basis.

Subject to certain limitations and conditions, at the request of the
holders of at least two-thirds of the Series G Preferred Stock, the Company may
be required to redeem the Series G Preferred Stock upon (i) a change of control
or sale of the Company, or (ii) August 15, 2009.
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SERIES E PREFERRED STOCK

on February 4, 1999, the Company issued 25,000 shares of Series E
Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock (the "Series E Preferred
Stock") to Newcourt Finance (now CIT Lending Services), generating aggregate
gross proceeds of $22.9 million. On April 30, 1999, the Company issued an
additional 35,000 shares of Series E Preferred Stock for gross proceeds of $25.9
million. The Series E Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per
share and an annual dividend equal to 14.5% of the 1ligquidation preference,
payable guarterly. On or before January 15, 2004, the Company may pay dividends
in cash or in additional fully paid and nonassessable shares of Series E
Preferred Stock. After January 15, 2004, dividends must be paid in cash, subject
to certain conditions. Unpaid dividends accrue at the dividend rate of the
Series E Preferred Stock, compounded quarterly. During 1999 and 2000, the
Company issued 5,004 and 9,951 shares of Series E Preferred Stock, respectively,
to pay the dividends due for such periods.

The Series E Preferred Stock must be redeemed on February 1, 2011,
subject to the legal availability of funds therefor, at a redemption price,
payable in cash, equal to the liquidation preference thereof on the redemption
date, plus all accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. After
April 15, 2004, the Series E Preferred Stock may be redeemed, in whole or in
part, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price equal to 110% of the
liquidation preference of the Series E Preferred Stock plus all accrued and
unpaid dividends to the date of redemption. The redemption price declines to an
amount equal to 100% of the liquidation preference as of April 15, 2007.

In addition, on or prior to April 15, 2002, the Company may, at its
option, redeem up to 35% of the aggregate liquidation preference of Series E
Preferred Stock with the proceeds of sales of its capital stock at a redemption
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price equal to 110% of the liguidation preference on the redemption date plus
accrued and unpaid dividends.

The holders of Series E Preferred Stock have voting rights in certain
circumstances. Upon the occurrence of a change of control, the Company will be
required to make an offer to repurchase the Series E Preferred Stock for cash at
a purchase price of 101% of the liguidation preference thereof, together with
all accumulated and unpaid dividends to the date of purchase.

The Series E Preferred Stock is not convertible. The Company may, at
the sole option of the Board of Directors {(out of funds legally available),
exchange all, but not less than all, of the Series E Preferred Stock then
outstanding, including any shares of Series E Preferred Stock issued as payment
for dividends, for a new series of subordinated debentures (the "Exchange
Debentures") issued pursuant to an exchange debenture indenture. The holders of
Series E Preferred Stock are entitled to receive on the date of any such
exchange, Exchange Debentures having an aggregate principal amount equal to (i)
the total of the liquidation preference for each share of Series E Preferred
Stock exchanged, plus (ii) an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends
payable on such share.

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK

on February 4, 1999, the Company issued 40,000 shares of Series F
Senior Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock (the "Series F Preferred
Stock") to Lucent and Newcourt Finance (now CIT Lending Services Corporation),
generating aggregate gross proceeds of $38.9 million. The Series F Preferred
Stock has a liquidation preference of $1,000 per share and an annual dividend
equal to 14.5% of the liguidation preference, payable quarterly. The Company may
pay dividends in cash or in additional fully paid and nonassessable shares of
Series F Preferred Stock. During 1999 and 2000, the Company issued 4,177 and
6,654 shares of Series F Preferred Stock, respectively, to pay the dividends due
for such periods.

The Series F Preferred Stock may be redeemed at any time, in whole or
in part, at the option of the Company, at a redemption price equal to 110% of
the liguidation preference on the redemption date plus an amount in cash equal
to all accrued and unpaid dividends thereon to the redemption date. Upon the
occurrence of a change of control, the Company will be required to make an offer
to purchase the Series F Preferred Stock for cash at a purchase price of 101% of
the liguidation preference thereof, together with all accumulated and unpaid
dividends to the date of purchase.

The holders of Series F Preferred Stock have voting rights under
certain circumstances.
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Upon the earlier of (i) the date that is sixty days after the date on
which the Company closes an underwritten primary offering of at least $200
million of its Common Stock, pursuant to an effective registration statement
under the Securities Act or (ii) February 4, 2001, any outstanding Series F
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into Series E Preferred Stock, on a
one for one basis.

The Company may, at the sole option of the Board of Directors (out of
funds legally available), exchange all, but not less than all, of the Series F
Preferred Stock then outstanding, including any shares of Series F Preferred
Stock issued as payment for dividends, for Exchange Debentures. The holders of
Series F Preferred Stock are entitled to receive on the date of any such
exchange, Exchange Debentures having an aggregate principal amount equal to (i)
the total of the liquidation preference for each share of Series F Preferred
Stock exchanged, plus (ii) an amount equal to all accrued but unpaid dividends
payable on such share.

In September 2000, the Company repurchased and retired 2,965 shares of
Series F Preferred Stock at 110% of its ligquidation preference plus accrued and
unpaid dividends for approximately $3.3 million in accordance with the
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provisions of the certificate of designation applicable to the Series F
Preferred Stock.

On February 4, 2001, the Series F Preferred Stock converted into Series
E Preferred Stock on a one for one basis (See Note 18 for a more detailed
description) .

SERIES A PREFERRED STOCK

There are 123,800 shares of Series A Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock of KMC Holdings ("Series A Preferred Stock") authorized and outstanding.
Such stock was issued to two entities, Nassau Capital Partners, L.P. and NAS
Partners I L.L.C. ("Nassau Capital"” and "Nassau Partners”, respectively,
collectively referred to as "Nassau") in January 1997 upon the conversion of
certain notes payable and related accrued interest due to Nassau aggregating
$12,380,000. Series A Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $100 per
share and an annual dividend equal to 7.0% of the liquidation preference,
payable quarterly, when and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds
legally available therefor. Unpaid dividends accumulate and the unpaid amount
increases at the annual rate of 7.0%, compounded quarterly. All accumulated but
unpaid dividends will be paid upon the occurrence of a Realization Event
(defined as (i) an initial public offering with gross proceeds of at least $40
million or (ii) sale of substantially all the assets or stock of the Company or
the merger or comsolidation of the Company into one or more other corporations) .
As of December 31, 2000, accumulated and unpaid dividends on the Series A
Preferred Stock aggregated $3,161,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant
to an agreement among Nassau and the Company, Nassau has agreed to forego the
payment of dividends from September 22, 1997 through the date on which Nassau
disposes of its interest in the Company; provided that at the time of such
disposition, Nassau has received not less than a 10% annual compound rate of
return during the period it held the Series A Preferred Stock.

Series A Preferred Stock is convertible into Common Stock at a
conversion price equal to $20.63 per share of Common Stock, subject to
adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events. Holders of Series A Preferred
Stock may convert all or part of such shares to Common Stock. Upon conversion,
subject to the aforementioned agreement to forego the payment of dividends, the
holders are entitled to receive a cash payment of the accumulated but unpaid
dividends; provided, however, that the Company may substitute common shares
having a fair market value equal to the amount of such cash payment if the
conversion occurs before a Realization Event. Series A Preferred Stock will
automatically convert into Common Stock upon the occurrence of a Qualified
Public Offering (defined as the first sale of Common Stock pursuant to a
registration statement filed under the Securities Act of 1933 in which the
Company receives gross proceeds of at least $40 million, provided that the per
share price at which such shares are sold in such offering is at least four
times the conversion price of the Series A Preferred Stock).

The holders of Series A Preferred Stock, except as otherwise provided
in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, are entitled to vote on all
matters voted on by holders of Common Stock. Each share of Series A Preferred
Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common
Stock into which such share is convertible. Without the prior consent of
two-thirds of the shares of Series A Preferred Stock, among other things, the
Company may not increase the number of shares of preferred stock (of whatever
series) authorized for issuance, or declare or pay any dividends on shares of
Common Stock or other junior shares. As discussed under "Redemption Rights"
below, the holders of Series A Preferred Stock have certain redemption rights.
Accordingly, such stock has been reflected as redeemable eguity in the
accompanying financial statements.
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SERIES C PREFERRED STOCK

There are 350,000 shares of Series C Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock of KMC Holdings ("Series C Preferred Stock") authorized, of which 175,000
shares are outstanding at December 31, 2000. One hundred fifty thousand of such
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shares were issued in November 1997, generating aggregate gross proceeds of $15
million and the remaining 25,000 shares were issued in January 1998 upon the
conversion of an equal number of shares of Series D Preferred Stock. Series C
Preferred Stock has a liquidation preference of $100 per share and an annual
dividend equal to 7.0% of the ligquidation preference, payable guarterly, when
and if declared by the Board of Directors out of funds legally available
therefor. Unpaid dividends accumulate and the unpaid amount increases at the
annual rate of 7.0%, compounded gquarterly. All accumulated but unpaid dividends
will be paid upon the occurrence of a Realization Event. As of December 31,
2000, accumulated but unpaid dividends on the Series C Preferred Stock
aggregated $4,286,000. Notwithstanding the foregoing, pursuant to the Purchase
Agreement among the Company, Nassau, GECC and First Union Corp. ("First Union"),
each current holder of Series C Preferred Stock has agreed to forego the payment
of dividends that accumulate during the period from issuance through the date on
which such holder disposes of its interest in the Company; provided that at the
time of such disposition, it has received not less than a 10% annual compound
rate of return during such period.

Series C Preferred Stock is convertible into Common Stock at a
conversion price equal to $42.1B per share of Common Stock; provided that such
amount is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of certain events. Holders
of Series C Preferred Stock may convert all or part of such shares to Common
Stock. Upon conversion, subject to the aforementioned agreement to forego the
payment of dividends, the holders are entitled to receive a cash payment of the
accumulated but unpaid dividends; provided, however, that the Company wmay
substitute common shares having a fair market value equal to the amount of such
cash payment if the conversion occurs before a Realization Event. Series C
Preferred Stock will automatically convert into Common Stock upon the occurrence
of a Qualified Public Offering.

The holders of Series C Preferred Stock, except as otherwise provided
in the Company's Certificate of Incorporation, are entitled to vote on all
matters voted on by holders of Common Stock. Each share of Series C Preferred
Stock is entitled to a number of votes equal to the number of shares of Common
Stock into which such share is convertible. Without the prior consent of
two-thirds of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock, among other things, the
Company may not increase the number of shares of preferred stock (of whatever
series) authorized for issuance, or declare or pay any dividends on shares of
Common Stock or other junior shares. As discussed under "Redemption Rights”
below, the holders of Series C Preferred Stock have certain redemption rights.
Accordingly, such stock has been reflected as redeemable equity in the
accompanying financial statements.

The Series C Preferred Stock is subject to redemption at the option of
the Company, in whole but not in part, in connection with an "Acquisition
Event." An Acquisition Event is defined to mean any merger or consolidation of
the Company with any other company, person or entity, whether or not the Company
is the surviving entity, as a result of which the holders of the Company's
Common Stock (determined on a fully diluted basis) will hold 1less than a
majority of the outstanding shares of Common Stock or other equity interest of
the Company, person or entity resulting from such transaction, or any parent of
such entity.

SERIES D PREFERRED STOCK

There are 25,000 shares of Series D Cumulative Convertible Preferred
Stock ("Series D Preferred Stock") authorized, none of which are outstanding at
December 31, 1999 or 2000.

COMMON STOCK

Holders of Common Stock of the Company are entitled to one vote for
each share held on all matters submitted to a vote of stockholders. Except as
otherwise required by law, actions at the Company's stockholders meetings (held
at least annually), require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
represented at the meeting, a guorum being present. Holders of Common Stock are
entitled, subject to the preferences of preferred stock, to receive such
dividends, if any, as may be declared by the Board of Directors out of funds
legally available therefor. The Senior Discount Note Indenture and the Company's
other indebtedness restrict the ability of the Company to pay dividends on its
Common Stock. Without the prior consent of two-thirds of the shares of Series A
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Preferred Stock and two-thirds of the shares of Series C Preferred Stock, the
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Company may not declare or pay any dividends on its Common Stock. Except as
discussed under "REDEMPTION RIGHTS" below, the holders of Common Stock have no
preemptive, redemption or conversion rights.

Pursuant to provisions contained in an Amended and Restated
Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997, as further amended, among
the Company, Kamine, Nassau, CIT Lending Services Corporation, GECC, First
Union, Lucent and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (the "Stockholders' Agreement”),
these stockholders have agreed to vote their shares and take all necessary
actions to elect the following individuals to the Company's board of directors:
the Chief Executive Officer, the President, three individuals designated by
Nassau, two individuals designated by Kamine, one individual designated by
Dresdner and one individual as an independent director approved by Nassau,
Kamine and other principal existing stockholders. Lucent or a person to whom
Lucent transfers its shares may be entitled to designate one individual wunder
certain circumstances. The number of directors each of Nassau, Kamine and
Dresdner is entitled to designate will decrease as their respective percentages
of ownership decrease. If a default relating to payment occurs under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility and continues uncured for 90 days, the holders of
Series C Preferred Stock {(currently Nassau, GECC and First Union) are entitled
to elect two additional Directors, who will serve until the default is cured. In
addition, under the certificate of designations relating to each of our Series E
Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock, if a default occurs under such
certificate(s), the holders of Series E Preferred Stock and/or the holders of
the Series F Preferred Stock will have the right to elect one additional
individual each to serve as a director (for a total of two additional
directors), in each case until the default is cured and all accrued dividends on
such preferred stock are paid in full.

REDEMPTION RIGHTS

Pursuant to a stockholders agreement, certain of the Company's
stockholders and warrant holders have "put rights" entitling them to have the
Company repurchase their preferred and common shares and redeemable common stock
warrants for the fair value of such securities if no Liquidity Event (defined as
(i) an initial public offering with gross proceeds of at least $40 million, (ii)
the sale of substantially all of the stock or assets of the Company or (iii) the
merger or consolidation of the Company with one or more other corporations) has
taken place by the later of (x) October 22, 2003 or (y) 90 days after the final
maturity date of the Senior Discount Notes. The restrictive covenants of the
Senior Discount Notes limit the Company's ability to repurchase such securities.
All of the securities subject to such "put rights" are presented as redeemable
equity in the accompanying balance sheets.

The redeemable preferred stock, redeemable common stock and redeemable
common stock warrants, which are subject to the stockholders agreement, are
being accreted up to their fair market values from their respective issuance
dates to their earliest potential redemption date (October 22, 2003). At
December 31, 2000, the aggregate redemption value of the redeemable equity was
approximately $580 million, reflecting per share redemption amounts of $1,454
for the Series A Preferred Stock, $711 for the Series C Preferred Stock, $338
for the Series G Preferred Stock and $300 for the redeemable common stock and
redeemable common stock warrants.

WARRANTS

In connection with a predecessor to the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility, warrants to purchase 10,000 shares of Common Stock were issued to GECC
in 1997. These warrants, at an exercise price of $.01 per share, are exercisable
from issuance through January 21, 2005. The fair value of such warrants was
determined to be $525,000, which was reflected as a charge to deferred financing
costs and credited to redeemable equity. Pursuant to the Stockholders'
Agreement, GECC may put the shares of Common Stock issuable upon the exercise of
such warrants back to the Company. These warrants have been presented as
redeemable common stock warrants in the accompanying balance sheet at December
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31, 2000.

In connection with the sale of Senior Discount Notes in January 1998,
the Company issued warrants to purchase an aggregate of 100,385 shares of Common
Stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share. The net proceeds of approximately
$10.4 million represented the fair value of the warrants at the date of
issuance. 1In the first quarter of 2000 a portion of these warrants were
exercised resulting in outstanding warrants to purchase an aggregate of 99,285
shares of Common Stock at December 31, 2000. The remaining warrants are
exercisable through January 2008.

In connection with the February 4, 1999 issuances of the Series E
Preferred Stock and the Series F Preferred Stock, warrants to purchase an
aggregate of 24,660 shares of Common Stock were sold to Newcourt Finance (now
CIT Lending Services) and Lucent. The aggregate gross proceeds from the sale of
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these warrants was approximately $3.2 million. These warrants, at an exercise
price of $.01 per share, are exercisable from February 4, 2000 through February
1, 2009.

In addition, the Company also delivered to the Warrant Agent
certificates representing warrants to purchase an aggregate of an additional
107,228 shares of Common Stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share (the
"Springing Warrants"). The terms of the Springing Warrants provide that they
would become issuable under the circumstances described in the following
paragraph.

. If the Company fails to redeem all shares of Series F Preferred Stock
prior to the date (the "Springing Warrant Date") which is the earlier of (i)} the
date that is sixty days after the date on which the Company closes an
underwritten primary offering of at least $200 million of its Common Stock
pursuant to an effective registration statement under the Securities Act or (ii)
February 4, 2001, the Warrant Agent is authorized to issue the Springing
Warrants to the Eligible Holders (as defined in the warrant agreement) of the
Series E and Series F Preferred Stock. The Company did not redeem all of the
Series F Preferred Stock as of February 4, 2001 and therefore the "Springing
Warrants" have become issuable. See Note 18 for further discussion regarding
these springing warrants.

In connection with the April 30, 1999 issuance of additional shares of
the Series E Preferred Stock, warrants to purchase an aggregate of 60,353 shares
of Common Stock were issued to Newcourt Finance {(now CIT Lending Services) and
First Union. The aggregate gross proceeds from the sale of these warrants was
approximately $9.1 million. These warrants, at an exercise price of $.01 per
share, are exercisable from February 4, 2000 through February 1, 2009.

OPTIONS

Prior to the establishment of the present holding company structure,
during 1996 and 1997, KMC Telecom granted options to purchase shares of its
common stock, par value $.01 per share ("KMC Telecom Common Stock"), to
employees pursuant to the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan.

In order to reflect the establishment of the holding company structure,
on June 26, 1998, the Board of Directors adopted a new stock option plan, the
KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan (the "1958 Plan"), which authorizes the grant of
options to purchase Common Stock of the Company. The 1998 Plan was approved by
the stockholders, effective July 15, 1998. 1In September 1998, the Company
replaced the options to purchase KMC Telecom Common Stock previously granted
under the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan with options to purchase Common Stock of
the Company granted under the 1998 Plan and granted options to additional
employees of the Company under the 1998 Plan.

The 1998 Plan, which is administered by the Compensation Committee of
the Board of Directors of KMC Holdings, provides for various grants to key
employees, directors, affiliated members or other persons having a unique
relationship with the Company excluding Kamine and any person employed by Nassau
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Capital or any Nassau affiliate. Grants may include, without limitation,
incentive stock options, non-qualified stock options,’ stock appreciation rights,
dividend equivalent rights, restricted stocks, purchase stocks, performance
shares and performance units. The Compensation Committee has the power and
authority to designate recipients of the options and to determine the terms,
conditions, and limitations of the options.

Under the 1998 Plan, options to purchase 600,000 shares of Common Stock
of KMC Holdings are eligible for grant, of which 88,101 options have not been
granted as of December 31, 2000. No individual may receive options for more than
75,000 shares. The exercise price of all incentive stock options granted under
the 1998 Plan must be at least equal to the fair market value of the shares on
the date of grant. The exercise price of all non-qualified stock options granted
under the 1998 Plan must be at least 25% of the fair market value of the shares
on the date of grant.

Options granted pursuant to the 1998 Plan will have terms not to exceed
10 years and become exercisable over a vesting period as specified in such
options. The 1998 Plan will terminate no later than 2008. Options granted under
the 1998 Plan are nontransferable, other than by will or by the laws of descent
and distribution, and may be exercised during the optionee's lifetime, only by
the optionee.

The 1998 Plan provides for an adjustment of the number of shares
exercisable in the event of a merger, consolidation, recapitalization, change of
control, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares or other similar
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changes, exchange or reclassification of the Common Stock at the discretion of
the Compensation Committee. Pursuant to the agreements adopted under the 1998
Plan, the greater of 25% of the shares granted or fifty percent of all unvested
options granted become fully vested upon a change-in-control of the Company, as
defined. Under certain circumstances, such percentages may increase.

The holders of options to acquire shares of Common Stock of KMC
Holdings are required to enter into agreements with KMC Holdings which place
certain restrictions upon their ability to sell or otherwise transfer such
shares. In the event of termination of employment of the option holder by the
Company or the affiliates, the Company can repurchase all of the shares or
options held by such individuals, generally for an amount equal to the fair
value of such shares or the excess of the fair value of such options over their
exercise price.

Information on stock options is as follows:

NUMBER OF SHARES WEIGHTED
------------------------------------- AVERAGE EXERCISE
OUTSTANDING EXERCISABLE PRICE OF OPTIONS
Balances, January 1, 1998..............0000cnnn 141,500 19,000 $ 65
Granted. . ...t v e i i i et e et 262,500 - $ 26
Became exercisable.......... ... ..t - 117,000
CanNCELLEA. vt v ve it ie et et (141,500) (1%,000) $ (65)
Balances, Decembexr 31, 1898............. .00t 262,500 117,000 $ 26
82,342 - $ 147
- 51,669
(15,600) (15,600) $ 22
(27,200) (2,000) $ (26)
Balances, December 31, 1999.................00. 302,042 151,069 $ 59
Granted................. et 255,674 - $ 173
Became exercisable.......... . iiiiiinaan - 136,929
EXErciSed. .. ..oiiieniriennniieeninnnannanns (7,803) (7,803) $ 77
Cancelled. . o iit it e et e {38,014) {4,726) ${(158)
Balances, December 31, 2000..........c.cueiennns 511,899 275,469 $ 109
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The weighted-average exercise price of options exercisable at December
31, 1998, 1999 and 2000 is $22, $26 and $48, respectively, and the
weighted-average fair value of options granted during 1998, 1999 and 2000 were
$114, $134 and $236 per share, respectively.

The range of exercise prices, number of shares and the weighted-average
remaining contractual life for options outstanding as of December 31, 2000 were
as follows:

WEIGHTED-
WEIGHTED- AVERAGE
NUMBER AVERAGE REMAINING
RANGE OF NUMBER OF SHARES EXERCISE CONTRACTUAL
EXERCISE PRICES OF SHARES EXERCISABLE PRICE LIFE

$20-$50 215,950 193,999 $ 26 7.5 years
$51-$100 120,000 55,937 $ 75 9.2 years
$101-$150 45,407 18,590 $ 125 7.5 years
$200-$250 72,876 6,343 $ 248 9.0 years
$251-5300 57,666 600 $ 300 9.6 years
Total $20 - $300 511,899 275,469 $108 7.5 years

During the year ended December 31, 2000, non-qualified options to
purchase an aggregate of 255,674 shares were granted to employees, directors and
independent contractors who perform services for the company, at exercise prices
of $75 (127,500), $125 (2,500}, $250 (64,508) and $300 (61,166). All such
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options have 10 year terms. The options issued at $75 are 25% vested upon
issuance and vest 12.5% every six months thereafter. The options issued at $125
have immediate vesting. Of the options issued at $250, 23,500 options vest
annually over three years, 40,008 options vest 10% every six months and 1,000
options fully vest after one year. The options issued at $300 vest 10% every six
months.

During the year ended December 31, 1999, non-qualified options to
purchase an aggregate of 82,342 shares were granted to employees at exercise
prices of $125 (67,509), $225 (2,933) and $250 (11,900). All options have 10
year terms and become exercisable over a five year period in equal six month
increments

As a result of restrictions upon the holders of options granted under
the 1998 Plan, including their ability to sell or otherwise transfer the related
shares, the 1998 Plan is required to be accounted for as a variable stock option
plan. Generally accepted accounting principles for variable stock option plans
require the recognition of a non-cash compensation charge for these options
(amortized over the vesting period of the employee options and recognized in
full as of the grant date for the non-employee options). Such charge is
determined by the difference between the fair value of the common stock
underlying the options and the option price as of the end of each period.
Accordingly, compensation expense will be charged or credited periodically
through the date of exercise or cancellation of such stock options, based on
changes in the value of the Company's stock as well as the vesting schedule of
such options. These compensation charges or credits are non-cash in nature, but
could have a material effect on the Company's future reported results of
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operations.

The Company, upon cancellation of the outstanding options under the KMC
Telecom Stock Option Plan, reversed all compensation expense previously recorded
with respect to such options. Additionally, to the extent the fair value of the
Common Stock of the Company exceeded the exercise price of the options granted
under the 1998 Plan, the Company recognized compensation expense related to such
options over their vesting period.

Based on the estimated fair value of the Common Stock KMC Holdings at
December 31, 1998, December 31, 1999 and December 31, 2000, cumulative deferred
compensation obligations of $27,906,000, $50,972,000, and $89,190,000
respectively, have been established. The Company has recognized compensation
expense aggregating $7,080,000, $29,833,000 and $34,571,000 for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. The 1998 stock option
compensation expense of $7,080,000 reflects charges of §7,236,000 under the KMC
Telecom Stock Option Plan through its termination in September 1998 and charges
of $21,190,000 related to the 1998 Plan, partially offset by a credit as a
result of the September 1998 cancellation of the KMC Telecom stock options,
reflecting the reversal of $21,346,000 of cumulative compensation previously
recognized for options granted under the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan.

In accordance with the provisions of Statement 123, the Company applies
APB 25 and related interpretations in accounting for its stock option plan. If
the Company had elected to recognize compensation expense based on the fair
value of the options granted at the grant date as prescribed by Statement 123,
net loss and net loss per common share would have been the following:

DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 2000

(IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Net loss:
AS TEPOTLEd. . oottt e $(76,753) $ (225,716) $ (359,687)
Pro forma........ ...t $(76,869) $ (219,599) $ (369,114)
Net loss per common share:
ABS FEPOTLEA. « v vctvir i imanananarnen $(114.42) $ (360.88) $ (531.21)
Pro fOIMa. « it iiiiiimiaeinanaennees $(114.586) $ (353.70) $ (542.24)
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The fair value of each option grant is estimated on the date of grant
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with the following weighted average
assumptions:

1998 1999
2000
Expected dividend yield..................... 0% 0%
0%
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Expected stock price volatility............. 50% 70%

85%

Risk-free interest rate...............cuonnn 6.0% 6.5%

6.0%

Expected life of options.................... 7 years 7 years
7 years :

The expected stock price volatility factors were determined based on an
average of such factors as disclosed in the financial statements of peer
companies. The Black-Scholes option wvaluation model was developed for use in
estimating the fair value of traded options which have no vesting restrictions
and are fully transferable. In addition, option valuation models require the
input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected stock price
volatility. Because the Company's employee stock options have characteristics
significantly different from those of traded options, and because changes in the
subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate, in
management's opinion, the existing models do not necessarily provide a reliable
single measure of the fair value of its employee stock options.

8. INFORMATION BY BUSINESS SEGMENT

The Company has two reportable segments as defined by FASB Statement
No. 131, "DISCLOSURES ABOUT SEGMENTS OF AN ENTERPRISE AND RELATED INFORMATION" :
a Tier III Markets segment and a Nationwide Data Platform segment. The Company
owns and operates robust fiber-based networks and switching equipment in all of
its 37 Tier 1III markets, which are predominantly 1located in the South,
Southeast, Midwest and Mid-Atlantic United States. The Nationwide Data Platform
segment provides local Internet access infrastructure and other enhanced data
services in over 140 markets nationwide.

The Company evaluates the performance of its operating segments based
on earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, excluding
general corporate expenses and stock compensation expense ("Adjusted EBITDA").
There are no significant intersegment transactions.

Prior to the development of the Nationwide Data Platform segment in
late fiscal 2000, the Company was managed as one reporting segment for the

fiscal years ended 1998 and 1999. Therefore, segment data for such years is not
presented.
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YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
{IN THOUSANDS)

NATIONWIDE DATA

TIER III MARKETS PLATFORM CORPORATE TOTAL

REVENUES . c i o iivincentancnnnnnsenn $ 161,938 s 47,257 $ - $ 209,195
Adjusted EBITDA.......ovemuuunnnn (124,545) 1,667 205 (122,673)
Depreciation and amortization.... {62,842) {1,409) {11,878) {76,129)
Stock compensation expense....... {1,037) {346) (33,188) (34,571)
Interest inNCoOmMe...........cc0uouus 8429 1,188 2,167 11,784
Interest @Xpense................. (122,250} (227 (13,876} {136,393)
Cumulative effect of change in

accounting principle.......... {1,705} - - {1,705}
Net income (loS8)................ (303,990) 873 {56,570) {359,687}
Dividends and accretion on

redeemable preferred stock - - (94,440} {94,440}
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Net income (loss) applicable to

shareholders..........cccannen § (303,990) $ 873 $ (151,010} $ (454,127)

Total ABBELB.....covaasemsooasnen $ 971,861 $ 263,708 $ 95,706 $1,331,275
exzssmamzxe Esmamwwenx =amszsassE== anzzzsssmwmn

Capital expenditures............. $ 274,191 $ 176,970 § 6,490 § 457,651

SERVICE REVENUES

The Company provides on-net switched and dedicated services and resells
switched services previously purchased from the incumbent local exchange
carrier. On-net services include both services provided through direct
connections to our own networks and services provided by means of unbundled
network elements leased from the incumbent local exchange carrier.

The Company's service revenues consist of the following:

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
1998 1999 2000

(IN THOUSANDS)

[0+ s < U= A $ B,248 544,615 $198,177
ReBalEe. . . i i i e e 14,177 19,698 11,018
BT - U R R $22,425 $64,313 $209,195

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTRACTS AND CUSTOMERS

In March 2000, the Company entered into an agreement with Qwest
Communications Corporation and Qwest Communications International, Inc.
{collectively, "Qwest") pursuant to which (i) the Company purchased
approximately $134 million of Internet infrastructure equipment (the "KMC
Funding V Equipment") from Qwest and (ii) the Company agreed to install and
maintain this equipment, throughout the United States, principally to handle
Internet service provider traffic on behalf of Qwest. As amended, the services
agreement is for a term of 51 months, commenced in August 2000 and expires in
October 2004.

In June 2000, the Company entered into a second agreement with Qwest,
pursuant to which (i) the Company purchased approximately $168 million of
Internet infrastructure equipment from Qwest and (ii) the Company agreed to
install and maintain this equipment, in cities throughout the United States,
principally to handle Internet service provider traffic on behalf of Qwest. The
second services agreement commenced in November 2000 and expires in July 200S.
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10. INCOME TAXES

As of December 31, 2000, the Company and its subsidiaries had
consolidated net operating loss carryforwards for United States income tax
purposes ("NOLs") of approximately $500 million which expire through 2020. Under
Section 382 of the 1Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, if the Company
undergoes an "ownership change,” its ability to use its preownership change NOLs

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 69
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC — 10-K — Annual Report Date Filed: 4/17/2001

(NOLs accrued through the date of the ownership change) would generally be
limited annually to an amount equal to the product of (i) the long-term
tax-exempt rate for ownership changes prescribed monthly by the Treasury
Department and (ii) the value of the Company's equity immediately before the
ownership change, excluding certain capital contributions. Any allowable portion
of the preownership change NOLs that is not used in a particular taxable year
following the ownership change could be carried forward to subsequent taxable
years until the NOLs expire, usually 20 years after they are generated. As a
Yesult of the cumulative effect of issuances of preferred and common stock
through September 22, 1997, KMC Telecom has undergone an ownership change.

For financial reporting purposes, the Company has an aggregate of
approximately $311 million and $671 million of loss carryforwards and net
temporary differences at December 31, 1999 and 2000, respectively. At existing
federal and state tax rates, the future benefit of these items approximates $121
million at December 31, 1999 and $262 million at December 31, 2000. Valuation
allowances have been established equal to the entire net tax benefit associated
with all carryforwards and temporary differences at both December 31, 1999 and
2000 as their realization is uncertain.

The composition of expected future tax benefits at December 31, 1399
and 2000 is as follows:

{IN THOUSANDS)

Net operating loss carryforwards..................cconvnnnnn s 83,762 $ 195,177
Temporary differences:
Stock option COmMpPensSation...........coeeiinreenenenennn 19,528 33,011
Interest ACCYeLiON. .. .ot iie et i ieeenoacototaaeomaaaesns 21,127 34,025
[0 103 =3 ST V- <A R (3,244) (419)
Total deferred tax @88€ES. ... ..ot ieeeroeneeoecnsionaronoanss 121,173 261,794
Less valuation allowanCe. ... ......eeennomnenonnnanenonanans (121,173) (261,794)
Net deferred LaX @BSELB . . . .o vt imetrantoreeeenaeanennnsassss $ - s -

A reconciliation of the expected tax benefit at the statutory federal
rate of 35% is as follows:

1998 1999
2000
Expected tax benefit at statutory rate.......... (35.0} % (35.0)%
(35.0) %
State income taxes, net of federal benefit...... (2.6) (3.8)
(4.2)
Non-deductible interest expense................. 2.0 1.1
0.8
£ ] ¢ Y= < 0.1 0.1
0.1
Change in valuation allowance................... 35.5 37.6
38.3
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11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
LEASES

The Company leases various facilities and equipment under operating
leases. Minimum rental commitments are as follows (IN THOUSANDS) :
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YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31:

2001, .. i i it st i e e s $ 9,737

2002, .. it et i i it e e e 8,403

2003 . .t it it a et a ey 7,602

2004 . .. it it i e e 7,039

2005 TS P 5,224
Thereafter. . ...cuuieeeneeneennnannannns 22,485
$60,490

Rent expense under operating leases was $1,299,000, $3,815,000, and
$7,835,000 for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively.
The amounts presented above for the year ending December 31, 2001 exclude
minimum rental commitments of $40.4 million associated with the Company's
operating lease for the KMC Funding V Equipment which was terminated in March
2001 as more fully described in Note 18.

LITIGATION

There are a number of lawsuits and regulatory proceedings related to
the Telecommunications Act of 1996, decisions of the Federal Communications
Commission related thereto and rules and regulations issued thereunder which may
affect the rights, obligations and business of incumbent 1local exchange
carriers, competitive local exchange carriers and other participants in the
telecommunications industry in general, including the Company.

PURCHASE COMMITMENTS

As of December 31, 2000, the Company has outstanding commitments
aggregating approximately $17 million related to purchases of telecommunications
equipment and fiber optic cable and its obligations under its agreements with
certain suppliers and service providers.

EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENTS

The Company has entered into employment agreements with certain of its
executives. In addition to a base salary, these agreements also provide for
certain incentive compensation payments, based upon the attainment of certain
business and financial milestones.

ARBITRATION AWARD

During the second quarter of 1999, the Company recorded a $4.3 million
charge to other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The
net amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 1999.

12. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
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The Company and certain affiliated companies owned by Kamine share
certain administrative services. The entity which bears the cost of the service
is reimbursed by the other for the other's proportionate share of such expenses.
The Company reimbursed Kamine-affiliated companies for these shared services an
aggregate of approximately $136,000, $60,000, and $0 of expense for the years
ended December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000, respectively. During 1999, the Company
purchased approximately $180,000 of office furniture and leasehold improvements
from an entity controlled by Kamine.

The Company leases its headquarters office through January 2012 from an
entity in which a trust for the benefit of Kamine's children owns a fifty
percent interest. This new lease provides for a base annual rental cost of
approximately $1.0 million, adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer
price index, plus operating expenses. Rent expense recognized under this new
lease and a predecessor lease (pursuant to which the Company had leased smaller
amounts of space) for the years ended December 31, 13998, 1999 and 2000 was
$217,000, $217,000 and $1.1 million, respectively.

Pursuant to an agreement dated as of January 1, 1399, the Company is
entitled to use a Citation TIII business jet chartered by Bedminster Aviation
LLC, a limited liability company wholly owned by Kamine, for a fixed price per
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hour of flight time. During 1999 and 2000, the Company paid approximately
$210,000 and $1.7 million, respectively, for the use of the Citation III. The
Company has agreed to use its best efforts to use the Citation III fifty hours
per quarter during 2001. However, the Company is under no obligation to do so
and it has not guaranteed any financial arrangements with respect to the
aircraft or to Bedminster Aviation LLC.

The Company is currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of
its construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC ("KNT") a company
independently owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau Capital, the principal
stockholders of the Company. Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties,
effective June 1, 2000, the Company transferred substantially all of the
employees of its construction division to KNT. KNT is providing construction and
maintenance services to the Company and is being reimbursed for all of the
direct costs of these activities. In addition, the Company is currently funding
substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative costs at an
amount not to exceed $15 million per annum.

Amounts paid to KNT during fiscal 2000 related to this arrangement
amounted to $20.0 million, of which $8.7 million was for network related
construction and was capitalized into networks and equipment and the balance was
charged to expense. Further, the Company may be entitled to participate in
future profits of KNT, to the extent KNT develops a successful third-party
construction business.

The Company is currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms of
this arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be completed
by June 15, 2001.

Pursuant to an agreement between the Company and Nassau, Nassau was
paid $450,000 per annum in cash as a financial advisory fee for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000.

Upon the initial closing of the offering of the Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock in July 2000, the Company paid a fee of $1.0 million in cash to
Nassau.

Upon the initial closing, in November 2000, of the 48 month loan which
the Company obtained to finance the KMC Funding Equipment, the Company paid a
fee of $1.0 million in cash to Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc.

As of December 31, 1999 and 2000, the Company has made loans
aggregating $575,000 and $350,000 respectively, to certain of its executives.
Such loans bear interest at a rate of 6% per annum and are included in other
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assets.
13. NET LOSS PER COMMON SHARE

The following table sets forth the computation of net loss per common

share:
1998 1989 2000
{IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Numerator:

Net loss before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle............ $ (76,753} $ (225,716) $ (357,982)

Cumulative effect of change in accounting

Principle......oceiiiiiiiiiiaaiiiinnann - - (1,705)

Net 1lOBB...ccusinviriaanecnaassssanscessvasoan {76,753) (225,716) (359,687)

Dividends and accretion on redeemable

preferred Btock. ... .. .iemiiiiiianntiinn (18,285} {81,633} {94,440}

Numerator for net loss applicable to

common shareholders.......ceeeerernecnnann $ (95,038) $ (307,349 $ (454,127)

semmsszamEo=xs snsasacaamxans sasmnsszsmmaxsms

Denominator:

Denominator for net loss per common share
- weighted average number of common
shares outstanding......c.ceuveiieonnanaann 831 852 855

Net loss per common share before
cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle - basic.........oiiiiiiiiians $ {114.42) $ (360.88) $ (529.22)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle. . ... .ottt - - (1.99)
Net loss per common share.................. $ {114.42) $ (360.88) S (531.21)
: ERHERSTTICECWMRS EEEEERUSRMEEER EEERETNCOSIRTTES
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Options and warrants to purchase an aggregate of 372,885, 496,729 and 706,196
shares of common stock were outstanding as of December 31, 1998, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, but a computation of diluted net loss per common share has not
been presented, as the effect of such securities would be anti-dilutive.

14. SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF NONCASH INVESTING AND FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Information with respect to noncash investing and financing activities is as
follows:

In connection with the Senior Discounts Notes, the Company recognized noncash
interest expense of $33.3 million and $39.0 million in 1999 and 2000,
respectively.

During 1999, the Company issued stock dividends to the holders of the Series
E Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock of 5,004 shares and 4,177
shares, respectively. During 2000, the Company issued stock dividends to the
holders of the Series E Preferred Stock and Series F Preferred Stock of 9,951
shares and 6,654 shares, respectively.

In connection with options granted to employees under the KMC Holdings Stock
Option Plan in 1998, 1999, and 2000 and under the KMC Telecom Stock Option
Plan in 1997, cumulative deferred compensation obligations of $27,906, 000,
$50,972,000, and $89,190,000 have been established in 1998, 1999 and 2000,
respectively, with offsetting credits to additional paid-in capital. Noncash
compensation expense of $23,758,000, $23,947,000 and $34,571,000 in 1998,
1999 and 2000, respectively, was recognized in connection with such options.
In connection with options granted to individuals employed by certain
affiliates of the Company in 1998, 1999 and 2000, the Company recognized
noncash compensation expense of $4,668,000, $5,832,000 and $3,796,000
respectively. 1In addition, during 1998 the Company cancelled all of the then
outstanding options granted under the KMC Telecom Stock Option Plan,
resulting in the reversal of previously recognized compensation expense of
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$21.3 million.
15. RECIPROCAL COMPENSATION

In May 2000, the Company reached a resolution of its claims for payment
of certain reciprocal compensation charges, previously disputed by BellSouth
Corporation. Under the agreement, BellSouth made a one-time payment that
resolved all amounts billed through March 31, 2000. In addition, BellSouth and
the Company agreed to future rates for reciprocal compensation, setting new
contractual terms for payment. Under the terms of the agreement, the rates for
reciprocal compensation will be reduced, and will apply to all local traffic,
including ISP-bound traffic, thereby eliminating the principal area of dispute
between the parties. The reduction will be phased in over a three-year period
beginning with a rate of $.002 per minute of use until March 31, 2001, $.00175
per minute of use from April 1, 2001 through March 31, 2002 and $.0015 per
minute of use from April 1, 2002 through March 31, 2003.

The Company is currently pursuing resolution of this issue with other
incumbent local exchange carriers. Its goal is to reach mutually acceptable
terms for both outstanding and future reciprocal compensation amounts for all
traffic. The Company cannot assure you that it will reach new agreements with
these carriers on favorable terms. However, as of December 31, 2000, the Company
has provided reserves which it believes are sufficient to cover any amounts
which may not be collected, but it cannot assure you that this will be the case.
The Company will continue to consider the circumstances surrounding this dispute
periodically in determining whether additional reserves against unpaid balances
are warranted.
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16. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The following methods and assumptions wexe used to estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The carrying amounts approximate fair value because of the short-term
maturity of the instruments.

LONG-TERM DEBT

The carrying amount of floating-rate long-term debt approximates its
fair value. The fair value of the Company's fixed-rate long-term debt is
estimated using discounted cash flows at the Company's incremental borrowing
rates.

REDEEMABLE EQUITY

The fair value of the Company's redeemable equity instruments are
estimated based upon third party valuations.

INTEREST RATE SWAP

At December 31, 2000, the Company had two interest rate swap agreements
to reduce the impact on interest expense of fluctuations in interest rates on a
portion of its variable rate debt. The effect of these agreements is to limit
the Company's interest rate exposure on a notional amount of debt of $415.0
million. The fair value was estimated as the amount the Company would receive if
the swap agreements were terminated at Decewmber 31, 2000.

ESTIMATED FAIR VALUES

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Company's
financial instruments are as follows (IN MILLIONS):

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 74
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2




KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC — 10-K — Annual Report Date Filed: 4/17/2001

1999 2000
CARRYING FAIR CARRYING FAIR
AMOUNT VALUE AMOUNT VALUE

Cash and cash equivalents................ouo.tn $ 86.0 $ 86.0 $ 110.0 $ 110.0
Long-term debt:

Floating rate........ ...t ruotrnnnnnnnonnen 235.0 235.0 728.2 728.2

Fixed rate - Senior Discount Notes........... 301.1 275.7 340.2 85.3

Fixed rate - Senior Notes.................... 275.0 263.5 275.0 109.5
Redeemable equity instruments:

Series E Preferred Stock........... ..ot 50.8 65.0 62.0 75.0

Series F Preferred Stock..................... 41 .4 44.2 50.6 47.9

Series A Preferred Stock................. ... 71.3 150.0 109.3 180.0

Series C Preferred Stock..................... 40.3 83.3 72.7 124.5

Series G-1 Preferred Stock................... - - 19.4 19.9

Series G-2 Preferred Stock................... - - 158.8 162.6

Redeemable commorn S8COCK. ......ceoeueneennnnn 33.8 56.0 45.6 . 67.2

Redeemable common stock warrants............. 12.9 21.6 16.8 25.9
Interest rate swaps (asset):

1999 SWAD . .- e ecrvnnrnn s aarentianaana - 3.9 - -
Amended and restated interest rate swap..... - - - (8.2)
June 2000 BWAP. ..o vt eerrrconareaasanns - - - (5.0)
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CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to
significant concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash
investments and accounts receivable. The Company places its cash investments
with major financial institutions. With respect to accounts receivable, the
Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers'’ financial
conditions and generally does not require collateral. At December 31, 2000,
reciprocal compensation comprised approximately $7.2 million or 12.4% of the
gross accounts receivable balance. The Company has contracts with Qwest (see
Note 9) which accounted for 36% of the Company's total revenue during the year
ended December 31, 2000. As of December 31, 2000, amounts due from Qwest
comprised $11.9 million or 20.4% of the Company's total accounts receivable,
none of which is past due. For the twelve months ended December 31, 1999 and
1998, no one customer accounted for more than 10% of revenue.

The Company maintains interconnection agreements with the major
incumbent local exchange carriers ("ILECs") in each state in which it operates.
Among other things, these contracts govern the reciprocal amounts to be billed
by competitive carriers for terminating local traffic of Internet service
providers ("ISPs") in each state. ILECs around the countxy have been contesting
whether the obligation to pay reciprocal compensation to competitive local
exchange carriers should apply to local telephone calls from an ILEC's customers
to ISPs served by competitive local exchange carriers. The ILECs claim that this
traffic is interstate in nature and therefore should be exempt from compensation
arrangements applicable to local intrastate calls. Competitive local exchange
carriers have contended that the interconnection agreements provide no exception
for local calls to ISPs and reciprocal compensation is therefore applicable. The
ILECs have threatened to withhold, and in many cases have withheld, reciprocal
compensation to competitive 1local exchange carriers for the transport and
termination of these calls. During 1999 and 2000, the Company recognized revenue
from these ILECs of approximately $9.7 million and $18.2 million, or 15.1% and
8.7% of 1999 and 2000 revenue, respectively, for these services. Payments of
approximately $1.6 million and $19.5 million were received from the ILECs during
1999 and 2000, respectively.

The Company determined to recognize this revenue because management
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concluded, based upon all of the facts and circumstances available to them at
the time, including numerous state public service commission and state and
federal court decisions upholding competitive local exchange carriers'
entitlement to reciprocal compensation for such calls, that realization of those
amounts was reasonably assured.

17. SUPPLEMENTAL GUARANTOR INFORMATION

In May 1999, the Company sold $275 million aggregate principal amount
of Senior Notes. KMC Telecom Financing Inc. (the "Guarantor"), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, has fully and unconditionally guaranteed the
Company's obligations under these notes. Separate financial statements and other
disclosures of the Guarantor are not presented because management determined the
information is not material to investors. No restrictions exist on the ability
of the Guarantor to make distributions to the Company except to the extent
provided by law generally (adegquate capital to pay dividends under corporate
laws) and restrictions contained in the Company's credit facilities.

The following condensed consolidating financial information presents
the results of operations, financial position and cash flows of KMC Holdings (on
a stand alone basis), the guarantor subsidiary (on a stand alone basis), the
non-guarantor subsidiaries (on a combined basis) and the eliminations necessary
to arrive at the consolidated results for the Company at December 31, 2000 and
1999 and for the years then ended. The non-guarantor subsidiaries include KMC
Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom IV, Inc.,
KMC Telecom.com LLC, KMC Telecom of vVirginia, 1Inc., KMC Telecom Financial
Services LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom
III Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom V, Inc., KMC Telcom VI, Inc., KMC Telecom VIiI,
Inc. and XMC Funding Corporation, (collectively, the "Non-Guarantor
Subsidiaries™).
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GUARANTOR/NON-GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 2000
(IN THOUSANDS)
CONSOLIDATED
KMC TELECOM NON- KMC
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
ASSETS
Current assetrs:
Cash and cash equivalents - $ 21,922 $ - S 88,055 § -- s 109,977
Restricted investmente.... . - 37,125 -- -- 37,1325
Accounts receivable, net.......... -~ -- 47,141 -- 47,141
Prepaid expenses and other current asgets. B 1,042 -- 13,846 -- 14,888
Amounts due from subsidiaries................oeiaeienn 124,455 -- 39,273 (163,728} --
Total current assets 147,419 37,125 188,315 (163,728} 209,131
1nvestment in subsidiaries............ “e 35,000 .- -- {35,000} --
Long-term restricted investments 76 19,284 43,571 - 62,931
Networks and equipment, net .... . 53,149 - 968,535 -- 1,021,684
Intangible 2MBELB, DL .. ... ..o oonnrara 1,368 -- 2,467 -- 3,835
Deferred financing COSTS, MNEL........ ... oo irerrererssers 17,524 -- 15,242 -- 32,766
Loang receivable from subsidiaries.................oeeeeees 866,713 -- -- (866,713) --
OULRGT BBBELB. . v wcvuvovnrrrennsnssnmossemesomsan oo rss 624 -- 304 -~ 928
§ 1,121,873 $56,409 $1,218,434 $1{1,065,441) $ 1,331,275
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
(DEFICLENCY)
Current liabilities:
ACCOUNES PAYADLE. .. ..o § 169,398 $ -- H 11,405
Accrued expenses..........- 38,666 -- 34,939
Amounts due to subsidiaries -- -- 163,728
Deferred revenue........... -- -- 17,839
Total current liabilities................oeeonrriaenres 208,064 -- 227,911
NOLEB PAYADLE. ... . c.oonine et .- -- 728,173 -- 728,173
Senior notes payable..................- 275,000 -~ - .- 275,000
Senior diacount notes payable 340,181 -- -- -- 340,181
Loans payable to parent................-- -- 49,415 817,298 {8966,713) .-
Lossea of subsidiaries in excess of basis 596,288 -- -- {596,288) --
Total 1iabiliti@d. ... .. ouninron s 1,419,523 4%,415 1,773,382 {1,626,729) 1,615,601
Redeemable equity:
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Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK preferred stock:

Series E.. 61,992 -- -- -- 61,992
Series F.. 50,568 - 4 -- - 50,568
Redeemable
Series 109,272 -~ -- - 109,272
Series 72,701 .- -- - 72,701
Redeemable
Series - 19,435 -- -- -- 19,435
Series G-2.......... e e . 158,797 -- -- -- 158,797
Redeemable common stock...... e . 45,563 -- -- 45,563
Redeemable common stock warrants. 16,817 - -- 16,817
Total redeemable equity .......... ... .. iiiiiinaaaan s 535,145 - -- -- 535,145
Nonredeemable egquity (deficiency):
Common stock 6 -- a (8) €
Unearned compensation {16,608) -- -- - (16,608)
Accumulated deficit 1816,203) 6,994 {554,956) 561,296 (802,869)
Total nonredeemable equity (deficiency)..................... (832,805} 6,994 {554,948) 561,288 (B19,471)
$1,121,873 $ 56,409 $1,218,434 § (1,065,441) § 1,331,275
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GUARANTOR/NON -GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
(IN THOUSANDS)
KMC TELECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
REVENUE. ... ... . i e $ - $ -- $ 209,195 $ -- H 209,195
Operating expensges:
Network operating casts -- - 169,593 .- 169,593
Selling, general and administrative. 100,113 .- €2,162 -- 162,275
Stock option compensation expense. 33,188 1,383 -- 34,571
Depreciation and amortization 11,878 64,251 -- 76,129
Total operating expenseB............................ 145,179 297,389 442,568
Logs £YOm OPErationS. ... ......ovuuieeennmunnnnnnrannns {145,179) -- {88,194) -- {233,373
Intercompany charges 134,409 - {134, 409) -~ --
Interest income. . ................ e €8,450 5,865 (66,2823} 11,784
Interest eXpense.................. BTN (80,157) (122,519) 66,283 {136,393)
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries.. (349,161) -- 349,161 --
Net income (loss) before cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle. ... {371,638) 3,752 (339,257) 349,161 {357,982)
Cumuiative effect of change in accounting
PLINCIPLlE. L . e -- -- {1,705} -- (1,705)
Net income {1088)............. ittt {371,638} 3,782 (340,962} 345,161 {35%,687)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred
BLOCK . . e (54,440} -- .- .- (94,440)
Net income (loss) applicable to common
shareholders............... ... ... .. ... ... § (466,078} $ 23,752 $ (340,562) § 349,161 § (454,127)
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GUARANTOR /NON-GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000
{IN THOUSANDS)
KMC TELECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES CLIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Ret 108B. ... ... ittt $ {371,638} $ 3,752 $ (340,962} $ 349,161 $ (359,687)
Adjustments to reconcile ner loss to net cash

used in operating activities:
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EqQuity in net loss of subsidiaries 349,161 -- - (349,161) .-
Depreciation and amortization..... 11,878 -~ 64,251 - 76,129
Provision for doubtful accounts...... -- -- 7,875 7,875
Non-cash interest expenge.............. 38,858 77 6,700 45,635
Non-cash stock option compensation expense. 33,188 -- 1,383 -- 34,571
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable............ ...l [ -- (27,649) -- (27,643)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets... 207 -- (2,72¢) (2,513)
Accounts payable.. 128,414 -~ (96,873) 31,541
Accrued expenses 23,837 -- 10,236 34,123
Deferred revenue. -- .- 13,530 13,530
Amounts due from -ubuduneu (51,483) 51,483 --
Other assets. 207 (216) {9)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating 162,835 3,829 (312,912) - (146,448)
ACLAIVILI®B. ... .. ... ittt aaaaa.  memmmeseecoee s-o---e-e- sssssssscos | Sssoeoeooso Sosooooseoe
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans receivable from subsidiaries................ {276,609} {35,914) 312,523 -- --
Conatruction of networks and purchases of
@QUIPMENIT . - oottt e e {2,534} - (473,706} -- (476,640)
Acquisitiona of franchises, authorizations and
related assets (70) - (856) -- {92¢)
Investments in subsidiaries....... (35,000) -- 35,000 -- --
Additions to restricted investment: - - {43,471} (43,471}
Redemprion of investments 32,085 .- 32,085
Net cash used in investing activities............. (3,829) (170,510} -- (488,952)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from notes payable, net of igsuance
Lo =T - -- - 108,475 -- 108,475
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of
issuance costs 177,500 - - -~ 177,500
Proceeds from exercise of stock options........... 562 - - -- 562
Proceeds from senior secured credit facility, net
Of IBBUANCE COSLB . ..\ o vt ie it nnnss .- - 376,203 .- 376,203
Repurchase and retirement of Series F Preferred
B T P (3,329) -- -- (3,329)
Net cash provided by financing activities......... 174,733
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents......... 22,758 1,256 .- 24,011
Cash and cash equivalentsa, beginning of year...... (833) 6,799 - 85,966
Cash and cash eguivalenta, end of year............ 5 21,822 s s BB, 055 $ - § 109,977
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GUARANTOR/NON-GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEET
DECEMBER 31, 199%
{IN THOUSANDS)
XMC TELECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR XMC TELECOM
PARENT CO GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
ASSETS
Current asaets:
Cash and cash equivalents {overdraft) $ (833) .- $ 86,799 $ -- $ 85,966
Restricted investments................. -- 37,125 - -- 37,125
Accounts receivable, 6 -- 27,367 -- 27,373
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.. 1,249 -- 126 -- 1,375
Amounts due from subsidiaries................... 72,972 -- {72,972) -- --
Total curxrent assets 73,394 37,125 41,320 -- 151,839
Long-term restricted investments -- 51,446 .- -- 51,446
Networks and equipment, net 58,531 -- SBC, 733 -- 639,324
Intangible assets, net ....... 1,388 .- 2,214 -- 3,602
Deferred financing costs, net. 21,031 - 17,785 - 39,816
Loans receivable from subsidiaries PPN B 590,103 (85,329) {504,774) - --
Other ASH@EB. .. .. ... ...ttt 825 -- 188 -- 1,013
Total asS8eLs. .. ... .. ... $ 745,272 $ 3,242 S 137,526 $ -- $ B86, 040
=
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY
{DEFICIENCY)
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable. ... ... . ...ttt $ 40,984 $ -- $ 126,506 $ -- H 167,490
ACCIUEd eXpenBeB. ... ...onuritn i 14,967 22,080 37,047
Deferred XEVENUE. ... ........ciinitinanaiaaans -- 4,309 4,309
Total current liabilities........................... 55,951 -- 152,895 -- 208,846
Notes payable. . .. ... ... .. ..., .- -- 235,000 -- 235,000
Senior notes payable 275,000 -- -~ -~ 275,000
Senior discount notes payable 301,137 -- 301,137
Losses of subsidiaries in excess of bas;s 247,127 (247,127) --
Total liabilities.................. . .c.ooiiiiiinann. 879,215 -- 387,885 (247,127} 1,019,983
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Redeemable equity:

Senior red ble, h le, PIX
preferred stoc
Series E. 50,770 -- -- - 50,770
Series F... 41,370 - -- -- 41,370
71,349 -- -- -~ 71,349
40,301 - - 40,301
33,758 -~ -- 33,758
12,925 -- -- 12,928
Total redeemable equit: 250,470 - -- -- 250,470
Nonresdeemable equity {
Common stock 6 -- -- 3
Additional paid-in capital.. - -- -- -- -
Unearned compensation. e (9,163} -- .- .- (9.163)
Accumulated deficit............ (375,256} 3,242 (250,369) 247,127 (375,256)
Total nonredeemable equity {deficiency).......... (384,413} 3,242 (250,369) 247,127 (384,413)
$ 745,272 $ 3,242 $ 137,526 $ -- $ 886,040
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GUARANTOR/NON - GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OP OPERATIONS
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999
(IN THOUSANDS)
KMC TELECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTOR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.
REVEOUE . . ittt it itian e taaat ey % -- $ -- $ 64,352 $ (39} $ 64,313
Operating expenses:
Network operating costs............ -- -- 110, 348 (39) 110,309
Selling, general and administrative 40,714 -- 15,089 -~ 55,803
Stock option compensation expense. . 29,833 -- -- 29,833
Depreciation and amortization 3,104 - 25,973 29,077
Total operating eXpenses................ccoueoonan-n 73,651 -- 151,410 225,022
Loss from operations {73,651} -- {87,058} -- (160,709)
Intercompany charges 72,972 -- (72,972} -~ -
Other expense (4,297) -« -- - (4,297)
Interest income 1,872 3,242 3,587 -- 8,701
Interest expense (36,729} -- (32,682) -- (69,411}
Bquity in net loss of subsidiaries (185,883} -- -- 185,883 -
Net income {loas)... (225,716} 3,342 (189,125) 185,883 (225, 716)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred (81,633) -- -- -- (81,633)
-7 2= T T e T e
Net income {(loss) applicable to common $ (307,349) $ 3,242 $ (189,125) $ 185,883 $ (307,349)
shaxeholders.......... ... ... ... .. iiiiiiiianannn
74
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GUARANTOR/NON - GUARANTOR CONSOLIDATING STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
YBAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 195%9%
(IN THOUSANDS)

KMC TBLECOM NON- CONSOLIDATED
HOLDINGS, INC. GUARANTCR KMC TELECOM
PARENT CO. GUARANTOR SUBSIDIARIES ELIMINATIONS HOLDINGS, INC.

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net 1OBB. ... ietiiet it iiatanenatasanaarenannns $ {225,716) $ 3,242 $ (189,125) $185,883 $ (225,716)
Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash

used in operating activities:

Equity in net loss of subsidiaries............. 185,883 -- -- (185,883) --
Depreciation and amortizatiom.. 3,104 -- 25,973 .- 29,077
Non-cash interest expense 36,963 -- {5,B22) -~ 31,141
Non-cash stock option compensation expense..... 29,833 .- -- -- 29,833
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable. ...................ian.an {6} -- (19, 828) -- (19,834)
Prepaid expenses and other current assets.... (917} -- B57 -- {60}
Accounts payable............_......... .. 441 -- (28,878} -- 29,319
Accrued expenses. PR . 9,075 .- 15,152 .- 24,227
Amounts due from sub . {52,050) -- 52,050 -- -~
Other ABO&LS. ... .. .. ...ttt 1,128 2,592 --

Net cash provided by (used in) operating (12,262) (89,273} --
activities. ........ ... ... ... el i, mmesmmmersees smmesmsmemoo mmc-om-aooo sesco-on
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans receivable from subsidiaries................ (324,390) 85,329 239,061 -- -
Construction of networks and purchases of

EQULPMENE . L et e e e (18,327 -- {300,209) -- {318,536}
Acquisitions of franchises, authorizations and

related ABBELS. . ... ..., {796} -- {1,196} - (1,992)
Redemption (purchase) of investments.............. -- (88,571) 27,920 104,101 43,4590
Net cash used in investing activities............. (343,513) {3,242} {34,424) 104,101 (277,078)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Procesds from issuance of preferred stock and

related warrants, net of issvance costs......... 91,001 -- -- -- 91,001
Proceeds from exercise of stock optioms........... 333 -- -- -- 333
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net of

issuance costs and purchase of portfolio of

restricted investments 262,387 -~ .- (104,101) 158,28¢
Proceeds from senior secured credit facility, net

of 1i88UANCE COBEEB. .. vt ot vet i nneann .- -- 192,836 -- 192,836
Issuance costs of Lucent facility................. -- -- (2,300) -- {2,300)
Net cash provided by financing activities......... 353,721 - 150,536 (104,101) 440,156

_____________ PR — et azmnzzaz O

Net increase (decrease) in cagh and cash
equivalenks. ... ... {2,054) -- 66,839 -~ 64,785
Cash and cash eguivalents, beginning of year...... 1,221 -- 19,960 .- 21,181
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year............ $ (833) $ -~ s 86,799 $ -- $ 85,966
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18. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
KMC FUNDING MONETIZATION

In March 2001, the Company entered into a financing transaction (the
"KMC Funding Monetization") that resulted in the Company receiving unrestricted
gross proceeds of $325.0 million from a secured loan. The KMC Funding
Meonetization is secured by the future cash flows from the Company's Nationwide
Data Platform business contract that was entered into in June 2000 (see Note 9).
The KMC Funding Monetization requires that the principal and interest be paid on
a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from the related contract.
The Company retains the right to receive the remaining cash flows from this
contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the monthly cash flows
(from which on-going operational expenses must be paid). The Company realized
net proceeds of approximately $145.5 million after using the gross proceeds to
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pay off the 48 month loan which the Company obtained from Dresdner Kleinwort
Benson North American Leasing, 1Inc. in November 2000 to finance its acquisition
of the KMC Funding Equipment (see Note 5), as well as financing fees and
expenses related to the monetization. The interest rate on the KMC Funding
Monetization is 7.34%.

KMC FUNDING V MONETIZATION

In March 2001, the Company entered into a financing transaction (the
"KMC Funding V Monetization") that resulted in the Company receiving
unrestricted gross proceeds of $225.4 million from a secured loan. The KMC
Funding V Monetization is secured by the future cash flows from the Company's
Nationwide Data Platform business contract that was entered into in March 2000
(see Note 9). The KMC Funding V Monetization regquires that the principal and
interest be paid on a monthly basis upon receipt of the monthly proceeds from
the related contract. The Company retains the right to receive the remaining
cash flows from this contract which are expected to be approximately 25% of the
monthly cash flows (from which on-going operatiocnal expenses must be. paid). The
Company realized net proceeds of approximately $125.5 million after using the
proceeds to exercise its purchase option with respect to the KMC Funding V
Equipment which the Company was leasing from GECC and CIT Lending Services
Corporation under an operating 1lease, as well as to pay any financing fees and
expenses related to the monetization. The interest rate on the KMC Funding V
Monetization is 6.77%.

SPRINGING WARRANTS

Effective February 4, 2001 the Company became obligated to issue
warrants to purchase an aggregate of 107,228 shares of its common stock at an
exercise price of $.01 per share to certain holders of the Series E Preferred
Stock and Series F Preferred Stock as a result of the Company's failure to
redeem, prior to that date, all of the outstanding shares of Series F Preferred
Stock. The issuance of these warrants will trigger anti-dilution provisions in
our Series A Preferred Stock, Series C Preferred Stock and Series G Preferred
Stock resulting in adjustments to the conversion prices which may result in an
increase in the number of shares of common stock into which they are convertible
of approximately 20,522 shares, 14,194 shares and 18,478 shares, respectively.
The issuance of the Springing Warrants will also trigger anti-dilution
provisions in certain of our other outstanding warrants which will increase the
number of shares of common stock for which such warrants are exercisable by
approximately 3,740 shares.

SERIES F PREFERRED STOCK

Effective February 4, 2001, all the shares of Series F Preferred Stock
were converted into shares of Series E Preferred Stock on a one to one basis in
accordance with the provisions of the Certificate of Designations of the Series
F Preferred Stock.

VOIP EQUIPMENT CONTRACT

In March 2001, the Company entered into an agreement with Qwest
pursuant to which (i) the Company purchased approximately $65 million of Voice
over Internet Protocol equipment from Qwest and {(ii) the Company agreed to
install and maintain this equipment throughout the United States, principally to
handle Voice over Internet Protocol traffic on behalf of Qwest. The services
agreement commences in the second half of 2001 and expires 48 months later, and
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provides guaranteed annualized revenues of approximately $29 million. The
Company expects to enter into a financing transaction to fund the cost of this
equipment.

AMENDMENT TO AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY
In April 2001, the Company and its Lenders under the Amended Senior

Secured Credit Facility agreed to make certain further amendments to the
facility, including the following:
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Certain of the financial covenants were amended to reflect changes in
the Company's business since the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility was
entered into and to permit continued compliance with those covenants by the
Borrowers in accordance with the Company's revised business plan. In addition,
certain additional financial covenants were added, the most significant of which
will require the Borrowers to meet specific 1liquidity tests prior to each due
date of cash interest and dividend payments on the Company's senior discount
notes, senior notes and preferred stock.

In addition to the existing reductions in the aggregate Revolver
commitment, the Revolver commitment will be further reduced, pro rata with the
Term Loan and Lucent Term Loan, (i) by applying the net asset sale proceeds of
certain asset sales (both as defined in the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility) in an amount egual to 85% of gross property, plant and equipment
allocated to the assets sold, plus 50% of any proceeds in excess of the full
gross property, plant and equipment allocated to the assets sold (plus a make up
of any shortfall on prior asset sales), (ii) by 50% of the net securities
proceeds (as defined) from the future issuance of equity interests by KMC
Holdings in excess of a cumulative $ 200.0 million and (iii) by prepayment of an
aggregate of $100 million on before May 1, 2002.

The Company will be required to use 50% of the excess cash flows (as
defined) from its National Data Platform business to make additional capital
contributions to the Borrowers.

The repayment schedule for the Term Loan was amended to provide for 17
consecutive quarterly installments commencing April 1, 2003 in the same
percentages of outstanding principal amount as the specified percentage
reduction in the Revolver commitment on the same date. The final installment
will now be due on April 1, 2007. Repayments of the Term Loan will also be made
from its pro rata share of net assets sale proceeds, net securities proceeds and
the $100.0 million repayment required to be made by May 1, 2002, all as
described above.

The repayment schedule for the Lucent Term Loan was also amended to
provide for 17 consecutive gquarterly installments commencing April 1, 2003 in
the same percentages of outstanding principal amount as the specified percentage
reduction in the Revolver commitment on the same date. The final installment
will now be due on April 1, 2007. Repayments on the Lucent Term Loan will also
be made from its pro rata share of net asset sale proceeds, net securities
proceeds and the $100.0 million repayment required to be made by May 1, 2002,
all as described above.

The interest rates on loans under the Amended Senior Secured Credit
Facility were increased. The "Applicable Base Rate Margin" now ranges from 3.25%
to 4.25% and the "Applicable LIBOR Margin" now ranges from 4.25% to 5.25%.
Interest is now payable monthly.

KMC Holdings has agreed that it will form a subsidiary holding company
which will own all of the common stock of its operating subsidiaries which are
engaged in its National Data Platform business. KMC Holdings has agreed to
pledge the shares of the data subsidiary holding company as further collateral
for KMC Holdings' guaranty of the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility.

In connection with the amendment, the Lenders also waived failures by
the Borrowers to comply with certain of the prior financial covenants as of
March 31, 2001 and the Company made aggregate capital contributions to the
Borrowers of $200.0 million. 1In addition, the collateral for KMC Holdings'
guaranty of the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility was expanded to include
substantially all of the assets of KMC Holdings.
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LENDER WARRANTS

In connection with the execution of the amendment to the Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility discussed above, the Company agreed to deliver to a
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warrant agent certificates representing warrants to purchase an aggregate of
166,542 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $.01 per share (the
"Lender Warrants"). The terms of the Lender Warrants provide that they will
become issuable under the circumstances described in the following paragraphs.

If the Company fails to (i) prepay an aggregate of $50 million under
the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility by October 31, 2001, (ii) prepay an
additional $50 million under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility by
January 31, 2002 and (iii) make additional cash capital contributions to the
Borrowers in the aggregate amount of $50 million by January 31, 2002, 50% of the
Lender Warrants will be issued pro rata to the Lenders under the Amended Senior
Secured Credit Facility. If the Company fails to make additional cash capital
contributions to the Borrowers in the aggregate amount of $100 million by March
31, 2002 (including any amounts taken into consideration pursuant to clause
{(iii) above), ©50% of the Lender Warrants will be issued pro rata to the Lenders
under the Amended Senior Secured Credit Facility. Any Lender Warrants which do
not become issuable as described herein will be returned to the Company by the
Warrant Agent.

NOTE REPURCHASES

We believe that the present market prices of our 12 1/2% senior
discount notes and our 13 1/2% senior notes represent an opportunity for us to
reduce our long-term debt. Accordingly, our subsidiaries have recently made, and
may in the future make, purchases of senior discount notes and/or senior notes
in the open market from time to time at then prevailing market prices. Certain
of our officers and directors may also make purchases for their own account. We
may utilize a portion of our unrestricted cash to pay for any purchases of
senior discount notes or senior notes that we may make.

FUTURE DEBT REPAYMENT SCHEDULE

Due to the significant changes in the Company's future debt repayment
structure subsequent to December 31, 2000, the principal repayment schedule of
the Company's outstanding debt as of March 31, 2001 is as follows (IN
THOUSANDS) :

2001 $ 86,327

2002 129,952

2003 221,478

2004 269,017

2005 221,002
Thereafter 904,675
Total $ 1,832,451
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Independent Auditors' Report on Schedules

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
KMC Telecom Heoldings, Inc.
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We have audited the consolidated balance sheets of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. as
of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and the related consolidated statements of
operations, redeemable and nonredeemable equity and cash flows for the years
then ended. OQur audit report issued thereon dated April 17, 2001 is included
elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Our audit also included the financial statement
schedules 1listed in Item 14(a) of this Form 10-K. These schedules are the
responsibility of the Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion based on our audits.

In our opinion, the financial statement schedules referred to above, when
congidered in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole,
present fairly, in all material respects the information set forth therein.

/s/ ERNST & YOUNG LLP

MetroPark, New Jersey
April 17, 2001
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SCHEDULE 1 - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{Parent Company}

Condensed Balance Sheets
(IN THOUSANDS)

DECEMBER 31
1999 2000
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalenta (overdraft)......... ... . (. iiiiiiiinaiieienarinannss $ (833) s 21,920
Amcunts due from subsidiaries............ 72,972 124,455
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 1,255 1,042
TOLZL CUTTENT B8BELB. . ...ttt ittt ittt ettt 73,394 147,417
Loans receivable from subsidiaries.. 590,103 B66,713
Networka, property and equipment, ne 58,531 53,149
Intangible assets, .. 1,388 1,368
Deferred [inancing costs, 21,031 17,524
Investment in subsidiaries... . s -~ 35,000
OLRBY @88ELS. . .. ... e 825 700
$ 745,272 $ 1,121,871
LIABILITIES, REDEEMABLE AND NONREDEEMABLE EQUITY (DEFICIENCY)
Current liabilities:
Accounts pPayable. . . ... e e s 40,934 $ 169,398
ACCIUEA @XDENG@B . . .. ...ttt ettt e e 14,967 38,666
Total current 1iabiliCi®d8. . . ... ... e e 55,951 208,064
Senior notes payable........... . . .. 275,000 275,000
Senior discount notes payable........_ ... B . .. 301,137 340,181
Losses of subsidiaries in excess of basis 247,127 596,288
Total 1iabildBies. . ... .. .. i 873,215 1,419,533

Redeemable equity:

Senior redeemable, exchangeable, PIK preferred stock, par value $.01 per
share; authorized: 630 shares in 1999 and 2000; shares issued and

outstanding:

Series E, 65 ghares in 1999 and 75 shares in 2000 ($74,954 liquidation

preference) . 50,770 61,992
Series F, 44 shares in 1992 and 48 shares in 2000 ($47,866 liquidation

preference) . 41,370 50,568

Redeemable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value $.01 per share;
499 shares authorized; shares issued and outstanding:
Series A, 124 shares in 1999 and 2000 {($12,380 liquidation preference)... 71,349 109,272
Series C, 175 shares in 1999 and 2000 ($17,500 liquidation prefersnce)... 40,301 72,701
Redeemable cumulative convertible preferred stock, par value $.01 per share;
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2,500 ghares authorized; shares issued and outstanding
Series G-1, -0- shares in 1999 aand 59 shares in 2000 ($19 900 liquidation
preference)
Series G-2, -0- shares in 1999 and 481 sharee in 2000 ($162,600
liquidation preference).
Redeemable common stock, uhares issued an ou:sr.andmg, 224 in 199 and 2000
Redeemable common BtOCK WAXTANLE. .. .. ... ciunemmuaanacarranrrrsorissnsronanns

Total redeemable equity..
Nonredeemable equity (denc:tenc Y
Common stock, par value $.01 per share, 4,250 shares authorized;
shares issued and mu:standmg 629 sharea in 1999 and 637 shares in 2000
Unearned compensation . .
Accumulated deficit

Total nonredeemable equity (deficiency).... ... ...t iiiiininiiinnicnariannannnans

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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SCHEDULE I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{Parent Company)

Condensed Statements of Operations
(IN THOUSANDS)

33,755
12,925

(9,163)
(375,256)

$ 745,272

19,435

158,797
45,561
16,817

535,145

6
(16,608)
(816,205)

$ 1,121,871

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

1998

Operating expenses:

Selling, general and administrative.. $ 19,624

Stock option compensation expense. 21,180

Depreciation and amortization 1,197
Total operating eXpenSeS. .. .........cuovtiroonocoanannean 42,011
Loss from OPerationS................ieiiininnnnnnnnnnns {42,011)
OLhET EeXPONSEe. .. ...\ttt iinnanneanaaaanaananan -
Intercompany charges...... . B e . 20,922
Interest AMCOME. . ... .. ... . ot ittt 8,575
INtETreBt EXPeDBE . . ...ttt ta s a e (23,104)
Equity in net loss of subsidiaries.................... {41,135)
D] R - T {7€,753)
Dividends and accretion on redeemable preferred
BEOCK . it i e e e e {1B,285)

Net loes applicable to common shareholders............ $ (95,038)

(73,651)

{(4.297)
72,972
18,297

{53,154}

(18s,883)

(225, 716}

(81,633}

$ (307,349)

$ 100,113
33,188
11,878

(145,179}

134,409

66,450
(80,157)
{349,161)

(371,638}

(94,440)

$ {466,078)

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.

81

SCHEDULE I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{Parent Company)

Condensed Statements of Cash Plows
{IN THOUSANDS)

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 131,
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1998 1999 2000
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
- < T $ {76,753} § (225,716} $ (371,6238)
Adjustments to reconcile net loes to net cash used in operating
activities:
Egquity in net loss of gubsidiaries............. ... ...l 41,135 185,883 349,161
Depreciation and amortization 1,197 3,104 11,878
Non-cash interest expense... 23,104 36,963 38,858
Non-cash stock option compen n expense 21,190 29,833 33,188
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Accounta receivable............... ...l - - €
Prepaid expenses and other current assets . {332} (923} 207
Accounts payable..............c.ciiiinls B 2,043 441 128,414
Accrued expenses....... 5,838 92,075 23,837
Amounts due from subsidiaries. .- {20,922} (52,050} {51,483)
LN ABSOLE . ... .. .. {1,952} 1,128 207
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities..................... (5,452} (12,262) 162,635
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Loans receivable from SubsSidiaCi@B................uvivirorennnaanaas (233,685) (324,33%0) (276,608)
Purchases of eguipment........... N {5,845) (18,327} (2,934}
Investments in subsidiaries.... .. - - {35,000)
Acquisitions of intangible 38BeLB................cuvinrnrnrnnrarnnaanans (166) (796} {70}
Net cash used in investing activities................... .. .. ... 000, {239,696) (343,513) (314,613}
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock, net of imsuance costs........ - 91,001 177,500
Proceeds from exercise of Btock OPLiIONS. . . ... .uiiiimnneenrannnnnans - kEEK] 562
Proceeds from issuance of senior notes, net of issuance costs and
purchase of portfoclic of restricted 1nveSEmMENTB...................... - 262,387 -
Proceeds from issuance of common stock and warrantg, net of issuance
COBES . o ettt ettt e e e e e e 20,446 - -
Repurchase and retirement of Series F Preferred Stock................... - - {3,329)
Proceeds from issuance of senior discount notee, net of issuance costs.. 225,923 - -
Net cash provided by financing activities..........................c.... 246,369 353,721 174,733
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents.................... 1,221 (2,054) 22,755
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year.................ciivvnnnnnn - 1,221 (833)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year..................cvurruennuenannn s 1,221 $ (833} $ 21,922

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES.
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SCHEDULE 1 - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
(Parent Company)

Notes to Condensed Financial Statements
December 31, 2000
1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

In the parent company only financial statements, KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
(the "Company") investment in subsidiaries is stated at cost less equity in
losses of subsidiaries since date of formation. These parent company financial
statements should be read in conjunction with the Company's consolidated
financial statements.

Pursuant to a management agreement among the Company and its subsidiaries, the
Company provides management and other services and incurs certain operating
expenses on behalf of its subsidiaries. Such costs are allocated to the
subsidiaries by the Company and reimbursed on a current basis. At December 31,
1999 and 2000, an aggregate of $73.0 and $124.5 million, respectively, was due
from the subsidiaries for such costs and is included in the accompanying
condensed balance sheet at December 31, 1999 and 2000 as a current receivable.
Such reimbursements are permitted under the debt agreements of the Company's
subsidiaries.

2. AMENDED SENIOR SECURED CREDIT FACILITY

See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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3. INTEREST RATE SWAP AGREEMENT

See Note 6 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

4. SENIOR DISCOUNT NOTES

See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

5. SENIOR NOTES

See Note 5 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

6. REDEEMABLE EQUITY

See Note 7 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

7. ARBITRATION AWARD

During the second quarter of 1999, the Company recorded a $4.3 million charge to
other expense in connection with an unfavorable arbitration award. The net
amount due under the terms of the award was paid in full in June 1999.

8. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
SCHEDULE I1 - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
(IN THOUSANDS)
ADDITIONS
CHARGED TO
EBALANCE AT CHARGED TO OTHER
BEGINNING COSTS AND ACCOUNTS -~ DEDUCTIONS - BALANCE AT
DESCRIPTION OF PERIOD EXPENSES DESCRIBE DESCRIBE END OF PERICD
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1938:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 34 $ 170 $ -- $ 54 (1) $ 350
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 231, 19399:
Allowance for doubtful accounts $ 350 §5,263 $ -- 3 62{1) $ 5,551
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2000:
Allowance for doubtful accounts §5,551 §7,875 3 -- $ 2,505(1) §10,921
1) Uncollectible accounts written-off.
84

ITEM 5. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE.
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None.
PART III
ITEM 10. DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS OF THE REGISTRANT.
The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the

persons who are members of the Board of Directors or are executive officers of
the Company as of March 30, 2001.

NAME AGE
POSITION

Harold N. Kamine................ 44 Chairman of the Board of
Directors

Gary E. Lasher.................. 65 Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors

William F. Lenahan.............. 50 Chief Executive Officer and
Director

Roscoe C. Young II............. 50 President, Chief Operating
Officer and Director

William H. Stewart.............. 34 Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer and Director

Robert L. Nibbs, Jr. ........... 49 Executive Vice President,
Field Sales and Operations

Larry G. Salter................. 52 Executive Vice President,
Network Services

Tricia Breckenridge............. 54 Executive Vice President,
Business Development

John G. Quigley................. 47 Director

Richard H. Patterson............ 42 Director

Alexander P. Coleman............ 34 Director

Jeffrey M. Tuder................ 27 Director

The business experience of each of the directors and executive officers
of the Company is as follows:

HAROLD N. KAMINE is our founder and has been the Chairman of our board
of directors since 1994. He is a co-owner of KNT Network Technologies LLC, which
is our exclusive provider of outside network related construction and
maintenance services. Previously, he was the Chief Executive Officer and sole
owner of Kamine Development Corp. and associated companies in the independent
power industry. Mr. Kamine has successfully financed a number of unregulated
non-utility power generation projects. Companies owned by Mr. Kamine owned
substantial interests in and managed six power generation plants in the
Northeastern United States. Mr. Kamine devotes less than half his time to our
affairs.

GARY E. LASHER joined us as Vice Chairman of our board of directors
effective November 1, 1997. He was the founder, Chief Executive Officer and
President of Eastern TeleLogic Corporation from 1987 to 1997. Eastern Telelogic
was a leading competitive local exchange carrier operating in greater
Philadelphia, Delaware and southern New Jersey before its purchase by Teleport
Communications Group in October 1996. Prior to Eastern Telelogic, from
1984-1986, Mr. Lasher was Chief Operating Officer of Private Satellite Network,
a company which built and operated video satellite networks for major
corporations. Mr. Lasher also spent 20 years with Continental Telephone holding
various positions including Corporate Vice President, President of the
International Engineering and Construction Company, and various senior positions
with Continental Telephone's regulated subsidiaries. Mr. Lasher is one of the
founding members of the Association for Local Telecommunications Services and
served for three vyears as Chairman of the Association. Mr. Lasher is also
Chairman of the Board of Linx Communications, a privately-owned provider of
unified personal communications services.
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WILLIAM F. LENAHAN joined us as our Chief Executive Officer effective
May 1, 2000 and has been a director since May 2000. He was President and Chief
Executive Officer of BellSouth Wireless Data from October 1994 to April 2000,
and was responsible for financial performance and nationwide wireless data
strategy for this division of BellSouth Corporation. From 1987 to 1993, he was
Vice President/General Manager and then President and Chief Executive Officer of
three Sears divisions--Sears Business Centers, Office Centers and Computer
Services. In 1986, he was named President and Chief Executive Officer of
BellAtlantic's Compushop division, a reseller of PCs and communications
products. Mr. Lenahan has served nearly 30 years in the information technology,
telecommunications and data industries. He began his career at IBM, where he
worked for 12 years in a variety of sales, marketing, operations and human
resources executive assignments, and sat on the IBM Product Review Board. He
later ijoined United Telecom, the forerunner of Sprint, where he started
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Amerisource, a new business that resold PBXs, PCs and systems integration
products. He was a member of the Advisory Councils of IBM, Compaqg and NCR.

ROSCOE C. YOUNG II has over 20 years experience in the field of
telecommunications with both new venture and Fortune 3500 companies. He has
served as a director since December 1999 and President and Chief Operating
Officer since March 2000. Previously, he had been our Executive Vice President
and Chief Operating Officer. Prior to joining us in November 1996, Mr. Young
served as Vice President, Network Component Services for Ameritech Corporation
from June 1994 to October 1996. From March 1988 to June 1994, Mr. Young served
as Senior Vice President, Network Services for MFS Communications. From October
1977 to March 1988, Mr. Young served in a number of senior operations, sales and
marketing, engineering, financial management, and human resource positions for
AT&T Corp.

WILLIAM H. STEWART has served as a director since August 1997.
Mr. Stewart joined us as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer in
March 2000. Previously, Mr. Stewart was a Managing Director of Nassau Capital
L.L.C. after joining that firm in June 1995. From 1989 until joining Nassau, Mr.
Stewart was a portfolio manager and eguity analyst at the Bank of New York. He
is a Chartered Financial Analyst and a member of the New York Society of
Security Analysts.

ROBERT L. NIBBS, JR. joined us in November 1997. He is our Executive
Vice President of Field Sales and Operations and oversees all sales and
operations activities in KMC's Tier III markets. Prior to joining KMC, he served
over 20 years in marketing, sales and operations positions with Ameritech
Corporation

LARRY G. SALTER joined us in December 1997. He is the Executive Vice
President of Network Services and has over 30 years experience in the field of
telecommunications. Prior to joining us, he spent 28 years with AT&T where he
worked in Bell Labs, as well as senior level positions in marketing and product
management .

TRICIA BRECKENRIDGE joined us in April 1995. From January 1993 to April
1995, she was Vice President and General Manager of FiberNet USA's Huntsville,
Alabama operations. Previously, she had served as Vice President, External
Affairs and later Vice President, Sales and Marketing of Diginet, Inc. She was
co-founder of Chicago Fiber Optic Corporation, the predecessor of Metropolitan
Fiber Systems. Earlier, she was Director of Regulatory Affairs for Telesphere
Corporation.

JOHN G. QUIGLEY has served as a director since August 1996. Mr. Quigley
is a founding member of Nassau Capital L.L.C., the independent firm that has
managed Princeton University endowment's $2.0 billion private investment program
since 1995. Nassau Capital L.L.C. is the general partner of Nassau Capital
Partners L.P. and Nassau Capital Partners IV L.P. Mr. Quigley is also on the
board of directors of KNT Network Technologies LLC and an adjunct faculty member
at Columbia Law School.
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RICHARD H. PATTERSON has served as a director since May 13597. From May
1986 to June 1999, Mr. Patterson served as a partner of Waller Capital
Corporation, a media and communications investment banking firm. Since June
1997, he has served as a Vice President of Waller-Sutton Media LLC and Vice
President of Waller-Sutton Management Group, Inc., two entities which manage a
media and telecommunications private equity fund. Since October 1999, he has
served as Managing  Member of Spire Capital Partners, a media and
telecommunications fund providing growth capital to private companies. Mr.
Patterson is a member of the board of directors of Regent Communications, Inc.,
which owns and operates radio stations in small-to-mid size wmarkets.

ALEXANDER P. COLEMAN has served as a director since July 2000. Since
January 1996, Mr. Coleman has served as Vice President and Investment Partner of
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity LLC, Dresdner Bank AG's United States
leveraged buyout group. Prior to joining Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity LLC, Mr. Coleman served in several corporate finance positions for
Citicorp/Citibank N.A. from 1989 through 1995, and most recently as Vice
President of Citicorp Venture Capital. Mr. Coleman is also a director of
Gardenburger, Inc. and Tritel, Inc.

JEFFREY M. TUDER has served as a director since January, 2001. Since
1998, Mr. Tuder has served as a Principal with Nassau Capital L.L.C. Prior to
joining Nassau Capital in 1998, Mr. Tuder was a Financial Analyst with ABS
Capital Partners, L.P. from 1996 to 1998, and served in the investment banking
division of Alex. Brown & Sons from 1995 to 1996. Mr. Tuder is also on the Board
of Managers of KNT Network Technologies LLC.
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Pursuant to provisions contained in an Amended and Restated
Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997, as further amended, among
the Company, Kamine, Nassau, CIT Lending Services Corporation, GECC, First
Union, Lucent and Dresdner Kleinwort Benson (the "Stockholders' Agreement"),
these stockholders have agreed to vote their shares and take all necessary
actions to elect the following individuals to the Company's board of directors:
the Chief Executive Officer, the President, three individuals designated by
Nassau, two individuals designated by Kamine, one individual designated by
Dresdner and one individual as an independent director approved by Nassau,
Kamine and other principal existing stockholders. Lucent or a person to whom
Lucent transfers its shares may be entitled to designate one individual under
certain circumstances. The number of directors each of Nassau, Kamine and
Dresdner is entitled to designate will decrease as their respective percentages
of ownership decrease. If a default relating to payment occurs under the Amended
Senior Secured Credit Facility and continues uncured for 90 days, the holders of
Series C Preferred Stock (currently Nassau, GECC and First Union) are entitled
to elect two additional Directors, who will serve until the default is cured. In
addition, under the certificate of designations relating to each of our Series E
Preferred Stock and Series F preferred Stock, if a default occurs under such
certificate(s), the holders of Series E Preferred Stock and/or the holders of
the Series F Preferred Stock will have the right to elect one additional
individual each to serve as a director (for a total of two additional
directors), in each case until the default is cured and all accrued dividends on
such preferred stock are paid in full.

Kamine/Besicorp Allegany L.P., an independent power company 50% owned
by corporations which Mr. Kamine owns, filed a voluntary petition to reorganize
its business under Chapter 11 of the Federal Bankruptcy Code in November 1995.
In October 1998, the bankruptcy court confirmed a plan of liquidation for this
entity.

Directors hold office until the next Annual Meeting of stockholders or
until their successors are duly elected and qualified. Executive officers are
elected annually by the Board of Directors and serve at the discretion of the
Board of Directors.

COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD
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Our board of directors has authorized a Compensation Committee to be
composed of three members. The present members of the Compensation Committee are
Messrs. Quigley, Patterson and Coleman. Our board of directors has created an
Executive Committee consisting of Messrs. Kamine, Quigley and Coleman. Our board
of directors has also created an Audit Committee consisting of Messrs. Lasher,
Patterson, Quigley and Coleman.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION.
SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation for
services in all capacities awarded to, earned by, or paid to, any person acting
as the Company's Chief Executive Officer during 2000, regardless of the amount
of compensation paid, and the other four most highly compensated executive
officers of the Company whose aggregate cash and cash equivalent compensation
exceeded $100,000 during the fiscal year ended December 31, 2000 (collectively,
the "Named Executive Officers"):
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LONG TERM
ANNUAL COMPENSATION COMPENSATION
OTHER ANNUAL SECURITIES
COMPENSATION UNDERLYING
NAME AND POSITION YEAR SALARY ($) BONUS ($) ($) (1) OPTIONS (#)
William F. Lenahan(2).............. 2000 $317,382 $§1, 000,000 - 50,000
Chief Executive Officer
Michael A. Sternberg(3)............ 2000 $142,195 - - -
President and Chief Executive 1939 $496,539 $272,500 - -
Officer 1998 $275,000 $407,500 - 65,000
Harold N. Kamine................... 2000 $485, 053 - - -
Chairman of the Board 1998 $450, 000 - - -
Roscoe C. Young II.................
President and Chief Operating 2000 §591,200 $1,150, 000 - 17,500
Officer 1999 $446,539 $362,500 - -
1998 $218,270 $497,50Q $52,189 32,500
William H. Stewart(4).............. 2000 $278,864 $500,000 - 35,000
Executive Vice President,
Chief Financial Officer
Robert L. Nibbs, Jr................ 2000 $235,975 $303,069 -~ 2,000

Executive Vice President,
Sales and Operations

(1) The amounts reported in this column £for Mr. Young in 1998 include
relocation related expenses of $47,377 and personal use of a Company
automobile of $4,812. The aggregate value of the perquisites and other
personal benefits, if any, received by Mr. Young for 2000 and 19299 and by
the other Named Executive Officers for all years presented have not been
reflected in this table because the amount was below the Securities and
Exchange Commission's threshold for disclosure (i.e., the lesser of $50,000
or 10% of the total of annual salary and bonus for the executive officer
for the year).

{(2) Mr. Lenahan joined the Company as Chief Executive Officer effective May 1,
2000 and the compensation figures for him are for the period from that date
to the end of the year.
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(3) Mr. Sternberg served in the capacities indicated from the beginning of the
year until March 8, 2000 and the compensation figure for him is for that
period. For a description of amounts payable to Mr. Sternberg pursuant to a
separation agreement, see "--separation agreements’ below.

(4) Mr. Stewart ijoined the Company as Executive Vice President and Chief
Financial Officer on March 9, 2000 and the compensation figures for him are
for the period from that date to the end of the year.

STOCK OPTION GRANTS
The following table sets forth information regarding grants of options to

purchase shares of Common Stock made by the Company during 2000 to each of the
Named Executive Officers.

88
OPTION GRANTS IN FISCAL YEAR 2000
INDIVIDUAL GRANTS
MARKET POTENTIAL REALIZABLE VALUE AT
PERCENT OF PRICE ASSUMED ANUAL RATES OF STOCK

NUMBER OF ‘TOTAL OF PRICE APPRECIATION FOR

SECURITIES QOPTIONS EXERCISE COMMON OPTION TERM (3)

UNDERLYING GRANTED TO OR STOCK ON = m-----mm-secsorsoco oo mmmmmmm oo oo

OPTIONS EMPLOYEES BASE DATE

GRANTED IN FISCAL PRICE OF GRANT EXIRATION

NAME # {1 2000 {5/SHARE) (2) DATE (0%} {(5%) (10%)

William F. Lenahan..... 50,000 19.6% $75 $aco 5/12/10 $11,250, 000 $20,683,000 $35,156,000
Michael A. Sternberg... - - - - - - -
Harold N. Kamine....... - - - - - - -
Roscoe C. Young II.... 17,500 6.8% $75 $300 3/6/10 $3,%38,000 $7.229,000 512,305,000
William H. Stewart..... 35,000 13.7% $75 $300 3/6/10 $7,875,000 $14,478,000 $24,609,000

Robert L. Nibbs, Jr.... 2,000 1.0% $250 $300 4/12/10 $100, 000 $477,000 §1,0%8,000

(1) Mr. Lenahan, Mr. Young, and Mr. Stewart's options vested 25% upon
issuance and continue to vest 12.5% every six months thereafter.
Mr. Nibbs options vest annually over three years.

(2) There is no active trading market for the Company's Common Stock. The
market price shown is based upon management's estimate of the fair value
of the Company's Common Stock on the date when these options were granted.

(3) Amounts reported in these columns represent amounts that may be realized
upon exercise of options immediately prior to the expiration of their term
assuming the specified compounded rates of appreciation (0%, 5% and 10%)on
Common Stock over the term of the options. These assumptions are based on
rules promulgated by the Securities and Exchange Commission and do not
reflect the Company's estimate of future stock price appreciation. Actual
gains, if any, on the stock option exercises and Common Stock holdings are
dependent on the timing of such exercises and the future wvalue of the
Common Stock. There can be no assurance that the rates of appreciation
assumed in this table can be achieved or that the amounts reflected will
be received by the option holders.

OPTION EXERCISES AND OPTION YEAR-END VALUE TABLE

No options were exercised during 2000 by any of the Named Executive
Officers. The following table sets forth information regarding the number and
year-end value of unexercised options to purchase shares of Common Stock held at
December 31, 2000 by each of the Named Executive Officers.
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FISCAL 2000 YEAR-END OPTION VALUES

NUMBER OF SECURITIES

VALUE OF UNEXERCISED

UNDERLYING UNEXERCISED
"IN-THE-MONEY"

SHARES VALUE OPTIONS AT

OPTIONS AT .
ACQUIRED ON REALIZED DECEMBER 31, 2000
DECEMBER 31, 2000
NAME EXERCISE (#) ($) EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE
EXERCISABLE/UNEXERCISABLE (1)

William F. Lenahan....... - - 18,750/31,250
$4,219,000/$7,031,000
Michael A. Sternberg..... - - 65,000/~

$17,810,000/8 -
Harold N. Kamine......... - - -

Roscoe C. Young II...... - - 35,812/14,188
$9,536,000/%$3,192,000

William H. Stewart....... - - 13,125/21,875
$2,953,000/%4,922,000

Robert L. Nibbs, Jr...... - - 3,000/4,000

$822,000/$648,000

(1) Options are "In-the-Money" if the fair market value of the underlying
securities exceeds the exercise price of the options. There is no active
trading market for the Company's Common Stock. The fair market value of the
option grants at December 31, 2000 was determined on the basis of
management's estimate of the fair value of the Company's Common Stock on
that date.

DIRECTOR COMPENSATION

Our Directors do not currently receive any compensation for their
services in such capacity, except that Mr. Lasher receives $25,000 per year in
connection with his services as our Vice Chairman and was granted options to
acquire 12,000 shares of our stock and Mr. Patterson receives $25,000 and
options to acquire 1,000 shares of our common stock per year in connection with
his services as a Director.

EXECUTIVE EMPLOYMENT CONTRACTS

We have an employment contract with Harold N. Kamine, the Chairman of
our board of directors. Our employment agreement with Mr. Kamine provides for a
term of four years, effective as of January 1, 1999. Under the agreement, Mr.
Kamine is paid a base salary of $450,000 per annum and is entitled to be
considered for bonuses in amounts to be determined by the Board of Directors.
Mr. Kamine is entitled to receive benefits generally received by our
senior executives, including reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf,
and participation in group plans. If Mr. Kamine's employment agreement is
terminated as a result of Mr. Kamine's death or permanent disability, or upon
our breach of the agreement, he, or his estate, 1is entitled to a severance
payment in an amount equal to the lesser of two times his annual base salary and
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the aggregate unpaid base salary that would have been paid to him during the
remaining balance of the term of the employment contract, subject to a minimum
of one-half of his annual base salary.

We have an employment contract with William F. Lenahan, Chief Executive
Officer and a member of our board of directors. Our employment agreement with
Mr. Lenahan provides for a term of five years, effective as of May 1, 2000.
However, the term will be automatically extended for successive two year periods
unless either party provides notice to the other, at least ninety days prior to
the end of the term, that the agreement will not be extended. Under the
agreement, Mr. Lenahan's base salary is $500,000 per annum and he is entitled to
be considered for an annual bonus in an amount to be determined by the
Compensation Committee of the board of directors. In addition to the annual
bonus, Mr. Lenahan will be entitled to receive a total of $3.0 million in bonus
payments with $500,000 payable upon completion of each of three (3) financing
transactions related to our data services agreements with Qwest, $500,000
payable upon the Company achieving positive EBITDA and $1.0 million payable upon
the next equity capital event (public or private), other than an initial public
offering, in which at least $100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our
agreement, Mr. Lenahan may elect to receive these special bonuses in common
stock in lieu of cash. Mr. Lenahan is also entitled to receive benefits
generally received by our officers, including options to purchase our common
stock, reimbursement of expenses incurred on our behalf, and a leased
automobile. If we terminate Mr. Lenahan's employment without cause, or if the
term of his employment agreement expires, prior to an initial public offering or
upon our change in control, Mr. Lenahan will be entitled to receive a makeup
bonus equal to $5.0 million. Upon termination of the agreement, Mr. Lenahan is
subject to a confidentiality covenant and a twenty- four month non-competition
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agreement. Mr. Lenahan is entitled to receive a severance payment in an amount
ranging from 0% to 200% of his base salary upon termination of his employment
depending on the cause of such termination. Upon payment of the makeup bonus,
all stock and stock options which Mr. Lenahan may have with regard to our equity
will be terminated.

We have an employment contract with Roscoe C. Young, II, President,
Chief Operating Officer and a member of our board of directors. The term of Mr.
Young's employment under the employment agreement became effective as of March
6, 2000, and continues until March 31, 2005, unless earlier terminated in
accordance with the employment agreement. Under the agreement, Mr. Young's base
salary is $500,000 per annum and he is entitled to be considered for an annual
bonus in an amount to be determined by the Compensation Committee of our board
of directors. In addition to the annual bonus, Mr. Young will be entitled to
receive a total of $3.0 million in bonus payments with $500,000 payable upon
completion of each of three (3) financing transactions related to our data
services agreements with Qwest, $500,000 payable upon the Company achieving
positive EBITDA and $1.0 million payable upon the next equity capital event
(public or private), other than an initial public offering, in which at least
$100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our agreement, Mr. Young may
elect to receive these special bonuses in common stock in lieu of cash. Mr.
Young is entitled to receive benefits generally received by our officers,
including options to purchase our stock, reimbursement of expenses incurred on
our behalf, and a leased automobile. Upon termination of the agreement, Mr.
Young is subject to a confidentiality covenant and a twenty-four month
non-competition agreement. If we terminate Mr. Young's employment without cause,
he is entitled to a severance payment in an amount equal to two times his annual
base salary.

We also have an employment contract with William H. Stewart, our Chief
Financial Officer and Executive Vice President. Our agreement with Mr. Stewart
provides for a term of three years, effective as of March 9, 2000. Under the
agreement, Mr. Stewart's base salary is $350,000 per annum and he is entitled to
be considered for an annual bonus in an amount to be determined by the
Compensation Committee of our board of directors. In addition to the annual
bonus, Mr. Stewart will be entitled to receive a total of $2.0 million in bonus
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payments with $500,000 payable upon the completion of each of two (2) financing
transactions related to our data services agreements with Qwest, $500,000
payable upon the Company achieving positive EBITDA and $500,000 payable upon the
next equity capital event (public or private), other than an initial public
offering, in which at least $100.0 million is invested in the Company. With our
agreement, Mr. Stewart may elect to receive these special bonuses in common
stock in lieu of cash. Mr. Stewart is entitled to receive benefits generally
received by our officers, including options to purchase our stock, reimbursement
of expenses incurred on our behalf, and a leased automobile. Upon termination of
the agreement, Mr. Stewart is subject to a confidentiality covenant and a
twenty-four month non-competition agreement. If we terminate Mr. Stewart's
employment without cause, he is entitled to a severance payment in an amount
equal to two times his annual base salary.

SEPARATION AGREEMENTS

On March 7, 2000, we entered into a separation agreement and release
with Michael A. Sternberg, pursuant to which Mr. Sternberg's employment as our
President and Chief Executive Officer was terminated, by mutual agreement,
effective March 8, 2000. Under the separation agreement, Mr. Sternberg was paid
a total of $1.0 million. Mr. Sternberg was also reimbursed for accrued vacation
time. Pursuant to the agreement, we will pay the costs associated with Mr.
Sternberg's current enrollment in our health care plans through December 31,
2001. Mr. Sternberg also retained 65,000 stock options previously granted to him
under our stock option plan. Mr. Sternberg has agreed to vote any shares of
common stock owned by him in accordance with the shares owned by Mr. Kamine and
Nassau. Mr. Sternberg has agreed to make himself available to consult with us on
a non-exclusive basis through December 31, 2001.

On March 7, 2000, we entered into a separation agreement and release
with James D. Grenfell, pursuant to which Mr. Grenfell's employment as our
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and Secretary was terminated,
by mutual agreement, effective March 8, 2000. Under the separation agreement,
Mr. Grenfell was paid a total of $1.0 million. Pursuant to the agreement, we
will pay the costs associated with Mr. Grenfell's current enrollment in our
health care plans through December 31, 2001. Mr. Grenfell also retained 3,600
stock options previously granted to him under our stock option plan. Mr.
Grenfell has agreed to vote any shares of common stock owned by him in
accordance with the shares owned by Mr. Kamine and Nassau. We also paid Mr.
Grenfell $148,000 for certain relocation and other services.
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EMPLOYEE PLANS

KMC HOLDINGS STOCK OPTION PLAN. Employees, directors or other persons
having a unique relationship with the Company or any of its affiliates are
eligible to participate in the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan. However, neither
Mr. Kamine nor any person employed by Nassau or any affiliate of Nassau is
eligible for grants under the plan. The KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan is
administered by the Compensation Committee of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The Compensation Committee is authorized to grant (i) options intended
to qualify as Incentive Options, (ii) Non-Qualified Options, (iii) stock
appreciation rights, (iv) restricted stock, (v) performance units, (vi)
performance shares and (vii) certain other types of awards.

The number of shares of Company Common Stock available for grant under
the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan is 600,000. As of March 30, 2001, options to
acquire 522,864 shares of common stock were outstanding under the plan. No
participant may receive more than 75,000 shares of Company Common Stock under
the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan.

The Compensation Committee has the power and authority to designate
recipients of grants under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan, to determine the
terms, conditions and limitations of grants under the plan and to interpret the
provisions of the plan. The exercise price of all Incentive Options granted
under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan must be at least equal to the Fair
Market Value (as defined in the plan) of Company Common Stock on the date the
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options are granted and the exercise price of all Nonqualified Options granted
under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan must be at least equal to 25% of the
Fair Market Value of Company Common Stock on the date the options are granted.
The maximum term of each Option granted under the KMC Holdings Stock Option Plan
will be 10 years. Options will become exercisable at such times and in such
installments as the Compensation Committee provides in the terms of each
individual Option.

COMPENSATION COMMITTEE INTERLOCKS AND INSIDER PARTICIPATION

Mr. Xamine, our Chairman, and Messrs. Coleman, Quigley and Patterson
served as members of the Compensation Committee during at least a portion of
2000. The present members of the Committee are Messrs. Coleman, Quigley and
Patterson. Mr. Quigley is also a member of Nassau Capital L.L.C. which, through
its affiliates, beneficially owns more than five percent of our voting
securities.

We are entitled to use a Citation III business jet chartered by
Bedminster Aviation LLC, a limited liability company wholly owned by Mr. Kamine,
for a fixed price per hour of flight time. During 2000, we paid Bedminster
Aviation approximately $1.7 million for the use of the Citation III. We have
agreed to use our best efforts to use the Citation III fifty hours per quarter
during 2001. However, we are under no obligation to do so and we have not
guaranteed any financial arrangements with respect to the aircraft or to
Bedminster Aviation LLC.

Effective August 18, 2000, we entered into a 12 year lease, with an
entity controlled by Kamine, for all three floors of the building (approximately
50,000 square feet) in Bedminster, New Jersey in which we are presently
headquartered. The new lease provides for a base annual rental cost of
approximately $1.0 million, adjusted periodically for changes in the consumer
price 1index, plus operating expenses. The building is owned by a company in
which a trust for the benefit of Mr. Kamine's children owns a fifty percent
interest. Previously, under the terms of a lease initially entered into in June
1996, we had leased smaller amounts of space in the building in which our
headquarters are located. The earlier lease had provided for a base annual
rental of $217,000 (adjusted periedically for changes in the consumer price
index), plus operating expenses. Pursuant to these leases we paid an aggregate
of $1.1 million during 2000.

We are currently in negotiations to complete the transfer of our
construction division to KNT Network Technologies, LLC a company independently
owned by Harold N. Kamine and Nassau Capital, our principal stockholders.
Pursuant to an arrangement between the parties, effective June 1, 2000, we
transferred substantially all of the employees of our construction division to
KNT. KNT is providing construction and maintenance services to us and is being
reimbursed for all of the direct costs of these activities. 1In addition, we are
currently funding substantially all of KNT's general overhead and administrative
costs at an amount not to exceed $15 million per annum.
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Amounts paid to KNT during fiscal 2000 related to this arrangement
amounted to $20.0 million, of which $8.7 million was for network related
construction and was capitalized into networks and equipment and the balance was
charged to expense. Further, we may be entitled to participate in future profits
of KNT, to the extent KNT develops a successful third-party construction
business.

We are currently negotiating with KNT to finalize the terms of this
arrangement and execute a formal contract which is required to be completed by
June 15, 2001.

Pursuant to an agreement between us, Mr. Kamine and Nassau, Nassau is
paid financial advisory fees in cash at a rate of $450,000 per annum.

Upon the initial <closing of our offering of our Series G Convertible
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preferred Stock in July 2000, we paid a fee of $2.0 million in cash to Dresdner
Kleinwort Benson Private Equity LLC, an affiliate of one of our principal
stockholders, a fee of $1.0 million in cash to Nassau Capital L.L.C. and a fee
of $400,000 in cash to CIT.

Upon the initial closing, in November 2000, of the 48 month term loan
we obtained to finance our acquisition of the KMC Funding Equipment, we paid a
fee of $1.0 million in cash to Dresdner Kleinwort Benson North American Leasing,
Inc. Mr. Coleman is currently serving as Vice President and Investment Partner
of Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity LLC, an affiljate of this entity.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT.

The following table sets forth certain information regarding the
beneficial ownership of the Common Stock, as of March 30, 2000, by (i} each
person known to the Company to be the Dbeneficial owner of more than 5% of the
Common Stock, (ii) each of the Company's directors, (iii) each of the Named
Executive Officers, and (iv) all directors and executive officers as a group.
All information with respect to beneficial ownership has been furnished to the
Company by the respective stockholders of the Company.

NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER SHARES (1) OWNERSHIP (1)

Harold N. Kamine. .. ... .ttt iiareneetorascsssorearonnonsossanononseassans 581,485 £6.9%
c/o Kamine Development Corp.

1545 Route 206

Bedminster, NJ 07921

Nassau Capital Partners L.P (2} .......inimmrimiiiraeiniiaeacscennuensennnnn 726,255 46.2%
¢/o Nassau Capital L.L.C.

22 Chambers Street

Princeton, NJ 08542

CIT Lending Services COrporation ({3)......cieeermiiniinanoniietannnraaraionss 269,337 27.7%
44 Whippany Road
Morristown, NJ 07960

First Union Corp. (4) .. .uiienmmrnniieneareaaeennneronananssaaraneaensosassnos 196,793 18.7%
301 South College St.
Charlotte, NC 28288

General Electric Capital Corporation (5).......ceceminiiiimmnaniiineaanianne 255,533 22.9%
120 Long Ridge Road
Stamford, CT 06927

CIBC IMC. .t iiisetnstacnssnsnssassnnssnsetseasssonnsensntssansssnascsanonanssts 44,104 5.1%
425 Lexington Avenue
New York, New York 10017
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NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER SHARES (1) OWNERSHIP (1)

Lucent Technologies Inc. (6)
600-700 Mountain Avenue
Murray Hill, NJ 07974

................................................ 363,678 29.7%

Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners LP (7) .............coonnoen 153,005 15.1%
75 Wall Street
New York, NY 10005

William F. Lenahan (B) ....ivtirnvnonnnenonneenseonsonsonrscsassonsnssonannanns 25,000 2.8%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921

Michael A. Sternberg (B) ......iutueoaceneaauacuenaaensaassossenrersranronasnsn 65,000 ?7.0%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, New Jersey 07921
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Gary E. LaBREY (B) . ... uo.oerenniiannooenammtetitaancccrnstanmraroannensres 12,000 1.4%
c/o ¥MC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminater, New Jersey 07921

John G. Quigley {9) ....ccueeniinaerrenrrmneressasrearnsatatneornarsresrenroncs 726,255 46.2%
c/o Nassau Capital L.L.C.

22 Chambers Street

Princeton, NJ 08542

Richard H. PALLEZBON (B) . .ccuvurenueeessstsoccnrssesssasntnosascsns aserenasns 7,000 0.8%
c/o Spire Capital Management

30 Rockefeller Center

Suite 4350

New York, NY 10112

Alexander P. Coleman (10) .....oeusrncasvanrrronusecnessasssasnncaassosronasss 153,005 15.1%
c/o Dreadner Kleinwort Benson

Private Equity Partners L.P.

75 Wall Street

New York, NY 10004

Jeff M, TUAeT (9) .. iciuinnineeacstoasassnsanansessssenvsassonssoccsssecatsnnnns 726,255 46.2%
c/o Nassau Capital L.L.C.

22 Chambers Street

Princeton, NJ 08542

Roscoe C. YOUNG II (B)..ceenioracunuouanenenronaacacsssosatsencenoanatscunanes 41,250 4.6%
c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, NJ 07921

William H. SC@WATXE {B) v ionreeovanssonenenonasaoncecenecsesnsosacanssanrsoss 17,500 2.0%
¢/o XMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

1545 Route 206, Suite 300

Bedminster, NJ 07921
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NUMBER OF PERCENTAGE
NAME AND ADDRESS OF BENEFICIAL OWNER
SHARES (1) OWNERSHIP (1)

Robert Nibbs, Jr. (8)
3,500

0.4%

c/o KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
1545 Route 206, Suite 300
Bedminster, NJ 07921

Directors and Officers of the Company as a Group (12 persons)

1,575,595 85.2%

(1) Beneficial ownership is determined

currently exercisable or exercisable within 60 days of March 30,
deemed outstanding. Such shares, however,
the purposes of computing the percentage

in accordance
Commission. In computing the number of shares

person and the percentage ownership of that person,

shares

with the rules of the
beneficially

owned by a
subject to
options, warrants and convertible securities held by that person that are

2001 are
are not deemed outstanding for
ownership of any other person.
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Except as indicated in the footnotes to this table, each shareholder named
in the table has sole voting and investment power with respect to the
shares set forth opposite such shareholder's name.

(2) Includes 620,522 shares of common stock which Nassau Capital Partners L.P.
and NAS Partners I L.L.C. have the right to acquire upon conversion of
122,708 and 1,092 shares of Series A Convertible Preferred Stock,
respectively, 61,298 shares of common stock which Nassau and NAS Partners
I, L.L.C. have the right to acquire wupon conversion of 24,778 and 222
shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively and 30,601
shares of common stock which NAS Partners I, L.L.C. and Nassau Capital
Partners IV L.P. have the right to acquire upon conversion of 411 shares
and 29,178 shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively.
These are the same shares listed for Messrs. Quigley and Tuder.

(3) Includes 48,950 shares of common stock which Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation, also a subsidiary of CIT Lending Services Corporation, has
the right to acquire upon the exercise of warrants and 61,202 shares of
common stock which CIT Lending Services Corporation has the right to
acquire upon conversion of 59,177 shares of Series G Convertible Preferred
Stock.

(4) Includes 122,595 shares of common stock which First Union Corp. (the
successor to CoreStates Holdings, 1Inc.) has the right to acquire upon
conversion of 50,000 shares of Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and
67,280 shares which First Union Corp. has the right to acquire upon the
exercise of warrants.

(5) Includes 245,190 shares of common stock which General Electric Capital
Corporation has the right to acquire upon conversion of 100,000 shares of
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock and 10,343 shares of common stock
which General Electric Capital Corporation has the right to acquire upon
exercise of a warrant.

{(6) Includes 306,009 shares of common stock which Lucent has the right to
acquire upon conversion of 295,885 shares of Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock and 57,669 shares of Common Stock which Lucent has the
right to acquire upon exercise of a warrant.

(7) Represents shares of common stock which Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity Partners LP and its affiliate, 75 Wall Street Associates, have the
right to acquire upon conversion of 147,942 shares of Series G Convertible
Preferred Stock. These are the same shares listed for Mr. Coleman.

(8} Represents shares of common stock which the holder has the right to
acquire upon the exercise of options that are exercisable within sixty
days pursuant to our stock option plan.

(9) Messrs. Quigley and Tuder, directors of the company, are members of Nassau
Capital L.L.C., the general partner of Nassau Capital Partners L.P. and
Nassau Capital Partners IV L.P.; accordingly Messrs. Quigley and Tuder may
be deemed to be beneficial owners of such shares and for purposes of this
table they are included. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder disclaim beneficial
ownership of all such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder are also members of NAS Partners
I, L.L.C.; accordingly Messrs. Quigley and Tuder may be deemed to be
beneficial owners of such shares and for purposes of this table they are
included. Messrs. Quigley and Tuder disclaim beneficial ownership of all
such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the Exchange Act.

(10) All of the shares indicated as owned by Mr. Coleman are owned directly or
indirectly by Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners LP of
which Mr. Coleman is a Vice President and Investment Partner. Accordingly,
Mr. Coleman may be deemed to be a beneficial owner of such shares and for
purposes of this table they are included. Mr. Coleman disclaims beneficial
ownership of all such shares within the meaning of Rule 13d-3 under the
Exchange Act. The shares set forth represent shares of common stock which
Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners LP and 75 Wall Street
Associates have the right to acquire upon conversion of 133,148 and 14,794
shares of Series G Convertible Preferred Stock, respectively.
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ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS.

In February, 1998, we loaned to Roscoe C. Young II, our President and
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Chief Operating Officer, the principal sum of $350,000. The loan is evidenced by
a promissory note which bears interest at the rate of 6% per annum. Interest and
principal are payable at maturity on February 13, 2003. In June, 2000, we loaned
Mr. Young an additiomal $318,000. The loan was evidenced by a promissory note
which bore interest at the rate of 6.43% per annum. The loan was repaid in full
in December, 2000. The largest aggregate amount of loans outstanding to Mr.
Young at any time during 2000 was £668,000. The aggregate amount of loans
outstanding to Mr. Young at March 26, 2001 was $350,000

CIT Lending Services Corporation {(an affiliate of The CIT Group), one
of our principal stockholders, has provided financing to us as one of the
lenders under our amended senior secured credit facility. The lenders under the
amended senior secured credit facility have agreed to make available, subject to
certain conditions, up to a total of §700.0 million, for construction and
development of our existing networks. We paid CIT and its affiliates aggregate
cash payments for fees, discounts and commissions of $450,000, during the year
ended December 31, 2000. This amount does not include the $400,000 in fees we
paid to CIT in connection with our offering of Series G Convertible Preferred
Stock.

In June, 2000 we paid General Electric Capital Corporation, one of our
principal stockholders, a fee of $1.0 million in cash for their services in
connection with arranging the lease financing transaction which funded the cost
of the $134.4 million of KMC Funding V Equipment we purchased in March 2000.

PART IV
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES, AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K.
(A) 1. Financial Statements.

The financial statements are included in Part II, Item 8. of this
Report.

2. Financial Statement Schedules and Supplementary Information
Reguired to be Submitted.

Independent Auditors' Report on Schedules
Schedule I - Condensed Financial Information of Registrant
Schedule II - Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

These schedules are included in Part II, Item 8. of this Report. All
other schedules have been omitted because they are inapplicable or the
required information is shown in the consolidated financial statements

or notes.
(B) REPORTS ON FORM B-K.
None.
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() INDEX TO EXHIBITS.
The following is a list of all Exhibits filed as part of this Report:

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of September 22, 1997
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4
(Registration No. 333-50475) filed on April 20, 1998
(hereinafter referred to as the "KMC Holdings' S-4")).

*3 .2 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. filed on November 5, 1997
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC
Holdings'S-4) .

*3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.4 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of April 30, 1999
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333 - 46148 filed on
September 19, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the "KMC
Holdings' S-1")}.

*3.6 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated Certificate of
the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.7 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1599).

*3.8 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated June 29, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.9 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.10 to KMC Holdings' S$-1).

*3.10 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
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Share, dated November 4, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998) .

*3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC Teleccm Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999) .
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.12 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par value $.01 per
Share, dated as of June 29, 2000 {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000) .

*3.13 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.14 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*3 .14 KMC Telecom Holdings, inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.15 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1929).

*3.16 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series E Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.17 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of April 30, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.18 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optiomnal
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
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Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.19 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated July 7, 2000
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.20 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*3.20 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series F Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.21 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Opticnal
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 1, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).
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NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.22 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.23 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of July 7, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*3.24 Certificate of Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of
the Series G-1 Voting Convertible Preferred Stock and Series
G-2 Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of July 5, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000.

*3.25 Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
adopted as of April 1, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.26 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., amended as of July 5, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.27 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).
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*4.] Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of
October 31, 1997 by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold
N. Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.

(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*4 .2 Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 7, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of January 26, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among K MC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation},
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to KMC Holdings' S-4).
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*4.4 Amendment No. 3 dated as of February 25, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. , Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation}, General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC
Holdings' S-4)}.

*4 .5 Amendment No. 4 dated as of February 4,

1999 to the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement
dated as of October 31, 1997, by and among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I
L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*4 .6 Amendment No. 5 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to KMC

Copyright 2001 EDGAR Online, Inc. (ver 1.01/2.003) Page 104
DCO1/JENKE/147091.2



KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS INC — 10-K — Annual Report Date Filed: 4/17/2001

Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-0 for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*4q.7 Amendment No. 6 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1957,
by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as
AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.

{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .8 Amendment No. 7 dated as of January 1, 2000 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*4.9 Amendment No. 8 dated as of April 1, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31,
1997, among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
General Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National
Bank (as successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.), CoreStates
Holdings, Inc. and CIT Lending Services Corporation

{(formerly known as Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation)
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).
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*4 .10 Amendment No. 9 dated as of June 30, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31, 1997,
among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners
L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, General
Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National Bank (as
successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.), CoreStates Holdings,
Inc., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private BEquity Partners
LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, LLC, Lucent Technologies Inc.
and CIT Lending Services Corporation (formerly known as
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation) {incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-0Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*4 .11 Indenture dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee,
including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s 12 1/2%
Senior Discount Note due 2008. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .12 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and
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The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee, to the Indenture dated
as of January 29, 1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,

1999) .
*4 .13 Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan

Bank, as Trustee, including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s 13 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1999).

*4.14 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement made and entered
into as of May 24, 1999 by KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. in
favor of The Chase Manhattan Bank as Trustee. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30,
1999) .

*4 .15 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26, 1998,
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6
to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4.16 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, First
Union Capital Markets Corp., CIBC World Markets Corp.,
BancBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. and Wasserstein Perella
Securities, 1Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC

Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended September 30, 1999).

*4.17 Warrant Agreement dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Warrant Agent, including a specimen of Warrant Certificate
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*4.18 Warrant Agreement dated as of February 4, 1939 among KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant
Agent, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc."s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 1999).

*4.19 Warrant Agreement dated as of April 30, 1999 among KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
First Union Investors, Inc., Harxold N. Kamine and Nassau

Capital Partners L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).
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*4 .20 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
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*4

*4

*4

*4q

*4

*4q

*4

*4

EXHIBIT
NUMBER

.21

.22

23

.24

.25

.26

.27

.28

Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, 1Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999} .

Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Warrant
Bgreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26,
1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley &
Co. Incorporated. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of February 4,
1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31,
1999) .

Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 30,
1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First Union
Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q0 for the
guarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to Warrant
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

Preferred Stock Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
April 30, 1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and First
Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 4.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the guarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 1, 1999 to Preferred Stock
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., First Union Investors, Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30, 2000 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners IV, L.P.,

NAS Partners I L.L.C., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity Partners LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, Harold N.
Kamine, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent

Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q f£for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).
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Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of
February 15, 2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
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I1, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia,
Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC IIT
Services LLC, the financial institutions from time to time
parties thereto as "Lenders", First Union National Bank as
Administrative Agent for the Lenders, First Union National
Bank, as Administrative Agent for the Lenders and Newcourt
Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T
Commercial Finance Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT
Group, Inc., as Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC Telecom Holding,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 13999).

*10.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 28, 2000, to Amended and
Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 15,
2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC

Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, 1Inc., KMC Telecom
Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing

IITI LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC III Services LLC, the
financial institutions from time to time parties thereto as
"Lenders", First Union National Bank, as Administrative
Agent for the Lenders and Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Commercial Finance
Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT Group, Inc., as
Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2000).

*10.3 General Agreement by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
II, Inc. and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated September 24,
1997, as amended on October 15, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*10.4 Amendment Number Two to the General Agreement by and among KMC
Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated
as of December 22, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 199%).

*10.5 Amendment Number Three to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC
Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC and Lucent
Technologies Inc. dated as of November 15, 1999 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

*10.6 Amendment Number Four to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom IV, 1Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, 1Inc., KMC

Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom
Leasing ITI LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing IV LLC, KMC III Services
LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated as of February 15, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-X for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*10.7 Professional Services Agreement between KMC Telecom Inc.
and Lucent Technologies, Inc. dated September 4, 1997.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*10.8 Memorandum of Agreement between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and EFTIA 0SS Solutions Inc., dated as of October 26, 1598.
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998). ’
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*10.9 Master License Agreement dated December 31, 1998 by and
between Billing Concepts Systems, Inc. and KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998).

*10.10 Lease Agreement dated January 1, 1996 between Cogeneration
Services 1Inc. {now known as Kamine Development Corp.) and KMC
Telecom Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998)

*10.11 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4 to KMC Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998).+

*10.12 Specimen of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options
granted under the 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key
Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and Affiliates.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the gquarterly period ended
September 30, 1998). +

*10.13 Amendment No. 1 made as of June 7, 1999 to 1998 Stock Purchase
and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and Affiliates (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999). +

*10.14 Participation Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2000, among KMC
Telecom V, Inc., Telecom V Investor Trust 2000-A, Wilmington
Trust Company, in its individual capacity and as trustee of
the Lessor, and the Investors party thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.15 Employment Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and William F. Lenahan
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to KMC
Holdings'® S-1).

*10.16 Employment Agreement, dated as of March 9, 1000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and William H. Stewart
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of
March 6, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and
Roscoe C. Young III (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to KMC Holdings' S$-1).

*10.18 Amended and Restated Media Gateway Services Agreement II
between KMC Telecom V 1Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of March 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.19 Media Gateway Services Agreement III between KMC Telecom VI
Inc. and Qwest Communications Corporation, effective as of
June 30, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.20 to KMC Holdings' S$-1).

*10.20 Amendment No. 1 to the Media Gateway Services Agreement III
between KMC Telecom VI Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of August 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to KMC Holdings' S-1).
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*10.21 Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 by
and among Harold N. Kamine, KNT Partners, LP, KNT Network
Technologies, LLC and KMC Telecom  Holdings, Inc.

{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).
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*10.22 Secured Promissory Note, dated as of June 1, 2000, delivered
by KNT Network Technologies, LLC to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to KMC
Holdings' $-1).

*10.23 Real Estate Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network Technologies, LLC
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.24 Maintenance Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network
Technologies, LLC (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to KMC Holdings' S§-1).

*10.25 Master Engineering, procurement and Construction Contract,
dated as of June 1, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and KNT Network Technologies, LLC (incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.26 KNT Asset Transfer and Proceeds Sharing Agreement, dated as of
June 1, 2000 between KNT Network Technologies, LLC and KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. (incorporated hereby by reference to
Exhibit 10.27 to KMC Holdings' S5-1).

*%27 .1 Subsidiaries of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

**24.1 Power of Attorney (Appears on signature page).

* Incorporated herein by reference.

* % Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the Town of
Bedminster, State of New Jersey, on the 17th day of April, 2001.

KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /S/ WILLIAM F. LENAHAN
William F. Lenahan
Chief Executive Officer

KNOW BY ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that each person whose signature
appears below constitutes and appoints William F. Lenahan, Roscoe C. Young II
and William H. Stewart his true and lawful attorney-in-fact and agent, with full
power of substitution and resubstitution, for him and in his name, place and
stead, in any and all capacities, to sign any and all amendments to this Annual
Report on Form 10-K, and to file the same, with all exhibits thereto and other
documents in connection therewith, with the Securities and Exchange Commission,
granting unto said attorney-in-fact and agent, full power and authority to do
and perform each and every act and thing requisite and necessary to be done in
and about the premises, as fully as he might or could do in person, hereby
ratifying and confirming all that said attorney-in-fact and agent or their or
his substitutes or substitute, may lawfully do or cause to be done by virtue
hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report
has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and
in the capacities indicated on the 17th day of April, 2001.

SIGNATURE TITLE(S)

/8/ WILLIAM F. LENAHAN Chief Executive Officer and
----------------------------------------- Director (Principal Executive

William F. Lenahan Officer)
/S/ WILLIAM H. STEWART Executive Vice President, Chief
————————————————————————————————————————— Financial Officer and Director
William H. Stewart (Principal Financial Officer)
/S/ ROBERT F. HAGAN Senior Vice President, Finance
----------------------------------------- (Principal Accounting Officer)

Robert F. Hagan

/S/ HAROLD N. KAMINE Chairman of the Board of Directors

Harold N. Kamine

/S/ GARY E. LASHER Vice Chairman of the Board of
------------------------------------------ Directors
Gary E. Lasher

/S/ ROSCOE C. YOUNG II President, Chief Operating Officer
—————————————————————————————————————————— and Director
Roscoe C. Young, II
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106
/S/ ALEXANDER P. COLEMAN Director
Alexander P. Coleman
/S/ RICHARD H. PATTERSON Director
Richard H. Patterson
/8/ JOHN G. QUIGLEY Director
John G. Quigley
/S/ JEFFREY M. TUDER Director
Jeffrey M. Tuder
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EXHIBIT
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*3.1 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of September 22, 1897
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Registration Statement on Form S-4
{Registration No. 333-50475) filed on April 20, 1998
(hereinafter referred to as the "KMC Holdings' S-4")).

*3.2 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. filed on November 5, 1997
(incorporated herein by reference ¢to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC
Holdings'S-4).

*3.3 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998}.

*3 .4 Certificate of Amendment of the Certificate of Incorporation
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. dated as of April 30, 1999
{(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.5 Certificate of Amendment of the Amended and Restated
Certificate of Incorporation of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
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dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Registration
Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 333 - 46148 filed on
September 19, 2001 (hereinafter referred to as the "KMC
Holdings' S-1")).

*3.6 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Amended and Restated Certificate of
the Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series
A Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1897 {incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.7 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*3.8 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series A
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated June 29, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.9 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series &
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.10 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*3.10 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 {incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.11 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the gquarterly period ended June 30, 1999).
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*3.12 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated as of June 29, 2000 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the guarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.13 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of the Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series C
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated July 7, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 3.14 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*3.14 KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. Certificate of the Powers,
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Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 per
Share, dated November 4, 1997 (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1998).

*3.15 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Rights of the Series D
Cumulative Convertible Preferred Stock, par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of April 30, 1999 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*3.16 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series E Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3.17 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of April 30, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*3.18 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the gquarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3.19 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series E Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated July 7, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.20 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*¥3.20 Certificate of Voting Powers, Designations, Preferences and
Relative Participating, Optional or Other Special Rights and
Qualifications, Limitations and Restrictions Thereof of the
Series F Senior, Redeemable, Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock
of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., dated as of February 4, 1999
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

*3 .21 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 1, 1998
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*3.22 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of June 30, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 2000).

*3 .23 Certificate of Amendment to the Certificate of Voting Powers,
Designations, Preferences and Relative Participating, Optional
or Other Special Rights and Qualifications, Limitations and
Restrictions Thereof of the Series F Senior Redeemable,
Exchangeable, PIK Preferred Stock, dated as of July 7, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*3.24 Certificate of Powers, Designations, Preferences and Rights of
the Series G-1 Voting Convertible Preferred Stock and Series
G-2 Non-Voting Convertible Preferred Stock, Par Value $.01 Per
Share, dated as of July S5, 2000 (incorporatced herein by
reference to Exhibit 3.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000.

*3.25 Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
adopted as of April 1, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 3.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*3.26 Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restated By-Laws of KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., amended as of July 5, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.27 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*4 .1 Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of
October 31, 1997 by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.,
Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold
N. Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*4 2 Amendment No. 1 dated as of January 7, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation},
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .3 Amendment No. 2 dated as of January 26, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among K MC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, KMC
Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. ({(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.3 to KMC Holdings' S-4).
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EXHIBIT

. NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*4 .4 Amendment No. 3 dated as of February 25, 1998 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. , Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, KMC Telecommunications L.P., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit
Corporation), General Electric Capital Corporation,
CoreStates Bank, N.A. and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC
Holdings' $-4).

- *4.5 Amendment No. 4 dated as of February 4,

1999 to the Amended and Restated Stockholders Agreement
dated as of October 31, 1997, by and among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I
L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Credit Corporation),
General Electric Capital Corporation, CoreStates Bank, N.A.
and CoreStates Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended Decembexr 31, 1998).

*4.6 Amendment No. 5 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.11 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1989).

*4.7 Amendment No. 6 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31, 1997,
by an d among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as
AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.12 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .8 Amendment No. 7 dated as of January 1, 2000 to the Amended
and Restated Stockholders Agreement dated as of October 31,
1997, by and among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Nassau
Capital Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N.
Kamine, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly
known as AT&T Credit Corporation), General Electric Capital
Corporation, First Union National Bank (as successor to
CoreStates Bank, N.A.) and CoreStates Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*4.9 Amendment No. 8 dated as of April 1, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31,
1997, among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital
Partners L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold N. Kamine,
General Electric Capital Coxporation, First Union National
Bank (as successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.), CoreStates
Holdings, Inc. and CIT Lending Services Corporation
(formerly known as Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation)
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(incorporated herein by reference to
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
ended June 30, 2000).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

Exhibit 4.1 to KMC
the quarterly period

*4.10 Amendment No. 9 dated as of June 30, 2000 to the Amended and
Restated Stockholders Agreement, dated as of October 31, 1997,
among KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc., Nassau Capital Partners

L.P., NAS Partners I L.L.C., Harold

N. Kawmine, General

Electric Capital Corporation, First Union National Bank (as

successor to CoreStates Bank, N.A.},

CoreStates Holdings,

Inc., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private Equity Partners
LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, LLC, Lucent Technologies Inc.

and CIT Lending Services Corporation
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation)

(formerly known as

(incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).

*4 .11 Indenture dated as of January 29, 1998

between KMC Telecom

Holdings, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee,
including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s 12 1/2%
Senior Discount Note due 2008. (incorporated herein by

reference to Exhibit 4.5 to KMC Holdings'

S-4).

*4 .12 First Supplemental Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, 1Inc. and

The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee,

to the Indenture dated

as of January 29, 1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Trustee. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings,

Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period

1999) .

ended September 30,

*4 .13 Indenture dated as of May 24, 1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., KMC Telecom Financing, Inc. and The Chase Manhattan
Bank, as Trustee, including specimen of KMC Telecom Holdings,

Inc.'s 13 1/2% Senior Notes due 2009.

(incorporated herein

by reference to Exhibit 4.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1999).

*4.14 Collateral Pledge and Security Agreement made and entered

into as of May 24, 1999 by KMC Telecom
favor of The Chase Manhattan Bank as

Financing, Inc. in
Trustee. (incorporated

herein by reference to Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended September 30,

1999) .

*4.15 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26, 1998,
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated. {(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.6

to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4.16 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of May 19, 1999 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley & Co.
Incorporated, Credit Suisse First Boston Corporation, First
Union Capital Markets Corp., CIBC World Markets Corp.,

BancBoston Robertson Stephens Inc. and

Wasserstein Perella

Securities, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit

4.5 to KMC

Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period
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ended September 30, 1999).

*4 .17 Warrant Agreement dated as of January 29, 1998 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and The Chase Manhattan Bank, as
Warrant Agent, including a specimen of Warrant Certificate
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC
Holdings' 5-4).

*4.18 Warrant Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999 among KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant
Agent, Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. {incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.2 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc."s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended March 31, 1999).

*4.19 Warrant Agreement dated as of April 30, 1995 among KMC Telecom
Holdings, 1Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
First Union Investors, Inc., Harold N. Kamine and Nassau

Capital Partners L.P. (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*4 .20 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1939, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, Inc. {(incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4.21 Amendment No. 2 dated as of June 1, 1999 to the Warrant
Agreement dated as of February 4, 1999, among KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc., The Chase Manhattan Bank, as Warrant Agent,
Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation, Lucent Technologies
Inc. and First Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form
10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1993%).

*4 .22 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of January 26,
1998 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Morgan Stanley &
Co. Incorporated. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.8 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*4 .23 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of February 4,
1999 among KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Newcourt Commercial
Finance Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the guarterly period ended March 31,
1999) .

*4 .24 Warrant Registration Rights Agreement dated as of April 30,
1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First Union
Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.5 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .25 Amendment No. 1 dated as of April 30, 1999 to Warrant
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
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4.6 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .26 Preferred Stock Registration Rights Agreement dated as of
April 30, 1999 between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and First
Union Investors, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference

to Exhibit 4.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4 .27 Amendment No. 1 dated as of June 1, 1999 to Preferred Stock
Registration Rights Agreement among KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc., First Union Investors, Inc., Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation and Lucent Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.10 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999).

*4.28 Securities Purchase Agreement dated as of June 30, 2000 among
KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., Nassau Capital Partners IV, L.P.,
NAS Partners I L.L.C., Dresdner Kleinwort Benson Private
Equity Partners LP, 75 Wall Street Associates, Harold N.
Kamine, CIT Lending Services Corporation and Lucent
Technologies Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
4.3 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the
quarterly period ended June 30, 2000).
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EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*10.1 Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of
February 15, 2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginmia,
Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC III
Services LLC, the financial institutions from time to time
parties thereto as "Lenders", First Union National Bank as
Administrative Agent for the Lenders, First Union National
Bank, as Administrative Agent for the Lenders and Newcourt
Commercial Finance Corporation (formerly known as AT&T
Commercial Finance Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT
Group, Inc., as Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC Telecom Holding,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

*10.2 Amendment No. 1, dated as of March 28, 2000, to Amended and
Restated Loan and Security Agreement dated as of February 15,
2000 by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC
Telecom III, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom
Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing
III LLC, KMC Telecom.com, Inc., KMC III Services LLC, the
financial institutions from time to time parties thereto as
"Lenders", First Union National Bank, as Administrative
Agent for the Lenders and Newcourt Commercial Finance
Corporation (formerly known as AT&T Commercial Finance
Corporation), an affiliate of The CIT Group, Inc., as
Collateral Agent for the Lenders (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s
Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 31, 2000).

*10.3 General Agreement by and among KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom
II, Inc. and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated September 24,
1997, as amended on October 15, 1997 (incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.7 to KMC Holdings' S-4).

*10.4 Amendment Number Two to the General Agreement by and among KMC
Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC,
KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated
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as of December 22, 1998 (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the
fiscal year ended December 31, 1999}.

*10.5 Amendment Number Three to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom of Virginia, Inc., KMC Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC
Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing III LLC and Lucent
Technologies Inc. dated as of November 15, 1999 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999).

*10.6 Amendment Number Four to the General Agreement by and among
KMC Telecom Inc., KMC Telecom II, Inc., KMC Telecom III, Inc.,
KMC Telecom IV, Inc., KMC Telecom of Virginia, 1Inc., KMC

Telecom Leasing I LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing II LLC, KMC Telecom
Leasing III LLC, KMC Telecom Leasing IV LLC, KMC III Sexvices
LLC and Lucent Technologies Inc. dated as of February 15, 2000
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1999).

*10.7 Professional Services Agreement between KMC Telecom Inc.
and Lucent Technologies, Inc. dated September 4, 1997.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to KMC
Holdings' S-4).

*10.8 Memorandum of Agreement between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
and EFTIA 0SS Sclutions Inc., dated as of October 26, 1998.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 1998).

EXHIBIT
NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*10.9 Master License Agreement dated December 31, 1998 by and
between Billing Concepts Systems, Inc. and KMC Telecom
Holdings, Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.7 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998).

*10.10 Lease Agreement dated January 1, 1996 between Cogeneration
Services Inc. (now known as Kamine Development Corp.) and KMC
Telecom 1Inc. (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.8 to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 1998)

*10.11 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC
Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates. (incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4 to KMC Holdings, Inc.'s Form 10-Q
for the quarterly period ended September 30, 1998).+

*10.12 Specimen of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement for options
granted under the 1998 Stock Purchase and Option Plan for Key
Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and Affiliates.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to KMC
Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended
September 30, 19%8). +

*10.13 Amendment No. 1 made as of June 7, 1999 to 1998 Stock Purchase
and Option Plan for Key Employees of KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and Affiliates (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to KMC Telecom Holdings, 1Inc.'s Form 10-Q for
the quarterly period ended June 30, 1999). +
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*10.14 Participation Agreement, dated as of June 28, 2000, among KMC
Telecom V, Inc., Telecom V Investor Trust 2000-A, Wilmington
Trust Company, in its individual capacity and as trustee of
the Lessor, and the Investors party thereto (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.15 Employment Agreement, dated as of April 17, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and William F. Lenahan
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.16 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.16 Employment Agreement, dated as of March 9, 1000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and William H. Stewart
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.17 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.17 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, dated as of
March 6, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and
Roscoe C. Young III (incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.18 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.18 Amended and Restated Media Gateway Services Agreement II
between KMC Telecom V Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of March 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.19 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.19 Media Gateway Services Agreement III between KMC Telecom VI
Inc. and Qwest Communications Corporation, effective as of
June 30, 2000 (incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.20 to KMC Holdings' 8-1).

*10.20 Amendment No. 1 to the Media Gateway Services Agreement III
between KMC Telecom VI Inc. and Qwest Communications
Corporation, effective as of August 31, 2000 (incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to KMC Holdings' S-1).
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EXHIBIT

NUMBER DESCRIPTION OF DOCUMENT

*10.21 Pledge and Security Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 by
and among Harold N. Kamine, KNT Partners, LP, KNT Network
Technologies, LLC and KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
{incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.22 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.22 Secured Promissory Note, dated as of June 1, 2000, delivered
by KNT Network Technologies, LLC to KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.23 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.23 Real Estate Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000 between KMC
Telecom Holdings, 1Inc. and KNT Network Technologies, LLC
(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.24 to KMC
Holdings' S-1).

*10.24 Maintenance Agreement, dated as of June 1, 2000, by and
between KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. and KNT Network
Technologies, LLC ({(incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit
10.25 to KMC Holdings' S-1).

*10.25 Master Engineering, procurement and Construction Contract,
dated as of June 1, 2000, by and between KMC Telecom Holdings,
Inc. and KNT Network Technologies, LLC {incorporated hereby by
reference to Exhibit 10.26 to KMC Holdings' S-1).
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*10.26

June 1, 2000 between

Telecom Holdings, Inc.

Exhibit 10.27 to KMC Holdings' S-1}.
**21.1 Subsidiaries of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.
*%24 .1 Power of Attorney (Appears on signature page).
* Incorporated herein by reference.

KNT Asset Transfer and Proceeds Sharing Agreement, dated as of

* % Filed herewith.

+ Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

DIRECT

INDIRE

EX-21 OTHERDOC
2
0002.txt
LIST OF SUBSIDIARIES

SUBSIDIARIES OF KMC TELECOM HOLDINGS,

SUBSIDIARIES

Telecom Inc.

Telecom II, Inc.
Telecom III, Inc.
Telecom V, Inc.
Telecom VI, Inc.
Telecom Financing, Inc.
Financial Services LLC
Telecom.com, Inc.
Telecom IV Holdings, Inc.
Telecom VII, Inc.
Funding Corporation
Funding V LLC

Data LLC

Telecom VIII LLC
Telecom IX LLC

Telecom Q V LLC

CT SUBSIDIARIES

KNT Network Technologies,
(incorporated hereby by reference to

Document is copied.

LLC and KMC

Exhibit 21.1
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KMC
KMC

Telecom Leasing I LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.)
Telecom of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.)
I Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Inc.)
Telecom Leasing II LLC {wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom II, Inc.)
II Services LLC {(wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom II, Inc.)
Telecom Leasing IITI LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom

III, Inc.)

II1 Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom III, 1Inc.)
Telecom IV, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV

Holdings, Inc.)
Telecom Leasing IV LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV, Inc.)
Telecom IV of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV,
Inc.)

IV Services LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom IV

Holdings, Inc.)
Telecom V of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom

Vv, Inc.)
Telecom VI of Virginia, Inc. (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom
vi, Inc.)
Telecom Leasing VI LLC (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom VI, Inc.)
Funding of Virginia Corporation (wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Funding
Corporation)
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FINANCIAL GUARANTY
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL GUARANTEE

Roscoe C. Young, II , Affiant, being duly sworn according to law, deposes and says that:

He is the President and Chief Operating Officer of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc.

That he is authorized to and does make this affidavit for said corporation;

That KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc., guarantees financial support of Applicant KMC Data, LLC,
in its endeavor to obtain certification and provideteledommunications gervices in the State of
Tennessee as described in this Applicatiop

1C Telecom Holding

[Commonwealth/State] of \’Q“ﬂ « S

SS.

County of vaw.r\\:T

Sworn and subscribed before me this i\\ % day of Tumw

b

%///7/// )

Signature of official administering oath

Mark C. Millard
A Notary Public of New Jersey

. . My Commuission Expires May 4, 2005
My commission expires
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EXHIBIT H

PROJECTED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR NEXT THREE YEARS
(FILED UNDER SEAL)
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EXHIBIT I

EXTIMATED COST OF KMC DATA'’S FACILITIES
TO BE DEPLOYED IN TENNESSEE
(FILED UNDER SEAL)
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EXHIBIT J

NETWORK DIAGRAM
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EXHIBIT K

SAMPLE CUSTOMER BILL
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K C Telecom

Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch

Page OF
Account Number 0011795
Calls Thru 3/19/00
Payment Due 04/14/00

ONE ON ONE TRANSCRIPTION

DETAIL LISTING OF CHARGES

AMOUNT _

ITEM
850-201-0869

8502010870

8502010871

8502010872

8502010873

DID Trunk Group
DID Trunk Termination
Surcharge, £911
Surcharge, TRS
ClearStar Advantage 1000
FCC Access Charge

GRAND TOTAL

Local Charges

AMOUNT

850-201-0770 THRU

DID Trunk

DID Trunk Termination
E911 Surcharge

TRS Surcharge

SUBTOTAL

850-201-0870
Clearstar Advantage 1000
FCC Charge for Network Access
E911 Surcharge
TRS Surcharge

SUBTOTAL
850-201-0871
Clearstar Advantage 1000
FCC Charge for Network Access
E911 Surcharge
TRS Surcharge

SUBTOTAL
850-201-0872
Clearstar Advantage 1000
FCC Charge for Network Access
E911 Surcharge
TRS Surcharge

SUBTOTAL
850-201-0873
Clearstar Advantage 1000
FCC Charge for Network Access
E911 Surcharge
TRS Surcharge

SUBTOTAL

FROM DATE _TO DATE QTY.

3/20/00 4/19/00 6
3/20/00 4/19/00 6
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1
3/20/00 4/19/00 1

REV ETITD) H



Page COF . Y

Account Number 0011795
Telecom calls Thru 3/19/00
Creative Solutions with a Hometown Touch Payment Due 04/14/00

ONE ON ONE TRANSCRIPTION

LINE USAGE SUMMARY CALLS  MINUTES AMOUNT
8507/201-
850/201-"
850/201-
150/201-°
850/201-
888/893
888/893- ..
wws CUSTOMER TOTAL FOR ONE ON ONE TRANSCRIPTION .

CHARGES/ NET

PRODUCT SUMMARY: AMOUNT CREDITS AMOUNT
ClearSaver Toll Free " j ==
ClearSaver Long Distance
ClearXpress Flat Rate

ClearSaver LD Canada i
GRAND TOTAL — X

TAX DETAIL REPORT

Description of Charge Amotint
FED EXCISE TAX

ST GROSS RECEIPTS TX
STATE SALES TAX

CNTY SALES TAX

CITY UTIL USERS TAX
OTHER LOCAL CHARGES

Tota. Taxes and Surcharges



EXHIBIT L

KMCDATA, LLC SMALL AND MINORITY-OWNED
TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR ITS
TENNESSEE BUSINESS OPERATIONS




EXHIBIT L

KMC DATA, LLC SMALL AND MINORITY-OWNED
TELECOMMUNICATIONS BUSINESS PARTICIPATION PLAN FOR ITS
TENNESSEE BUSINESS OPERATIONS

PURPOSE:

The purpose of the Small and Minority-Owned Telecommunications Business
Participation Plan ("Plan") of KMC DATA, LLC (“KMC DATA” or “Company”) is to identify
small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses in Tennessee that are qualified to
provide goods and services to KMC DATA, and to promote awareness among these entities of
the opportunities to develop business relationships with KMC DATA in those areas in Tennessee
in which KMC DATA provides telecommunications services.

POLICY STATEMENT:

KMC DATA acknowledges the importance of supporting the participation of small and
minority-owned telecommunications businesses in the telecommunications industry in Tennessee
and throughout the United States.

It is the policy of KMC DATA, wherever possible, to provide small and minority-owned
telecommunications businesses with an opportunity to compete for contracts and subcontracts to
supply goods and services to KMC DATA in those areas in which KMC DATA is providing
telecommunications services. To this end, KMC DATA is committed to the identification and
selection of qualified small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses that may wish to
contract with KMC DATA for purposes of supplying the Company’s Tennessee operations with
goods and services relating to the field of telecommunications. It also is the policy of KMC
DATA, where appropriate and feasible, to provide information on programs, if any, to provide
technical assistance to small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses whenever and
wherever available in Tennessee.

KMC DATA acknowledges its obligation, under TENN. CODE ANN. § 65-5-212, to
contribute its statutory share to the fund established by the Tennessee Department of Economic
and Community Development for the purpose of supporting the Small and Minority-Owned
Telecommunications Business Assistance Program (“Program”) in Tennessee. This Program
provides for loan guarantees, technical assistance and services, and consulting and educational
services for small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses in Tennessee.

DEFINITIONS:

“Act” - Section 16 and 17 of Chapter 408 of the Public Acts of 1995.
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“KMC DATA” -- a Delaware limited liability company headquartered at 1545 Route 206,
Suite 300, Bedminster, New Jersey 07921. Phone: (908) 470-2100.

“Minority-Owned Telecommunications Business” — As defined in the Act and in TENN.
CODE ANN. § 65-5-212, a telecommunications business which is solely owned, or at least fifty-
one percent (51%) of the assets or outstanding stock of which is owned, by an individual who
personally manages and the daily operations of such business, and who is impeded from normal
entry into the economic mainstream because of race, religion, sex or national origin and such
business has annual gross receipts of less than four million dollars ($4,000,000), or as otherwise
modified or amended in the future by the legislature for the State of Tennessee.

a. “Personally Manages™ in this context shall mean actively involved in the day-to-
day management.

b. “Controls” in this context shall mean exercising the power to make policy
decisions.
c. “Who is impeded from normal entry” in this context shall individuals who have

been subjected to racial or ethnic prejudice or cultural bias because of their
identity as a member of a group without regard to their qualities as individuals
and as provided in the regulation implementing Section B(a) and 7(j) of the Small
Business Act, as amended by the Business Opportunity Development Reform Act
of 1988, and Business Opportunity Development Reform Act Technical
Corrections Act, (15 U.S.C. 67(a) and 636(j)), as amended by Pub. L. 100-656
and Pub. L. 101-37.

“Small Telecommunications Business” - A telecommunications company with annual
gross receipts of less than four million dollars ($4,000,000), or as otherwise modified or
amended in the future by the legislature for the State of Tennessee.

“Subcontract” - Any agreement (other than one involving an employer-employee
relationship) entered into by KMC DATA with a non-affiliated company or individual calling for
the direct or indirect purchase of raw materials, components, supplies and services needed to
support KMC DATA's operations.

IMPLEMENTATION OF PLAN:

Where appropriate, KMC DATA will invite bids, issue requests for proposals, or
otherwise solicit offers from small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses to
furnish specified goods or services to KMC DATA in furtherance of its Tennessee operations,
except in the case of emergencies, or in such cases where KMC DATA is bound by contract to
purchase goods and services from other sources.
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ADMINISTRATION OF PLAN:

In conducting its business affairs in Tennessee, KMC DATA will appoint one of its
employees as the Administrator of the Plan. The Administrator will be responsible for
identifying and utilizing available resources for identifying small telecommunications and
minority-owned telecommunications businesses interested in and qualified to furnish goods and
services to KMC DATA in Tennessee. The Administrator also will be responsible for
cultivating an awareness among such business entities with respect to potential opportunities to
develop business relations with KMC DATA.

As a newly-created company that is yet not operational in any state, KMC DATA
currently does not have in place any specific programs for offering technical assistance to outside
sources. However, the Administrator will endeavor to serve as resource for technical assistance
to small and minority-owned telecommunications business, and will refer such businesses to
sources of information and technical assistance, internal and external, where feasible.

PLAN ADMINISTRATOR:

The administration of this Plan will be under the direction of (hereinafter called the
“Administrator”):

Tricia Breckenridge, Executive Vice President of Business Development
KMC DATA, LLC

1755 N. Brown Road

Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043

Telephone: (678) 985-7900

Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

The duties of the Administrator include the following:
1. To develop Company policies and procedures relating to the Plan.

2. To search for and develop opportunities to use qualified small and minority-
owned telecommunications businesses to participate in and bid on contracts and
subcontracts to supply goods and services to KMC DATA by utilizing the
following resources, where available:

a. The United States Department of Commerce, Office of Minority Business
Data Center, the Small Business Administration and its Procurement
Automated Source System (“PASS”) and its Office of Minority Small
Business and Capital Ownership Development; the Tennessee Chamber of
Commerce; the Tennessee Department of Economic and Community
Development; the National Minority Supplier Development Counsel; the
National Association of Women Business Owners; the National
Association of Minority Contractors.
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b. Local and national associations, and minority supplier development

councils.
c Trade fairs and industry meetings.
d. Advertisement in industry and local publications.
e. Historically Black Colleges, Universities, and Minority Institutions.
3. To establish and maintain an updated Plan and related documentation that are

consistent with the current rules, orders and policies of the Tennessee Regulatory
Authority regarding small and minority-owned telecommunications businesses,
and that are in full compliance with TENN. CODE ANN. § 65-5-212.

4. To prepare and submit such information and documentation as may be required
by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority.

5. To cooperate with the Tennessee Regulatory Authority and with other agencies of
the State of Tennessee to find and utilize, where possible, the qualified business
entities defined herein.

6. To support activities for assisting potential buyers in locating and qualifying the
types of business concerns identified herein.

9. To cooperate in any authorized surveys by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority.

10.  To provide information and educational activities to KMC DATA personnel and
to train such persons to seek out, encourage, and promote the use of small and
minority-owned telecommunications businesses.

COMPLIANCE REPORTS:

KMC DATA will submit such reports as may be required for use in connection with
subcontracting plans by the Tennessee Regulatory Authority and/or the State of Tennessee.
KMC DATA will cooperate to the fullest extent possible with all reasonable and appropriate
surveys or studies required by the contracting agency for purposes of determining compliance
with the State’s small and minority-owned telecommunications business participation program.
However, KMC DATA reserves the right to designate any documents, reports, surveys, studies
or information submitted for this purpose as “confidential” or "proprietary.”
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RECORD MAINTENANCE:

KMC DATA, LLC will maintain records relating to its Small and Minority-Owned
Telecommunications Business Participation Plan for purposes of evidencing the Company’s
implementation of this policy, for use by KMC DATA, LLC in evaluating the effectiveness and
in achieving the goals of its Plan, and for the Company’s use in updating the Plan on an annual
basis with the Tennessee Regulatory Authority, or as otherwise required.

ADOPTED THIS ¥ day of MU 2001,
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EXHIBIT M

TOLL DIALING PARITY PLAN
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INTRALATA TOLL DIALING PARITY PLAN OF
KMC DATA, LLC

AvuvcusT 2001

KMC DATA, LLC (“KMC DATA”) hereby respectfully files this IntraLata Toll Dialing
Parity Plan (“Parity Plan”) in conformity with the Tennessee Regulatory Authority’s (“TRA’s”)
Order Approving the IntralLATA Toll Dialing Parity Implementation Plan, Docket No. 99-00346
(Oct. 1, 1999), and the Federal Communications Commission’s (“FCC”) Order in
Implementation of the Local Competition Provisions of the Telecommunications Act of 1996,
Petition of Southwestern Bell Telephone Company, Pacific Bell, and Nevada Bell for Expedited
Declaratory Ruling on Interstate IntraLATA Dialing Parity or, in the Alternative, Various Other
Relief, CC Docket No. 096-98, NSD File No. 98-121 (rel. Mar. 23, 1999) (“Dialing Parity
Implementation Order”). This Parity Plan sets forth KMC DATA’s proposal for providing
intraLATA parity within the State of Tennessee for customers subscribing to KMC DATA’s

services.

APPLICABILITY: This Parity Plan for providing dialing parity is intended to apply to all dial-

tone lines provisioned by KMC DATA in the State of Tennessee.

AVAILABILITY: KMC DATA will provide full 2-PIC dialing parity in all exchanges in each

LATA in which KMC DATA provides services in Tennessee. A list of the specific exchanges
that will be served by KMC DATA in Tennessee will be contained in KMC DATA’s local

exchange tariff.
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IMPLEMENTATION DATE: Following the TRA’s approval of its Application for a Certificate of

Public Convenience and Necessity to provide competing local and interexchange
telecommunications services in the State of Tennessee (“Application”), to which this Parity Plan
is appended as Exhibit [m]., KMC DATA will implement this Parity Plan so that it will be in
place prior to the time that KMC DATA begins the provision of service to Customers in

Tennessee.

METHODOLOGY: KMC DATA will provide full 2-PIC (intraLATA and interLATA toll) dialing

parity, allowing KMC DATA’s new and existing customers to pre-subscribe to one carrier for all
interLATA calls, and to the same or another carrier for all intraLATA toll calls. A maximum of

one interLATA interexchange carrier (“IXC”) and one intraLATA IXC may be selected.

TECHNICAL IMPLEMENTATION: KMC DATA will offer dialing parity for all toll calls. Each

Customer requesting local exchange service from KMC DATA will be given the opportunity to
affirmatively select a presubscribed carrier of the Customer’s own choosing for intraLATA toll
and interexchange toll calls. This will allow a Customer to presubscribe to its preferred carrier
for intraLATA toll calls, and to the same or a different carrier for interLATA toll calls, be it

KMC DATA or another preferred carrier.

BUSINESS PRACTICES/ANTI-SLAMMING PROCEDURES: KMC DATA will comply fully with the

TRA’s and the FCC’s rules and policies for initiating, submitting, processing and verifying
Customer PIC selections. KMC DATA will ensure that all Customers are aware that they have a
choice of intraLATA, as well as interLATA, toll carriers. After each Customer is given an
opportunity to affirmatively select an intraLATA and interLATA toll carrier, the Customer will

be able to verify its selection, at any time, by dialing a toll-free number.
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KMC DATA will respond to Customer requests for information about other intralLATA
carriers in a competitively-neutral fashion. To this end, KMC DATA will maintain a list of
available toll carriers and keep it updated, and will process a customer’s PIC change to a toll
carrier other than KMC DATA in the same fashion and in the same time frames as a request to
presubscribe to itself. KMC DATA will process intraLATA PIC selections in the same manner
and under the same intervals of time as interLATA PIC selections.

If a new customer does not select a service package that includes KMC DATA'’s long
distance service, the customer’s long distance service will not default to KMC DATA. Instead,
the customer would be permitted to make use of the services of dial-around carriers for its long
distance needs.

KMC DATA will accept Letters of Authorization that conform to the FCC’s
requirements as set forth in 47 CF.R. § 64.1160.

DIALING PLAN: The following matrix outlines the proposed routing of calls by KMC DATA:

0 KMC DATA local and Toll Operator Service.

1+10 digits Direct-dial to presubscribed intraLATA Toll Provider
or interLATA Toll Provider (depending on 10-digit
number dialed).

0+10 digits Dial to presubscribed intraLATA Toll Provider or
interLATA Toll Provider Operator Service (depending
on 10 digit number dialed).

1010xxx +1+10 digits Dial-around presubscribed intraLATA or interLATA
Toll Provider to direct-dial to alternate Toll Provider
(identified by code used in xxx portion of dialing
request).
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PRESUBSCRIPTION INFORMATION

GENERAL APPLICATION: KMC DATA will neither initiate nor accept presubscription requests
except in accordance with the rules prescribed by the FCC in 47 C.F.R. §§ 64.1100, 64.1150 and

64.1160, and any additional rules enacted by the TRA.

ASSIGNMENT OF No-PIC: If a new Customer or Customer ordering an additional line does not

select a service package that includes KMC DATA'’s long distance service, the Customer’s long
distance service will not default to KMC DATA or to any other carrier. Instead, under such
circumstances, the Customer will be assigned a “NO-PIC” and will be required to make use of
the services of dial-around carriers for its long distance needs (i.e. the Customer will have to dial

an access code to make intralLATA toll calls).

FREE PRESUBSCRIPTION SELECTION PERIOD: The Company has no existing customers at

this time. New Customers or Customers ordering a second line from KMC DATA will have an
opportunity to select an intraLATA toll carrier at the time their service order is placed. If a
Customer cannot decide upon an intraLATA toll carrier at this time, they will be assigned a NO-
PIC designation, and will have thirty (30) days from the date they order local exchange service
from KMC DATA to select an intraLATA toll carrier. Customers may make their selection
either by contacting the Company or the intralLATA toll carrier directly. The Customer’s initial
free PIC selection must be made within the thirty (30) days of subscribing to the Company’s

service. Customers may make only one (1) free selection during this period.
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PIC CHANGE CHARGE: After the end of the grace period, there will be a $5.00 PIC-change

charge for each PIC change requested. This charge will be waived for one time only during the

initial grace period referenced herein.

PIC FREEZE OPTION AND CHARGE: PIC-freeze options may be provided to requesting

customers at any time. As of this date, KMC DATA has not yet determined the customer charge

for the PIC-freeze option.

MARKETING OF PIC FREEZES: KMC DATA will not market intraLATA PIC freezes within

the initial thirty (30) day grace period.

PIC FREEZE REMOVAL: PIC freezes may be removed with the use of a three-way call between

the Customer, the Company and the submitting carrier. All carriers involved must comply fully
with the FCC’s procedures for lifting PIC-freezes, as set forth in 47 C.F.R. §64.1190(e) (i.e.
independent third party verification, written letters of agency, electronic authorization), as well
as any additional procedures established by the TRA. Where a Customer has not frozen its
intraLATA PIC choice, KMC DATA will accept changes initiated by any method approved by

the FCC and/or the TRA.
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CARRIER INFORMATION

Competing interexchange carriers (“IXCs”) will have the option of offering intraLATA
service only or both intraLATA and interLATA service to KMC DATA’s customers. Such
carriers will have the option of participating in any of KMC DATA local calling areas. KMC
DATA follows industry standard procedures for the transport of long distance traffic, both
intraLATA and interLATA, via the carrier notification process. KMC DATA will not participate
in billing disputes between alternative competing IXCs or intraLATA toll carriers and the
customers of such carriers.

CosT RECOVERY PLAN:

At this point, and given the fact that KMC DATA is not yet operational in any state, the
Company has no cost recovery plan in place. All dialing parity costs eventually recovered by
KMC DATA will be competitively-neutral, in accordance with the guiding principles set forth in
the FCC’s Dialing Parity Implementation Order, and will conform to any specific cost-

requirements or allocators for dialing parity that may be established by the Board.

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE: KMC DATA will comply fully with all rules of the FCC and the
TRA regarding intraLATA toll dialing parity and slamming. KMC DATA in no way will restrict
or interfere with the ability of its subscribers to access alternative providers of intraLATA and
interLATA toll services. KMC DATA’s intraLATA toll dialing parity policies will be kept up-

to-date.

CONCLUSION: KMC DATA respectfully requests that the TRA approve its proposed Parity

Plan for providing intraLATA toll dialing parity in the State of Tennessee.
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PRE-FILED TESTIMONY OF JOHN MCLAUGHLIN
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BEFORE THE
TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORITY
NASHVILLE, TENNESSEE

Application of KMC DATA, LLC for a
Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity
to Provide Facilities-Based and Resold Local
Exchange and Resold Interexchange
Telecommunications Services Throughout the
State of Tennessee

PRE-FILED TESTIMONY OF JOHN D MCLAUGHLIN, JR

L, John D. McLaughlin, Jr., do hereby testify as follows in support of the Application of KMC
DATA, LLC (“KMC DATA?) for a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity as a
competing telecommunications services provider to provide telecommunication services
throughout the State of Tennessee.

Q: Please state your full name, business address, and position.

A: My name is John D. McLaughlin, Jr. 1 am Director, State Government Affairs for
KMC Telecom. My business address is KMC Telecom, 1755 North Brown Road, Suite
3139, Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043. My telephone number is (678) 985-6262, facsimile
number is (678) 985-6213. My email address is jmclau@kmctelecom.com.

Q: Please briefly describe your duties.

A: I am responsible for managing KMC Telecom’s state-level regulatory and legislative
obligations throughout an eleven state region which includes Georgia, Florida, Alabama,
Mississippi, Louisiana, South Carolina, North Carolina, Tennessee, Kentucky, Maryland
and Virginia.

Q: Please describe your business experience and educational background.

A: Prior to joining KMC, I spent thirteen (13) years with the Georgia Public Service
Commission (“PSC”). In my most recent assignment with the Georgia PSC, I served as
Principal Public Utilities Engineer-Telecommunications. In that position, I advised the
Commissioners on major regulatory cases such as Bell South’s 271 applications, arbitration
of Interconnection Agreements, and unbundled network element (“UNE”) costs. I also
established performance standard measures for the processing of competitive local
exchange carrier (“CLEC”) orders and managed the process for reviewing and approving
negotiated Interconnection Agreements. I have a Bachelor of Science degree in Electrical
Engineering from the University of Tennessee.

Q: Are all statements in CLEC, Inc.’s Application true and correct to the best of your
knowledge, information and belief?
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A: Yes.
Q: Please describe the current corporate structure of CLEC, Inc.

A: KMC DATA is a wholly owned subsidiary of KMC Telecom Holdings, Inc. The
Corporate Structure of KMC DATA is depicted in Exhibit B of KMC DATA’s Application.

Q: Does CLEC, Inc. possess the requisite managerial, financial, and technical abilities to
provide the services for which it has applied for authority?

A: Yes, KMC DATA possesses the requisite managerial, financial, and technical
abilities to provide the services for which it has applied for authority.

Q: Please describe CLEC, Inc.’s financial qualifications.

A: KMC DATA has access to the financing and capital necessary to conduct its
telecommunications operations as specified in its Application. KMC DATA'’s financial
situation will allow KMC DATA to compete effectively in the market and provide
telecommunications services in Tennessee.

Q: Please describe CLEC, Inc.’s managerial and technical qualifications.

A: KMC DATA’s technical staff has designed, managed and/or operated advanced
communications facilities throughout the United States. Furthermore, KMC DATA’s
management team includes individuals with substantial experience in successfully
developing, growing and operating telecommunications businesses. The Company’s
management team has experience in various segments of the telecommunications industry.
Brief biographies of the management team are appended to KMC DATA’s Application as
Exhibit D.

Q: What services will CLEC, Inc. offer?

A: KMC DATA seeks the authority from the Authority to provide full scale
telecommunications services. KMC DATA intends to operate as competitive local
exchange service provider on a facilities-based and resale basis, as well as an interexchange
service provider on a resale basis within the state of Tennessee. Specifically, KMC DATA
seeks authority to provide all forms of switched and dedicated telecommunications services,
including but not limited to the following local and interexchange services:

“Plain Old Telephone Service” -- originating and terminating local calls;

® Access Service - originating and terminating traffic between a customer premise and
an IXC POP;

e Private Line;
* Basic “1+” long distance service -- also known as Message Telecommunications

Services (“MTS”);
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o Wide Area Telecommunications Service (“WATS”);
® Toll-free telecommunications service;
¢ Data transmission service; and

o Internet services.

Q: Will CLEC, Inc. offer service to all consumers within its service area?
A: Yes.
Q: Does CLEC, Inc. plan to offer local exchange telecommunications services in areas

served by any incumbent local exchange telephone company with fewer than 100,000 total
access lines?

A: No.

Q: Will the granting of a certificate of convenience and necessity to CLEC, Inc. serve the
public interest?

A: Yes, the granting of a Certificate of Public Convenience and Necessity will serve the
public interest because it will increase competition in the market for telecommunications
services in Tennessee, leading to downward pressure on prices and more innovative service
offerings. KMC DATA’s proposed service offerings are based on the concept of bringing
technologically advanced services to a broader base of Tennessee customers.

Q: Does CLEC, Inc. intend to comply with all TRA rules, statues, and orders pertaining to
the provision of telecommunications services in Tennessee, including those for disconnection
and reconnection of service?

A: Yes.

Q: Has any state ever denied CLEC, Inc. or one of its affiliates authorization to provide
intrastate service?

A: No.

Q: Has any state ever revoked the certification of CLEC, Inc. or one of its affiliates?
A: No.

Q: Has CLEC, Inc. or one of its affiliates ever been investigated or sanctioned by any

regulatory authority for service or billing irregularities?
A: No.

Q: Who is knowledgeable about CLEC, Inc.’s operations and will serve as CLEC, Inc.’s
regulatory and customer service contact?
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A: I am knowledgeable and will serve as contact. I may be reached at the following
address:

John D. McLaughlin, Jr.

Director — State Government Affairs
KMC TELECOM

1755 N. Brown Road

Lawrenceville, Georgia 30043
Telephone: (678) 985-7900
Facsimile: (678) 985-6213

Q: Please explain in detail CLEC, Inc.’s proposed procedures for responding to information
requests from the TRA and its staff.

A: 1 will promptly answer all inquiries from the TRA or its staff. I will contact the
appropriate internal KMC department to obtain the requested information and will
promptly provide such information to the requesting party.

Q: Does this conclude your testimony?

A: Yes it does.
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I swear that the foregoing testimony is true and correct to the best of my knowledge.

4@///77

John D. McLaughlm Jr.
Director - State Government Affairs
KMC TELECOM

f
Subscribed and sworn to me this O day of July 2001.

oy pubﬂ [lien I

State of D,Q,Lﬁu
County of

LE HAMILTON
NOTARY PUBLIC GWINNETT COUNTY, GEORGIA
My co ission explres MY COMMISSION EXPIRES MAY 3, 2004
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EXHIBIT O

SURETY BOND
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TENNESSEE REGULATORY AUTHORYTY

TENNESSEE TELECOMMUNICATIONS SERVICE PROVIDER'S SURETY BOND

Bond# 45009560

applied to the Tennasase Rogulatory Authority for authority ta provide telecomymmications services in the Stats of Tenneasee; and

WREREAS, under the provisions of Title 65, Chapter 4, Sectios 125G) af the Teanessce Cods Aunotared, as ameaded, the Principal
required to file this bond in order to obtaip mch authotity and to secure the payment of any monctary sanctian imposed in any enforeemer
proceeding braught under Title 65 of the Tennesses Code Annotated or the Consumer Telemarketing Act of 1990 by or on behalf of th
Tennessse Ragulatory Authasity (the "TRA"); and

WHEREAS. Greenwich Insurance Company

(ths *Surety"), £ corporation licensed ta do business in the Stata of Tennesses and duly authorized by the Tennesses Cammissionet o
Insurance to engage in the surety buginess in this state pursuans to Title 56, Chapter 2 of the Tennesses Code Annotsted, hat agreed b
issue thlsmzand 1n order to permit the Principal to comply with the provisions of Title 65, Chapter 4, Section 125() of the Tennessec Cods
Annotqtad:

NOW THEREFQRE, BE IT KNOWN, that we the Principal end the Surety ere held and firmly honnd tathe STATE OF TENNESSEE, &
accordance with the provisions of Tennessee Code Annotated, Title 65, Chaptar 4, Sestien 1250, in the full amount of twenty thousanc
dallars ($20,000.00) lawful money of the United States of America to be vsed for the full god prompt payment of any manetary sanctior
imposed against the Principal, its representatives, successors or assigna, in any enforcentent procsading brought under Title 65 of
Teanesaee Code Annotated or the Consumer Telemarketing Act of 1990, by or on behalf of the TRA, for which ohligation we biné
ourselves, aur répresentatives, suooessors and sssigns, each jointly and severally, firmly and unequivocally by these praaants.

This bend shall become effectiveonthe 10D dey of Febma‘.'!of} e&nd shall be continucus; provided, however, that ench
argulal recewal period ar portion thereof shall constitutz a new bond term, Regardless of the nunber of yedra this band may remain in force,
the lickility of the Surety shall not be cumulative, end the aggregate lisbility of the Burety for any and all claims, soits or actinns under this
bond shall not exceed Twenty Thousand Dallars ($20,000,00). The Sursty may cancel this bond by giving thirty (30) days written notice of
such cancellation to the TRA end Principal by cartified meil, it being understood that the Surety shall not be rolieved of liability that mey
have saerued under this bond priarto the date of cancellstion.

PRINCIFAL SURETY
KMC Data, LLC Greenwich Insurance Company
Nume of Company sutharized by the TRA Noms of Supcty

70 Seaview A\irenue
Stamford, CT 06902

Company ID ¥ ss assigned by TRA ; Addrey of Surcty

Smmlzggjt'%/ SIGNATURE OF SURETY AGENT
D I uma.
- i ' / 4

Name: ristine V. McKenna

‘f "{“_; Tide: Attorney~In-Fact
¢ [ ~wonstance Loosemore
Vice Prasident Addueof Surely AT Ernc .
Asgistant Treasurer — 7 Hanover Square

New York, NY 10004
BONDBWNACMM@MMRWOFW%W&M&OFWWE
C@EAMAMMAMDDWMNO.&S,MWM SHOULD THERE RF ANY CONFLICT WITHTHE
TERMS HEREQF AND THE STATUTE OR REGULATIONS FROMULGATED THEREUNDER, THE STATUTE OR REGULATIONS
SHALLFREVAIL. (POWER OF ATTORNEY FROM AN ATTROVED INSURANCE COMPANY MUST RE ATTACHED)




ACKNOWLEDGMENT Q¥ PRINCIPAL

STATE OF TR8ESSER. New S =
COUNTY OF _ SunacsseT

Before me, a Notaty Publio of the Stato and Connty aforesaid, ally appeared ( O&AMLQ Lopsetore

with whom I am perﬁnnuy ui_c\;gm:d and who, upon oath, acknowlsdged Miself to be the individual who exccuted the foregoing
band on behalf of _ AW L LG , andshe sclnowledged to me thaihe executed the same.

WITNESS my hand and sesl this Q;ﬁ; day of Felye. ,M 2041

i 7 5 "'
My Commission Expires May 4, 2005 Nomypu he

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF SURETY

STATE OF FERRISEEE New York
COUNTY OF New York

Before me, 8 Notary Public af the State and County afaresaid, parsonally appeared _Christine V. McKemna

with whom I am persenally acquainted and who, upon oath, acknowledged himaclf to be the individual who exscuted the
foregoing bond an behalf of Greemwith Insurance C\c within named Surety, 8 corporation licensed t do businces in the
Statz of Tennesseo and duly suthorized by the Tennessee Comminsionar of Insurance to engage in tha surety businssa in this state
puranant to Tiile 56, Chapter 2 of the Tennesgee Code Annotarsd, and that he 8¢ auck an individual being authorized to do so,
exscuted the fomgoing bond, by aigning ths agme of the corperation by himself and as such individual,

WITWESS my hand and seal this_ 16th day of February 2001,

My Commiesion Expires: %‘
9/29/01 BERX %// s
AMY BAXTER K blic ’
Noaary Public, State of New Yor w
:o 018A5085001
Qualffied in KingsCounty
Commission ExpiresSept. 29

APPROVAL AND INDORSEMENT

This is to certify that ] have examined the foregoing bond and found the same to be sufficient and in conformity to law, that the
surctios ot the same & good and worth the penalty thereof, and that the same hes been filed with ﬂw Tennesses Regulstary
Autharity, State of Tenneasee, thiz day of ;20

Name:
Title:



GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY NolNo. G-51-234 .
POWER OF ATTORNEY

gﬁnnfn all Men by these Jresents: that GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY, 2 Galifornia corparation (the “Corporation”), with offices at 70 Seaview Avenue, Stamford,
Jonnecticut, 06902, has made, constituted and appointed, and by these presents, does make, constitute and appoint

Christine V. McKenna, Elizabeth Marrero, Pamela K. Rife

New York New York
its true and lawfut Attorney(s)-in-Fact, at .. ... ... .. .. intheStateof ....... ... ... ... and each of them to have full power to act without the other or
others, to make, execute and deliver on its behalf, as surety or co-sursty; bonds and undertakings given for any and all purposes, aiso to execute and deliver on its behalf as aforesaid renewals,
extensions, agreements, waivers, consents or stipulations relating to such bonds or undeftakmgs pruwded however, that no single bond or undertaking so made, executed and delivered shall obligate
the Corporation for any pomon of the penal sum thereof in excess of the sumsf

Flve Mdhnn

5,000,000

........................................ 7._.‘.‘.......7.”..,.‘.........Dollars($ PR X
Such mnds aﬂnundmakmgs M%M purpases, when duly executed by said attorney(s)-in-fact, shall be binding upon the Corporation as fully and to the same extent as if signed by the President of
the Carporauon -ynder its corporateseal attested by its Corporate Secretary.

Tms appointment js, madeunder anm’authomy of certain resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting duly called and hetd on the 5th day of April, 2000, a copy of
wmch appears below tnder the headmg entitled “Certificate.”

RS

Th|s Power of Attorney is s:gned and'sealed by facsimile under and by authority of the following resolution adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporanon by Unanimous Writter Consent on
September 18, 1997and said resollition has not since been revoked, amended or repeated:

“ RESOLVED;ghat in grammg powers of attorney pursuant to certain resolutions adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation at a meeting duly called and held on March 11,
19986, the signature-of such directors and officers and the seai of the Corporation may be affixed to any such power of attorney or any certificate relating thereto by facsimite, and any
such power of attorney or certificate bearing such facsimile signature or seal shall be valid and binding upon the Gorporation in the future with respect 1o any bond or undertaking to
which it is attached.

Thisjol\ivﬁ eof Qttomey shall expire and all authority hereﬁnﬁ!er shall terminate without notice at midnight {Standard Time where said attorney(s)-in-fact is authorized to act).

.................................... L2

6" June
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Corporation has caused these presents to be duly signed and its corporate seal to be hersunto alfixed and attested this

20,07 , at Stamford, Connecticut.
{Corporate Seal)

GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY

L~

ATTESTSijr’aya"K Kiaithr, A Assis 1C& Presi
Greenwich
00

............. V20

....................................... e 'Vltéo pi.gg‘;aé/mmmg by me duly sworn, did depose and say that (s}he resides in

................................. that(shheisa .......................................0f GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY,
me comorauon descnbed in and Whtch yecu’(ed the above instrument; that (s)he knows the seal of said corporation; that the seal affixed to said instrument is such corporate seal; that it was so affixed
&51 ordefof the: Boar(rof D(rectois of szid corporation, and that (s)he signed his(her) name thereto by like order.

o Greenwich
CERTIFICATE
STATE OF CONNECTICUT -
COUNTY OF FAIRFIELD
Assistant Secretary
.. Karen M. Manente e T of GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY,

a California corporation {the “Corporation”), hereby certify:

1. That the original power of attorney of which the foregoing is a copy was duly executed on behalf of the Corporation and has not since been revoked, amended or modified; that the undersigned has
compared the fcregoing copy thereof with the original power of attorney, and that the same is a true and correct copy of the originai power of attorney and of the whole thereof;

2. The imvowmg‘atg tesuluhuns hrch were adopted by the Board of Directors of the Corporation by unanimous writien consent on Aprif 5, 2000 and said resolutions have not since been revoked,
amended or modmed

LauraA Shanaharé ""',
<.

obligations in surety or co- surety for and on behalf of the Corporation.”

The undersvgned furthier certifies that the above resalutions are true and correct copies of the resolutions as so recorded and of the whole thereof.

IN WITNESS WHERECF, | have hereunto set my hand and affixed the corporate seal this .. 1OCR. . dayof........ February ... ... ............ .. 20. 01 ..

(Corporate Seal)

This Document is printed on colored bonded safety paper. Any reproductions are void.



GREENWICH INSURANCE COMPANY
STATUTORY STATEMENT OF ADMITTED ASSETS,
LIABILITIES, CAPITAL AND SURPLUS

December 31, 1998

%
Assats: Liabilities:
Loss and loss ,
Invesiments adjustment expsnsaes $64,916,567
: Reinsurance payable on paid loss
Bonds 526,183,878 and loss adjustment sxpanses 1,758,800
Shori-term Investments . 200,000 Unearned premiums 5,024,081
Funds held under
reinsurance treaties 586,975
Other liabilities 9,383,700
P — —ee
Total Investad Assets 26,387 875 Total Llabilitles 81,678,313
Cash 25,584,304 Qapltal and Surplus:
Agents balances or Capital stock 3,558,100
Funds held by or deposited Paid-in surplus 21,915,883
Relnsurance recoverable on loss Unassigned surplus -1,184,582
and loss ad). expense payments 2,747,833
Accrued interest and dividends 612,854 Total Capitai and Surplus 24,288,371
QOther admitted assetls 47,234,024
Tatal Llabiiitias,
Tatal Admittad Assets $105, 967,684 Capital and Surplus §105,967,6884

1, John B. Wang, Vice President and Contraller of Greenwich Insurance Campeny , {the "Corporation”) do
hereby certify that to the bast of my knowledge and bellef, the foregaing is a full and true Statutory
Statement of Admitted Assals, Liabllities, Capital and Surpius of the Corporation, as of Dacember 31, 1898,
prepared in conformity with accounting practices preseribed or permitted by the Insurance Departmant of
the State of California. The foregaing statament should not be taken as 8 camplete statement of financial
condition of the Corporation. Such a statamant is avallable upon written request at the Corporatlon's
principal office located &t One Gresnwich Plaza, Greanwich, Connectlcut 06836.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, | have hereunto &et my hand and affixed the seal of the Carporation at

Greenwich, Carnecticut.

{
/ Vice pfesident a@nar

~ffa.,




EXHIBIT P

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
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Ardmore Telephone Company, Inc.
P. O. Box 549

517 Ardmore Avenue

Ardmore, TN 38449

BellSouth Telecommunications, Inc.
333 Commerce Street
Nashville, TN 37201-3300

CenturyTel of Adamsville
P. O. Box 405

116 N. Oak Street
Adamsville, TN 38310

CenturyTel of Claiborne
P. O. Box 100

507 Main Street

New Tazewell, TN 37825

CenturyTel of Ooltewah-Collegdale
P. O. Box 782
Ooltewah, TN 37363

Citizens Communications Company of Tennessee

Citizens Communications Company of the Volunteer State
P. O.Box 770

300 Bland Street

Bluefield, WV 24701

Loretto Telephone Company, Inc.
P. 0. Box 130
Loretto, TN 38469

Millington Telephone Company, Inc.
P. O. Box 429

4880 Navy Road

Millington, TN 38053

Sprint-United
112 Sixth Street
Bristol, TN 37620

TDS Telecom-Concord Telephone Exchange, Inc.
P. O. Box 22610
Knoxville, TN 37933



TDS Telecom-Humphreys County Telephone Company
P. O. Box 552

203 Long Street

New Johnsonville, TN 37134

TDS Telecom-Tellico Telephone Company, Inc.
P.O0.Box 9

102 Spence Street

Tellico Plains, TN 37385

TDS Telecom-Tennessee Telephone Company
P. O. Box 18139
Knoxville, TN 37928

TEC-Crockett Telephone Company, Inc.
P.O.Box 7
Friendship, TN 38034

TEC-People’s Telephone Company, Inc.
P. 0. Box 310
Erin, TN 37061

TEC-West Tennessee Telephone Company, Inc,.
P. O. Box 10

244 E. Main Street

Bradford, TN 38316

United Telephone Company
P. 0. Box 38

120 Taylor Street

Chapel Hill, TN 37034



